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should not be exposed to any risk of
loss, A copy of those valuable papers
will he sufficient, provided that any mem-
ber shall have the right to inspect the
original if be so desires.

The MNINISTER FOR WORKS: I
move-

That all papers presented to the
select committee be laid upon the Table
of the House, in the form of copies
where considered desirable.

Question passed.

House adjourned at 4.55 p.m.

legislative Bzoeiblp,
W~ednesday, 120th November, 1915.
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The SPEAKER took the Chair at 3
p.m., and read prayers.

PAPERS PRESENTED.
By the Speaker: Copies of ifies and

papers called for by the Wyndbam
Freezing Works select committee.

By the Premier: 1, State trading con-
cerns, progress of audit of accounts for
year ended 30th June, 1915 (asked for
by Hon. Frank Wilson). 2, Returns
of receipts and expenditure under Gov-
ernment Railways Act for quarter ended
30th September, 1915, of (a) railways,
(h) Perth tramways. 3, Return of sal-
aries and other expenditure in counec-

Lion with Perth Public Library, Mu seam,
and Art Gallery (ordered on motion by
Mr. Taylor). 4, Government Savings
Bank, balance sheet and report for the
year ended 30th June, 1915.

By the Minister for Lands: Regula-
tions under the Stock Diseases Act.

By the Minister for Works:- 1, By-
laws of (a) Fremantle and (b) Geraldton
municipal councils, and (c) Albany and
(b) Perth roads boards. 2, Regulation
under the Health Act (Form of annual
statement of accounts). 3, Plans sup-
plied by Nevanas & Co. for Wyndham
Freezing W-orks (original and amended).

QUESflQN-STATE FISH SUPPLY.
.1-r. VERYARD asked the Premier:

1, Has he noticed the report of an inter-
view with the Colonial Secretary, ns pub-
lished in the West Australian of 30th
October last, whereiii the Minister stated
that, in compliance with the unanimous
wish of the metropolitan members, he
would close down the State's city fish-
stalls as from 1st December next? 2,
If so, is the attitude adopted by the Col-
onial Secrtary with reference to the fish-
stalls to be the policy of the Government
when members strenuously oppose other
of the State's losing enterprises? 3, Is
it a fact that the State's fish enterprise
has resulted in *a loss of between £600
and £700 during the last four months; if
not, what was the loss? 4, What was the
loss for the month of October? 5, What
weight of fish has been condemned as un-
fit for consumption during the past four
months? 6, What was the cause of the
fish being condemned? 7, Is the loss in
the fish enterprise financially the prime
reason for the closing down of the city
fish-stalls?

The PREMIER replied: 1, Yes. 2,
No; some trading enterprises have to be
considered from the standpoint of the
State generally, others have to be con-
sidered merely from the parochial as-
pect. In both cases the Government will
be prepared to abide by the respective
decisions of those who have a right to be
heard on such questions as may arise. 3,
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There has been a loss on the State fish
supply during the last four months,
owing to incessant stormy weather im-
peding operations until a recent date. It
is impossible to say with exactness the
loss for that period, or for the month of
October. Inventories of stock and stores
are not taken monthly, and without such
the necessary adjustments cannot be
made and a correct profit and loss state-
ment prepared. 4, Answered by No. 3.
5, The only fish, the property of the State
fish supply, condemned as being unfit for
human consumption during the last four
months was about Z0lbs. condemned by
the health authorities at Kalgoorlie in
Jul ,y lnst. 6, The fish condemned formed
portion of a consignment forwarded on
5th July for sale on the 6th. About
701ks. remained unsold on that date, and
as on the 7th the salesman did not con-
sider it looked tip to the mark, he called
in the health authorities, with the result
mentioned. 7. No.

QUESTION-TRA-MWAYS.
OSBORNE PARK SECTION.

Mr. VERYARD asked the Minister
for Raways: Will he cause the Osborne
Park train track, which is in a dangerous
condition in many places, to he repaired
at an early date?

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS
replied: The tramway track generally is
in a better state of relpair than that por-
tion of roadway maintained by the roads
board. Several minor repairs to the
tramway track are required, and these
are being carried out.

FILES AND PAPERS. WYNDHAM%
FREEZING WORKS.

'Mr. SPEAKER: I desire to announce
that in comp~liance with the order of the
House made on Wednesday last, copies
of the papers called for by the select
committee on the Wyndham Freezing
Works have been laid on the Table of
tle House.

MOTIOIN-WYNDUAM FREEZING
WORKLS CONTRACT.

Want of Confidence.
Debate resumed from the 3rd Novem-

ber on the motion by Mr. George: "That
this House views with rave concern the
action of the Government in entering
into a private arrangement with N'evanas
& Co. for the erection of freezing works
at Wyndhain and a private arrangement
to hand over to Nevanas & Co. the man-
agement t'hereof for a term of years, and
is of opinion that the evidence discloses
throughout the negotiations, contract,
and subsequent cancellation, a state of
affairs which is subversive of the princi-
ples of sound government."

The -MINISTER FOR WORKS (Hon.
'W. C. Angwin-Nortb-East Fremantle)
[3.10]: I have read carefully the remarks
made by the member for Murray-Wel-
lington (.%r. George) in submitting his
motion;- and on comparing his remarks
with the terms of the motion, I observe
that throughout his speech there is not
one word condemnatory of the Govern-
ment in accordance with the motion. The
motion, in the first place, condemns the
Government for entering into a private
arrangement. I challenge any hon. mem-
ber, however, to took carefully through
Hansard and to find even one word con-
demnatory of the Government uttered by
the member for Murray-Wellington for
entering into a prflvate arrangement. On
the other hand, there is to he found in
the sp~eech of the member for 'Murray-
Wellington quite sufficient that is con-
demunatory of the Government for can-
celling the private arrangement in ques-
tion: not for entering into a private ar-
rangement, as the motion phrases it.
Again, we find that the member for
Murray-Wellington wishes this House to
condemn the Government for action sub-
versive of the principles of sound gov-
ernment inasmuch as a private arrange-
ment had been entered into to hand over
the management of the Wyndham F'reez-
ing Works to "Mr. Nevanas. But the evi-
dence taken b Iy the select committee, of
which the member for Murray-Wellington
was chairman, proves conclusively that
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there is no justification for, and no truth
in, the statement that such a private ar-
rangemient had been entered into. It is
clear, therefore, that so far as the terms
of the motion are concerned there is
scarcely anything for members on this
side of the House even to reply to. I wish
to point out to hon. members, however,
as far as lies in my power, that the words
of the member for Murray-Wellington
were such as complimented the Govern-
ment, on the action which they took in
regard to the freezing works. His words.
in stead of being condemnatory, were
laudatory of the Government for the
action taken by them in this matter. They
show that, at least in the opinion of the
member for Mturray-Wellington, the Gov-
ernment did consider the best interests of
the State. The hon. member states-

No one who peruses the evidence
could fail to be struck with the fnet
that the main features throughout these
transactions have been hurry-scturry.
Mr. Nevanas appeared on the scene,
and, following through the file, it
would he found that Ministers, in their
anxiety to carry out what they con-
sidered would he a good thing for the
State-

I wish hion. members to bear those words
in mind.

Ministers, in their anxiety to carry out
what they considered would be a good
tling for the Stat-

It is worth repeating.
tried to push the negotiations through
as quickly as possible.

These are the words of the member for
Murray-Wellington, proving conclusively,
to my mind, that after several weeks of
investigation of this Wyndham contract,
after the utmost possible had been done
to try and find something that did not
exist, the hon. member came to the con-
elusion-and it is the only conclusion
which he arrived at-that the Government
were endeavouring to do what they con-
sidered a good thing for the State. The
mneniher for Mfurray-Wellington goes on
to sa'y-

While I am not going to find fault
with them over their desire to get the

matter through ithou t uinn ecessary
delay-

Certainly no member of this Chamber
would find fault with any Government for
trying to dTo their best in the interests
of the State; and so the member for
Mfurray-Wellington failed in almost the
opening of his remarks to convince the
House that something had been done by
the Government against the best interests
of the State. Words of this description,
I maintain, come with greater force and
greater weight from the hon. member who,
was chairman of the select committee,
than they would carry if coining from
any member on this side of the House.
The member for Mlurray-Wellington
said-

While I am not going to find fault
with them over their desire to get the
matter through without uinnecessary de-
lay, I intend to direct the attention of
the House to the dealings which have
taken place with the various officers of
the departments. Those officers are
professional men, whose lives have been
devoted to one particular branch of

std.It cannot he claimed that the
practice of their profession has given
them the commercial experience which
is gatheired in ordinary business.

The hon. member has taken the line of
action that the M1inistry ' r(id when they
went outside to get plans prepared. It
was realised that the officers of the de-
partmnt. had not had any experience in
connection with the preparation of plans
For works of this description and that
they did not have any knowledge of the
working of a freezing or canning estab-
lishment. It was, therefore, considered
unwise that the Government should incur
heavy expenditure without consulting
some authority outside. Hon. members
will admit that that action was asolutely
essential in connection with a matter such
as this, and on this point the member for
Murray-Wellington is in accord with the
Government. He realises that the Gov-
ernment were considering the best inter-
ests of the State and, 'his remiarks are
not condemn atory of the action of the
Government. If anything they are con-

2264



[10 Novnswsn, 1915.] 221

demnatory of the officers of the depart-
meat. Having gone -very carefully
through the evidence which was taken by
the select committee, 1 cannot see that
there is anything in it which is even con-
demnatory of tile action of the officers ofT
the State. The one object of the select
comnittee wvas to ascertain whether the
Government had done anything wrong,
,and whether the Government had gone
out of their way to assist one particular
individual, but all that the hon. member
was able to do was to come to the con-
elusion that the action of the Government
"as in the best interests of the State.
Therefore, the motion which he has moved
should be given the treatment it deserve&.

Hon. J. Mitchell: Was Nevanas paid?
The MfINISTER FOR WORKS: No,

but I will deal with that directly. The
member for Murray-Wellington in his
sp)ecch to the House went on to say that
we "hurry-scurried from start to finish
and that even after the proceedings had
reached the stage where it became neces-
sary to bring about the cancellation, in
dealing with the cancellation alone the
same hurry-scurry was carried through
andI grave mistakes were made in conse-
qunc. If the hon. member had gone
further into the evidence lie wvould have
found that questions wvere asked in re-
grd to the supposed hurry and the only

replies which were given by the officers
were to the effect that they were asked
to report as soon as possible. Is that a
limitation of time?9 Hon. members will
agree with me that "as soon as possible"
means that they were asked to report in
accordance with their views on the pro-
position which was placed before them.
Thcre was no time limit. The hon. mem-
ber has overlooked the fact that for some
weeks, I think nearly two mouths, prior
to the appointment of a hoard to in-
vestigate the cost of some of thiese works,
prices had already been submitted by the
Government officers in regard to some of
the works to he carried out.

Mr. George: Which were thcyl

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
water supply and jetty.

Mr. Heitmana: Nevanas himself did
not know anything about water supply.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS:
There was an estimate long before Ne-
vanas's tender wast submitted. There was
an estimate from Nevanas as to what the
water supply would cost, and there was
an estimate in regard to the cost of the
jetty.

Mr. Wilimoti: And the man cleared
out as soon as he saw the place.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Not
that man. The officers of the depart-
ment, who have had a good deal to do in
connection with the erection of jetties and
wvater supplies, definitely stated that it
was almost impossible for the work to he
carried out at the price which was men-
tinned by Nevanats.

Mir. George: That was on the loth
Mlarch.

The MINISTER FOR. WORKS: ])o
not make any mistake about that. I
discussed this matter with Mir. Tindale
before the 15th arch.

Mr. George: You had not Nevanas's
figures.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: As
far as the water supply was concerned,
we had.

.Ar. George: They are not on thie file;
you have not given uts all the papers.

The MI1NISTER FOR WORKS:
There are no other papers. If I mistake
not the estimate for the water supply
was prepared] in February of this year.
I think I would be justified in saying that
it is well known that hon. members oppo-
site when in office caused an investigation
to be made in regard to freezing works
and also in regard to water supply and
other matters necessary for the con-
struction of freezing works at Wyndham.
All this was known to the officers of the
department* before Nevanas came in at
all. I am merely stating this to show
that althoug-h the time was short during-
which the committee reported on
the plans and specifications, a good deal
of the knowledge was already in the pos-
session of the department prior to the
plans being placed before them.

Hon. Frank Wilson: Why did you
want Nevanas at all if you had! all the
information I
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The MINLSTER FOR WORKS: I
will (ell the hon. member directly. There
was no hurry-scurry so far as the Gov-
ernmnent were concerned, and as the hon.
member tried to make out. The hon.
member also referred to the hurry-scurry
in connection with the cancellation of the
contract. I want to lay definitely, dlearly
and distinctly that there was no limit or
time mentioned in any way whatever in
regard to the report which brought nhout
the cancellation of the contract. Hon.
members. may believe me or not. There
was no time mentioned and the only in-
street ions. issued were that the officers
should go through the invoices, examine
them carefully and snbmit a report to the
Government.

Mr. George: Take M1r. Beasley's letter.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS:

There' is no letter in regard to the can-
cellation. We had to take into considera-
tion first of all in dealing with a ques-
tion of this kind, the position which Mr.
Nevanas occupied. I will give the bon,
member credit for having stated in his
speech that he was satisfied the Govern-
mnent made inquiries and convinced them-
selves that Mr. Nevanas was a person
who was qualified to carry out this work.
I need only refer hon. members to the
file from which it will be seen that in-
formation was sought from London
through the Agent General. The replies
that were received were highly satisfac-
tory so far as Mr. Nevanas was concerned.
Inquiries were also made from New
South Wales in regard to the advice Mr.
Nevanas tendered to the New South
Wales Government. The replies again
bore out the fact that Mr. Nevanas was
a man who was qualified to carry out
works such as the Western Australian
Government had in view. I would also
like lo refer to the testimony given by a
man who was entirel 'y independent so far
as the Government arc concerned, and
who I do not think is a Government sup-
Iporter; I refer to Mr. Nichols on. I
might find it necessary to refer to several
questions and answers appearing in the
select committee's report, and I might
here remnark that if I took the report and
read it fr-om beginning to end I would

not be able to find anything in it con-
demnatory of the action of the Govern-
ment.

Mdr. George: Then you cannot grumble
about the select committee.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
want to refer to a question which was
asked by the chairman of Mr. Nicholsn.

It has been said that Mr. Nevanas
was an adventurer and had not a five
pound note to his name. Have you
any views on that?

Mr. Nicholson's answer was--
I think it is a gross slander. Mr.

Nevanas is a man who has been asso-
ciated and connected with a well-estab-
lished business. He is governing direc-
tor of the company and is well con-
nected at Home. He is a man of re-
pute and I believe him also to be a
man of thorough probity and honour.
Air. Heitmann: I say he is an abso-

lute bounder.
The MINISTER FOR. WORKS: The

lion, member has never met him.
Mr. Heitmann: I take his actions, and

my view is as good as Mr. Nicholson's.
The MINISTER FOR WOaRXS: That

is 'the opinion of a gentleman who had
business dealings with Mnr Nevanas, and
that opinion is borne out by the informa-
tion which was supplied to the Govern-
ment by our Agent General and well-
known bankers in London. That being
the ease, we can come to the conclusion
that the Government took all the neces-
sary steps to ascertain whether Mr.
Nevanas was qualified to carry on these
works.

Mr. Heitman: That is, financially?
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Yes.

It is shown. clearly from the evidence
which was placed before us that with
every justification we could place confi-
dence in Mr. Nevanas and that he was a
suitable man to carry on works of this
description. The Government having
found out that Mr. Nevanas was an hon.
onrable man and a man of repute, it was
necessaryv to ascertain whether he was
capable of advising in connection with
the erection of works such as it was pro-
posed to erect at Wyndham. It is well
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known that Nevanes% & Co. in London are
large dealers in the meat trade. That
cannot be disputed. They have one of
the largest businesses in the Smithfield
market. They found that they were be-
ing crashed out by the American meat
trust, and that it was necessary for them
to reach out for the purpose of retaining
their position in the meat trade. That
being so, Nevanas came to this State for
the purpose, not to enter into an agree-
ment with the Government to manage
works, but to take into consideration the
advisableness of erecting such works at
Wvndhatn for his own company. It was
necessary for their own. business that Ne-
vanas & Co. should protect themselves
against the meat ring which is encroaching
on all parts of the world. I will ask hon.
members to refer to the evidence given by
Mr. Dunkerley,, in which the member for
Mlurray-Wellington puts a great deal of
reliance. It appears on page 9. Mr.
Willjnott questioned MI-r. Dunkerley in
regard to Nevanas' qualifications to ad-
vise the Government. The question
was-

Do you think Nevanas was a fit and
proper person to report on the ad-
visability, or otherwise, of establishing
and erecting meat workh at Wynd-
ham?

A very clear question, and one which Mr.
Willmott was perfectly justified in ask-
ing; because they -had in the witness a
man who was not an engineer, who knew
very little more about engineering than
Nevanas himself, but who band been in
charge of various engineering works as
foreman and as contractor, and who,' it
is said, prepared the plans in regard to
the Wyndham works. The answer wa&--

Yes, I think he was a proper per-
son.

The answer testifies to the honesty of
Mr. Dunkerley. because at that time he
was uinder the impression that Mr.
INevanas had taken him down.

Mr. Willmott: And he was not far
out.

!lbh IMINISTER FOR WORKS: The
next question, also by Mr. Willmott,
was-

How, whyq
And the answer is--

Well, he is in touch with, and bas a
general knowledge of the export trade.

Mfr. Willmott then asked-
He mnighbt advise as to ports to be

shipped to?
And Mr. Dunkerley's answer was-

Yes, he would be first-class for that.
Now, the hon. member, in his speech the
other night, said-

I sin satisfied that, had it been pos-
sible, from the inception of this mat-
ter, to obtain some well-trained and
well-to-he-relied-upon commercial man
to have gone through the negotiations
and put them on a business footing,
with the final decision resting with the
Government, we should not have had
the unhappy state of affairs we have
to-day.

Yet, on the same page of the committee's
report, we find the chairman of the orn-
mittee, the member for Muarray-Welling-
ton (Air. George), who was of opinion
that if we had had a well-qualified com-
mercial man to deal with this matter all
would have been well-we find that hon.
member asking this question of Mr.
Dunkerly-

Would he be able to do more than
-this, to say that if you produce so
much frozen meat of such a quality, it
could be disposed of in this market or
that'?-(Answer) Yes.

And -the bon. member follows that up
with this question-

Would he be capable of going up to
a place like Wyndham and deciding
whether Wyndhama was a place where
you could obtain meat in the quantity
and quality required to sell it?

And the answer to that pertinent ques-
tion was this-

Ye;, he would be a suitable person
for that. Now, I myself would be no
good at the other end; absolutely no
good against him at that line. I em
not a salesman and I do not pretend to
be a salesman.

Now we come to the next question. Here
is what the same hon. member asked Mr.
Dunkerley-
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He was purely and simply the* comn-
tuecial man who, if he was asked a
qluestion as 'to the disposing of a cer-
tain quantity of meat, could tell you
the conditions that you would need,
and that he could or could not dispose
of the meat7-(Answer) Yes.

The hion. member, as I have said, con-
tended that all would have been well if
there bad been a commercial man to ad-
vise us. Yet the evidence elicited in
answer to the bon. member's own ques-
tions shows that the Government did have
a commercial man to advise them in con-
nection with the establishment of the
freezing works.

Mir. George: Then you turned him
into a contractor.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
will deal with that directly. On the evi-
dence before the committee the hon.
member ought to be satisfied that the
Government did have a commercial man
to advise them. Now let me turn to
question 224, asked by Mr. Mlunsie, as
follows:-

Further to the question put by Mr.
Willmott, do you contend that Air.
Nevanas, with his knowledge, accom-
paired by an expert, say by yourself,
in the erection of works, would be a
suitable person to advise the Govern-
wepit in regard to the erection of freez-
ing works at Wyndham?

And thc significant reply was-
Most decidedly.

Yet the Government are twitted with
having failed to get an outside commer-
cial man, a man with the knowledge
necessary to advise the Government.
Here we have the principal witness bear-
ing out the contention that the Govern-
ment sought, in the first place, to be ad-
vised by a man of financial repute in the
old world, a man spoken well of by all
those who know him in Western Aus-
tralia: and that witness a man who has
been in charge of freezing works, and
carried out works in various parts of
Australia. He said that Mr. Nevanas
was most decidedly a man fit and proper
to advise the Government. I come now
to a question put to Nrr. Cairns, a gentle-

man in whom the lion, member has every
confidence. In question 723 Mr. Taylor
asked Mr. Cairns-

Is there anyone in the Government
service of Western Australia capable
of giving an estimate and making up
plans for a structure of this kindI

And the answer was--
Yes, the skilled staff of the Govern-

ment could give an estimate and collect
data for plans as well here as else-
where.

The next question and answer were as
follow:

You did not -think it necessary to
call in an outside person to do that?-
(Answer) No, not for that alone. Mir.
Nevanlas's connection with the meat
business gave him a distinct advantage
in this matter.

Surely' it was the duty of the Govern-
ment to obtain the opinion of one who
had a distinct advantage over the officers
in the State service, seeing that we de-
sired to have the most up-to-date w~orks
in the Commonwealth, and having re-
gard to the possibility of our being forced
to compete with the American Meat
Trust, who to-day are trying to cripple
the meat markets of the world. What
sort of condemnation would be hurled
at the Government who did not try their
utmost to get advice from a man who
had "a distinct advantage in this matter,"
in other words, more knowledge than
others hadl The Government availed
themselves of that knowledge. In the next
question i\Ir. Taylor asked Mr. Cairns
this-

They could report to the Government
and give an estimateI

And the answer was-
The.%, could do that.

Mr. Taylor's next question was-
Then, would it be necessary to call

iii ally outside personi
And Mt Cairns answered-

It would be a very' prudent thing to
do. as it would strengthen the local
opinion.

I maintain that these questions and ans-
wers which I have quoted prove concla-
sivelv that Mr. Nevanas wvas capable of
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advising the Government as to the con-
struction of the freezing works.

Mr. Robinson: Why did not you keep
himn as adviser I He became a contractor.

The U1NINISTER FOR WORKS: I
wvili deal with that point presently. Rev:
ing proved by the evidence that Mr.
Nevanas's financial position was all right,
as; far as the Government were aware,
and having proved that hie was capable
to advise the Government in regard to
these works, I will now try' to prove that
it was his knowledge that was responsible
for the lay-out of the works. The reply
to question 17 embodies a letter whichl
was written to Mr. Dunkerley by Nevanas
& Co. in regard to the preparation of
the plans. The hon. member the other
day brought some plans here. I have
others which I will pass over to hon.
members directly, In bringing forward
those plans the other dlay and handing
them out as hie did,' the hion. member was
gulilty of the moat unfair action he has
yet taken in regard to this inquiry.

'%Jr. George: They are all the plans we
could get.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: No,
they) are not. You have seen these others
as well. No engineering works are ever
carried out without the preparation of
c-ertain plans of a. very meagre nature.
The hon. member is fully aware of that,
and it was distinctly unfair on his part
to bring down here plans containing very
little work, and offering them to hon.
members as a criterion of what the Gov-
ernment had paid for.

Mr. George: Your officers told me they
were all the plans they had.

The -MINISTER FOR WORKS: In
regard to water supply. You divided the
plans. Now we were aware at the time
that Mr. Nevanas was not an architect.
We knew that hie had to rely on some
other person employed by himself to
prepare the plans and specifications, un-
dier his supervision. I may be permitted
to show that, notwithstanding this, M,%r.
-Nevanas. himself was responsible for the
lay-out of the works. On the 2nd Febro.
my , 1915, as will be seen in the answer
to question No. 17. Mr. Nevanas wrote to

Mr. Dunkerley a letter containing the fol-
lowing:-

it was also understood that the lay-
out and designing of the buildings
would be generally provided by us and
that you would not claim any copyright
therein.
Mr. George: That is right enough.
The MIUN.ISTFIR FOR WORKS:' Of

course it is. Any hion. member who has
had a~nything to do with plans will agree
that the actual drawing of the lans is
hut a very small portion of the work. It
is the knowledge which is necessary in
ordqr to istruct others how to draw the
plans.

MNr. Wifinott: You would not need
mutch knowledge to draw that lot.

The MINISTER FOR WORKIS: But
much knowledge would be necessary to
draw the plans I have beside mc. Cadets
can draw plans;, they are doing it every
da,'y in the week, but unless the Chief
Architect or the engineer is there to
guide and instnict them how to draw the
plans, it would be impossible for them to
carry out the work. It is shown clearly
that the lay-out of these btuildings, whichi
are thoroughly up1-to-date and des-igned
for economical working, is the result of
opin ions gained through travelling in dif-
ferent parts of the world and inspectin~g
other works. This knowledge was hrought
to hear on the architects by Mr. Nevanas
himself. It was his design and his know-
ledge which resulted in the production of
these plans;- the plans merely gave ex-
pression to his ideas.

Mr. Heitmiann: Whose knowledge and
data were used in connection with the
water supply?

The M,%INI\STER FOR WORKS:. I
will deal with that presently.

Mr. George: Why do you not say
Nevanias was paying £500 for what you
were paying him £E3,0007

The 1lIN1STER, FOR WORKS: The
£-500 was the complete fee in connection
with his visit to Wyndham.

Mr. George: No, it was additional to
the sumn paid.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
will deal with that directly. I am not
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going to condemn Air. Nevanas any more
than I would condemn the hon. member
if he undertook to prepare plans and
specifications at ordinary architects' fees
and then got another party to prepare
them in accordance with his ideas, so
long as the work was carried out. The
hon.. member would have the advantage,
and it would be no concern of mine. The
same thing applies to these plans. Let
me now refer to page 8S containing Mr.
Nicholson's evidence in regard to the
plans. Hon. members who have read the
evidence will recollect that Mr. Nicholson
was asked by Air. Taylor in regard to the
amount of money paid to Mr. Nevanas,
and Mr. Nicholson stated definitely that
Mr. Nevanas made nothing at all out of
the transaction. He said he knew of his
own knowledge that by the time AMr.
Nevatias paid his expenses, he would be
nothing in pocket. That will be found
in question 208S.

Mr. Thomson: I should like to take the
risk.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Mr.
Taylor asked several questions of Mr.
Nicholson in regard to the plans, and re-
ceived the following answers:-

He did nothing in regard to plans
which were drawn up by someone else?9
-The planis were prepared through his
own architects.

He has no architects?-He has men
employed.

Mr. Dunkerley has?-He had mn
employed and had incurred expenses
apart from Air. Dunkerley.

Mr. Dunkerley did the purchasing?
-Mb.. Durnkerley is probably a very
good contractor. The value of AMr.
Nevanas's services is not adequately
recgsed. In such work as this the
lay-out is of the greatest possible im-
portance.

Then Air. Willmott asked-
He was paid £1,000 for that?

The reply was-

That was to report on the site.

This is a different matter entirely from
the plans. The witness further stated.
in reply to Air. Wilmoit-

The Lay-out of the works determines
whether the undertaking will be a suc-
cess or a failure. I read of one man
who received a very large fee for laying
out a big boot factory in a certain part
of the Old World. The lay-out of those
works was appreciated by the people
concerned more than anything because
it saved them the thousands of pounds
they wanted to save; it enabled them
to conduct their manufacture on a sue-
cessful basis. The wide experience of
AMr. Nevanas in a concern such as this,
in the laying-out of such work, was of
the greatest possible value to the Gov-
ernment.
Hon. Frank Wilson: Did lie advise the

Government on a boot factory?
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The

hon. member need not interject in that
strain. We are dealing with the Wynd-
barn meat works, not with a boot factory.

Hon. Frank Wilson: You referred to
a boot factory.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Mr.
Nicholson was merely drawing a compari-
son, and the bon. member is fully aware
of it. Mr. Nicholson said-

The wide experience of Mr. Nevanas;
in a concern such as this, in the laying-
out of such work, was of the greatest
possible value to the Government.
Mr. Heitmaun: What does Air. Nichol-

son know about itl
Hon. Frank Wilson: He is Nevanas's

solicitor.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Mr.

Nicholson added-
So far as drawing plans is concerned.

the drawing of plans is a mere mechani-
ical operation many times. It is having
the experience with which Mr. Nevanas
was endowed that enabled those plans
to he drawn according to his ideas, and
not according to the draftsman's ideas.

Mr. Nicholson expressed the position bet-
ter than I can express it, and I am using
his words because I am of the same
opinion. Any bon. member who gives
the matter five minutes consideration can
come to only the same conclusion.

Mr. Taylor: No one doubts Nevanas's
knowledge and ability.
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The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
ain glad to hear the hon. member say
no one will doubt that Mr. Nevanas's
knowledge and ability were such that he
was able to lay out these works. Mr.
Nicholson also stated-

It is having the exp~erience with
which Mr. Nevanas; was endowed that
enabled those plans to be drawn ac-
cording to his ideas and not accord-
ing to the draftsman's ideas. I should
like to impress that fact on the minds
of the committee. I have no doubt that
Mr. Dunikerley was an excellent con-
tractor, hilt his knowledge in the laying
Out of such works was as nothing com-
pared wvith Mr. Nevanas's knowledge.
31r. Thomison : "'flat authority had lie

for making that statement?
The 11INISTER FOR WORKS: The

lion, member is fully aware that this is
so. The lion. mnember, as a contractor.
knows that.

Hon. Frank Wilson: He had Nevanas's
authority for saving so.

The MIINISTER FOR WORKS: He
had *this authority, that lie kneew 'Mr.
Nevainas hadl travelled the world and( had
inspected the moatst tip-to-date works and
ihat lie was at manl capable of forming
oin opinion in regard to works of Ihis des-
en l~tion. ro in'y mnindl it proves conelu-
sivelv' that Mr. Nicholson, a man wvho
can read people as well as most men.
formed the opinion fliat All. Nevanas
wasit caipable and possessed the know ledge
necessary to lay out plans of this des-
cription.

Mr. George: And that he was anl hon-
curiable nmail and could be relied onl.

The M1INISTER FOR WORKS:
I have already stated that.

't. Taylor: I wish I couldl read as well
as Nevanas: I would not trouble about
Nieholson's reading.

The MINISTER FOR WVORKS: The
member for Mfurray-Wellington dealt
with tlie appointment of a hoard to con-
sider and advise the Government in re-
gard to the acceptance or otherwise of
plans which were submitted by .1r. Xe-
vanes. The hon. member said the esti-
ates came into the possession of the

Government between the 14th and 17th

March, and the investigation board, con-
sisting of various officials of different de-
partments, were appointed by the Mini-
ister to go into the plans and esti-
mates and give an opinion. The posi-
lion was that there was a difference of
opinion between one or two officers, who
were consulted, and Nevanas in regard to
the cost, and the board< were appointed to
investigate the matter, and they came to
tie conclusion that it was impossible for
Nevanas to carry out the wvorks at the
amount stated by him.

Mlr. George: They got the things only
on thie l7th, and reported on the 18th.

The .1INiSTER FOR WORKS: The
water atlll}I and jetty had beet, under
consideration for a considerable time.

.7r. Georg-e: Estimates from Nevanas?
The MI1NISTER FOR WORKS: WVe

had quotations previously; I do not say
they were in writing. Nevanas previously
said wvhat these works could b~e carried
out for.

Mr. George: You found out wvhat the
committee could not ascertain.

The MNINISTER FOR WORKS: I
knew at the time.

Mr. George: Then why were the papers
kept frontius?

Thie 11INISTER FOR WORKS: The
conitiitee have had all the papers. Xe-
vanas volunteered a statement as to the
amount for which these works could be
carried our. This dispute had lasted for
somle l itte. and naturall ' Nevanas desired
to prove it, the board that he was pre-
pared to back up the statements lie had
nudle. The member for MUrray-Wellin~-
ton said that Nevanas suddenly produced
a tender to do the work for £1,55,150,
which was sent to the officials for their
consideration: they got it late one after-
noo0n, and had to report the next dayt.
This estimate came in suddenly, as the
lion. member stated, but why? Because
when the officers disputed that it was pos-
sible to dto the work for the money, or
within £30,000 of what Nevanlas offered
it, do ill for-

M1r. Heitmann: Is that in the evidence?
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: It is

onl the file. Nevanas then said hie was
prepared to do it for the sum stated, and
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hie submitted a tender to carry out the
work for £50,000 less than that for which
the officers said it was possible to do it.

Air. Willmott: And] they recommended
it?

Atir. Heitmann: According to his sub-
sefluent statement, Nevanas would have
taken it for nothing all" then made
money.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS:
There is nothing strange about a tender
of this description coming in. It takes
place almost every day.

Air. George: No.
The M1INISTER FOR WORKS:

When a person is confident in his own
mind of his ability to carry out work for
a certain price, and the officers of the de-
partmnent say it is impossible to do so,
such a perso n will often undertake to do
fihe work for the money. The Govern-
ment acted onl the recommendation of the
board in order to try to save this £50,000,
and, in the interests of the State, they
felt hbe y were justified in accepting the
tender.

_Nir. George: It is a curious thing to
turn an agent into a contractor.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS:
There is not hing ver ' curious in that.

Mr. George: It iS a very Cliriouls state
of affairs.

The MIINISTER FOR WORKS: No,
it is a common occurrence.

1Mr. George: I do not think so.
The MAINISTER FOR WORKS: It is

a veryv common occurrence for a contrac-
tor 10 undertake to prepare his own plans
and give an estimate for a building, and,
in many instances, call tenders for the
building, and if the tenders are too high,
the contractor says "I will do the work
myself."1

.%r. Thomson: That is not quite anl
exact parallel.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: It is
a ver v common occurrence.

ifr. George: What, to pay a manl a
commiission to produce plans and get es-
timates, and then turn him into a con-
tracior to wake a Jprofit! Those state-
ments are not correct.

The AlINISTER FOR WORKS:
Those statements are correct. It is not

my wish to put before members anything
except wh~at is correct. The statements
I am making are quite correct, and the
evidence will bear mue out. The lion, mem-
ber also stated that insufficient time was
given to the board, and that they were
expected to report in practically 24
hours. Yet he has it on evidence that
they were asked to report as soon as p)os-
sible. Tile evidence shows that. they were
asked to report as soon as possible.

Air. Wiilmott: The next day.
Thie MINISTER FOR WORKS: I

call only give the hon. member the evi-
deonces which was furnished before the
committee. If it was as soon as possible,
and I hey felt they' could report tile next
dany, whlere was there an v harm?

Hon. J. D. Connolly: Why did they
complain of the short imne?

Tihe MI1NISTER FOR WORKS: That
is their own look-out, if the officers re-
Ported and made a recommendation to
the Government in regard to carrying

out works such as these, and they felt
then that they were not justified in mak-
ing thre report and recommendation, they'
should not have done so: There were no
distinct instructions at any time that they
should (10 so. It has never been the
polic ,y of this Government to instruct
offivers in this direction. Whlat would be
lie use of submitting plans and specifi-

cations, or indeed, any question, to anl
officer, and at the same time saying to
hini, "You must get out this particular
report within a certain time V" Any
officer wiib ay backbone would say' ,
"No, liy reputation is at stake. I am
riot going to carry out wvhat you desire.
I will do my best and will report to y-ou
as soonI as possible." The evidence bear's
out this statement tilat the officer was
asked to report as soon as possible. No
time was given at all. The hon. member,
therefore, is in error wvhen lie states that
the members of the board were only given
24 hours in which to report. 1 am now
coming to tile question of the payment of
the 3 per cent., Nvithl which the hon. mem-
ber has dealt fully. He stated-

The plans were arranged for be-
tween the Premier and Mr. Nevanas,
by telegrams. and the understanding
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distinctly was that, for the production
of plans and specifications and for the
obtaining of tenders, a commission of
3 per cent. was to be paid, while for
plans and specifications alone a com-
mission of 2 per cent, only was to be
paid.
MNr. George: That is correct.
Trhe 'MINISTER FOR WORKS:

There is one question in the evidence that
I have noticed, and I think it was asked
of Mr. Mont. The mnember for Murray-
Wellington asked this officer if there was
any arrangement that the 3 per cent was
to he paid if the building was carried out
by Mlr. Nevanas, and whether, if it was
not carried out. lby lii, the Government
were to pay more than 2 per cent.

Mr. George: T did not put those
words ini.

The MINI STER FOR WVORKS : I
noticed the remark, at all events, and
drew Mr. Mlunt's attention to it. it
shows clearly that the hion. member is
trying in the first instance to draw a red
herring across the trail. The conditions
were plain that a person could form no
,other opinion. On page 6 of tile report
there appears a copy of a telegram sent
by Nevanas to the Premier. It reads
thus-

Scale charges furnishing plans
specifications also separate tenders for
construction three centum Western
Australia architects' printed condi-
los. Will arrange special rate two

centum if work not proceeded with.
That is a very common occurrence among
architects in regard to carrying out build-
ings. It is, in fact , common in almost
every part of the world. It is quite a
usual thing to pay one per cent. for pro-
viding plans only, v and 5 per cent. if the
work is proceeded with.

Ron. .1. D. Connolly: Two and a half
per cent. for plans anid two and a half
per cent. for supervision.

31r'. Willmott: And the man looks
after the construction as clerk of works.

The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS : I
will prove directly a case in which a
previous Government had paid .5 per
cent. and did not have the work super-
vised bY thle party concerned, and

where the plans had been thrown
away and never used. This tele-
ram proves conclusively that it was
intended to pay 3 per cent. on the plans
if the work was carried out. In other
words, if Nevanas & Co. produced plans
upon which the Gov erment carried out
the works, that firm would expect to be
paid 3 per cent. on the cost of the works,
so far as their plans were concerned. If
the Government had turned the whole
thing down and decided not to proeeed
with the work, the plans would no doubt
have had to be returned to Nevanas &
Co., just as they are returned in the ease
of other architects, and the Government
would have had to pay 2 per cent. for
the drawing of them. But the work is
being gone on with. Some of the build-
ings have been erected, the water supply
arrangements are well advanced,' and
there is no intention of ceasing the work
of construction. Those who drew out the
Iplans, therefore, .- were, in accordance
wvith the terms of the agreement and in
accordance with architects' fees gener-
ally. entitled to he paid 3 1)er cent. on
the total cost of the works.

11r. 'T'loinson : Are they supervising
t he eonstrLlCtion?

The M.%I NI ST ER FOR WORKS
There is not a word about supervision.
In regard to the Federal people,. we, as
a Government, get 6 per cent.

Mr, 1'Iison: And it is well worth it
too.

The MI11NISTEIR FOR WORKS: I
think I hare shown clearly that the lion.
member was in error-] do not say that
hie deliberatelyv fell into the error-when
he made the statement that the arrange.
mnit was that Yet anas was only entitled
to 2 per cent. on the drawing of tile
plans.

Mr. George: And that is all, too.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: That

would probably be all that Nevanas
would he entitled to if the works had not
been proceeded with,' but seeing that the
works are now under construction the 3
per cent, commission comes in, and he
was paid .3 per cent., to which he was
justlY and honestly entitled.
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Mr. Heitmann: Does it not mean 3 per
cent. if he proceeded with the work?

The "MINISTER. FOR WORKS:- No.
At that time Nei-anas was not considered
as being the man who would carry out
the work. At the time it was never
thought that he was going to do the
work. I do not think that any member
of thle Government or anv officer of the
departments had the sblitest idea that
Nevanas would carry out the work.

"Mr. Heitmann: How is it that Nevanas
got a price from Dunkerley?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I am
going to deal with that directly. The
member for MP~urray-Wellington (Mr.
George) backed up. his argument in this
way-

If the calling of a tender is to justify
this 3 per cent., then Mr. Kevanas
should have put in a tender obtained
from MAr. Dunkerley of £137,000; and
then, had the Government accepted
Mr. Dunkerley's tender, there might
have been justification for the payment
of the 3 per cent.

The committee have it in evidenlce that
NIr. Duinkerley stated that if he had been
aware that this would be a Government
job hie woiuld have wanted at least an-
other £10,000 for doing the work; also
that Mr. Nevanas had agreed with M1r.
Dunkerley that the cost of the freight
should not exceed £7,000. and that in
cases where the cost was in excess of
that, the difference was to be paid by
Mr. Nevana.9. I find that since then Mr.
Dunkerley has made an offer to do the
work at a sum-of a little over £150,000,
out 0f whieh £E26,000 is provided for
freight.

Mr. George: That does not affect the
contract.

The 311TNTSTER FOR -WORKS: That
shows conclusively that, As far as Mr.
Dunkerley was concerned, he only quoted
the price uinder cert ai n conditions,
namel 'y, that if the freights; were to ex-
ceed a certain amount, MAr. Nevanas
would have to pay the difference.

Mr. Heitmann: Did not Nevenas have
the same provision?

The MINSTER FOR WORKS: No.

Mr. Heitman: What was his freight
to be!

Thre MINISTER FOR WORKS:-
Nothing, so far as we were concerned.

Mr, George: Not if the freight was to
rise or fal?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Not
so far as we were concerned. That dealt
with the whole lot up to the date of the
tender.

Mr. Taylor: That was thre intention,
hut it got into thre tender.

The Minister for Lands: It never got
into the tender.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
evidence shows conclusively that Mr,
Dunkerley's lender did not include the
full amount of the freight whichi it was
necessary to pay in the carrying out of
(,he wvorks.

-Mr. George: He would have had to
stick to it if hie had got his bond.

The MIINISTER FOR WOERKS: The
hon. member is again trying to draw a
red herring across the trail. Who was
giving the bond? Not Mr. Dunkerley!

Mr. Heitniann: Certainly not Nevanas.
The MINISTER FOR WOE KS: That

is a question I intend to deal with later
onl. Wve are dealing now with the terms
of whiat I call the interimn agreement
which was entered into with the Govern-
menit. In that agreement Nevanas, bad to
provide a bond of £6,000, not Dtuikerley.
It is all veryv well for the member for
Muirray-Wellington to say that Nevanas
would have had to pay if he had provided
the bond.

'Mr. George: A hond had to he pro-
v'ided for Nevanas.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: It
does not say so in the evidence. In addi-
tion to this, Dunkerley was to get a fur-
ther bonus of £7,000.

Mr. Willmott: His agreement was
produced.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS9: I
have never seen it. The agreement is not
published here. In addition to the freight
Dunkerley was, as I have said, to get
a bonus if the work was finished within
the lime specified. TVhe hon. member is
fully aware that, as far as Durikerley is
concerned, we, as a Government. knew
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nothing about himu at all. I do not
think any member of the Mnistry
knew anything about him. Duanker-
Iey was introduced to me after
Nevanas came over here in May or
June. as his engineer. I thought hie was
onle of Nevanas's officials empl)oyed for
the purpose of carrying out the work.

lion. Frank Wilson- Dunkerley saw
the Premier in 'Melbourne before that.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: He
saw the Premier in 'Melbourne whilst
Mr. Seaddan was over there on the last
occasion.

The Minister for Lands: I never saw
himi in my life.

The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
Premier and Thwkerley came back to-
ge ther, and it was on that occasion that
the latter was introduced to me as We-
vanas's engineer. I say emphatically that
I was not aware that Dunkerley was go-
ing to carry out the contract for Nevan-
as. I think it is proved conclusively by
the wording of the telegram I have quoted
that the Government were quite justified
in paying 3 per cent. on the plans if the
building was lproceeded with. If the work
xmas not gone on with, and, as I have
stated, it is not intended to drop it, we
were only entitled to pay 2 per cent, on
the plans. This is not the first time that
the Goverunment: of Western Australia
have gone to outside architecta or en-
gineers for the preparation of plans,
and have paid a much higher percent-
age than Nevanas was paid. I state
that by way of comparison, because
the hon. member questioned the
Chief Architect very closely in re-
gard to this payment. The question
has been asked,' has a ease ever been
known before of the Government going
ouiside the departments to get plans pre-
pared?9

rThe Deputy Speaker (.1r. McDowell)
took the C heir.]

'Mr. George: I should think there has.
The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS: The

lion, member is aware that it has been
done before. The hon. member, as Corn-
mnissioner of Railway' s, has had to pay for
it. Tn this casze there was no one in the

Government service with anything but the
slightest knowledge of laying out up-to-
date weat works; there was no one in the
Government service with experience in
the running of meat works.

Mr. Heitmann: That was not know-
ledge that Nevanas had.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS
There was every knowledge, so far as
that is concerned.

M, Ir. Heitmann: Not of running meat
works.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: A
few years ago a bridge was to be erected
across William-street.

Mfr. George: In 1002.
The -MINISTER FOR WORKS: The

work extended over 1902, 1903, and 1904.
There were dozens of officers in the Pub-
Tic Works Department who could carry
out that work, but the Government of the
day brought in an outside engineer to
prepare plans for the bridge. I believe
pencil sketches of the bridge were first
prepared in the Public Works Depart-
ment, and the engineer called in prepared
the plans from them.

MAr. George: The Government had a
disloyal officer.

The M,.INISTER FOR WORKS: The
plans were prepared, and the member for
Alurray-Wellington, as Commissioner of
Railways , never worked to them at all,
because they were not fit to work to.

Hon. Frank Wilson: The Labour Gov-
ernment were in power in 1904.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Yes,
but the bridge was under construction
from 1902 to 1904. In that case arrange-
ments were niade with an outside engin-
eer to prepare plans, and the plans were
submitted. The estimated cost of the
work was £80,000. and the engineer was
paid 1%4 per cent, for the plans.

Mfr. George: Not on £80,000.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Yeb,

on £S0,000.
Mr. George: -Not by me.
The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS: I

am not sa~ying- it "'as paid by the lion.
member. The engineer was paid at the
rate of 114 per cent. on £80,000
or £1,000. After the Government
had gone into the matter, they is-
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stied instructions that the outside
engineer's plans must be considered;
and eventually the member for Murray-
Wellington, who was then Commissioner
of Railways, decided that the plans were
llot suitable-iii fact, that they were
suich sketches as could not he worked to
at all. The bridge was almost completely
altered. What was the position then ?
'The Government were sued for payment
for the plans. The Governmient had paid
£1,.000 already, and then they were sted
for a further amount.

* %lr. George: That is news to me.
The MIINiSTER FOR WORKS:

Surely it is not news to the hon. member
that the Government went to court?

Air. George: I had noihing to do with
that.

The MIINISTER FOil WORKS: The
engineer claimed not only 11/ per cent.
for preparation of the plans in the 6rst
place, but a further 1 4 per cent, for
drawing extra plans, and also 3%/
per cent, on the amount of tender. The
jury gave a verdict for the amount in
full, £1,446 5s., representing 3%/ per cent.
In respect of alterations to draw
iugs the outside engineer was paid
a further suin of £75. Then, for
surveying and taking levels he was
p~aid £C6 6s, Moreover, he was paid
*1,000 as commliission on the esti-
mated cost, of the work to the Gov-
ernment, the work having- heen cut down
considerably.

Mr. Allen: Js this the authority for
your action ?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
waint to show that the Chief Architect
was quite justified in believing that had
the question of these plans for the Wynd-
hamn Freezingm Works gone to court the
Government would have had to pay con-
siderably more than was eventually paid
for the preparation of the plans.

Mir. George: That is a very far-fetched
argument.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
ami bringing the matter of this bridge
lip, not for the purpose of showing that
-similar action has been taken previously,
hut for the purpose of showing that
whjere plans of this description are pre-

pared, whether the p)erson who prepares
them supervises the work or not is a mat-
ter which has nothing to do with the lia-
bility of the Government to pay the full
percentage for the preparation of the
plans. In the case of the William-street
bridge it appears clearly that the Govern-
ment were directed by the court to pay,
and had to pay; the total cost of the plans
being- £3,000. And these were plans
which were never used at all, plans which
were laid entirely on one side.

M1r. Allen: That ought to have warned
You, I think.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: We
avoided ttie pit-fall.

Mrr. Willmott: You flopped into some-
thing else, though.

The MITNISTER FOR WORKS; We
avoided the pit-fall so far as the plans
arc concerned. r1 am merely bringing
forward the bridge plans for the pur-
pose of showing hon. members what
damiages would probably be awarded in
respect of the Wyadhaml Freezing, Works
plans if the matter went to arbitration
or inito court.

Mr. Willmott: You say that that is
whant MAr. Beasley meant when hie said
he had something at the back of his mind.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
do not know what is at the back of Air.
Beaslev's mind. Mir. Beasley stated not
they in evidence, hut also in a minute on

tefile, that he was confident that if those
plans which were valued by Nevanas at
about £9,000 were submitted to arbitra-
tion the Government would have to pay
considerably more than was actually paid
uinder the terms of the settlement.

Mir. George: Mr. Beasley also said that
they were not the plans which lie would
have expected for the sum paid.

The INISTER FOR WORKS: M1r.
Beasley said a lot more.

.Ar. Willmott: He also said that the
plans were not complete. That ic; the
point.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
will deal with that. It is true Mir. Beas-
Icy said the plans were not complete.
But hie went further. He said that they
were not complete up to our Government
rtandard. Let mue refer to the evidence
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of Mr. Dunkerley. commencing with ques-
tion 97-

By 'Mr. "Muilany: Were these plans
so far finis;hed that work could be
completed to them -Yes.

They were not merely skeleton plans?
-No. Mr. Beasley can tell you they
contained every detail he asked for.
And, mind you, we were in a. hostile
ieamp. TChey made us supply everything
they thought necessary.

By the, Chairman: T[le planis axe
Com-Plete?-In every detail.

I will now turn to M.%r. Beasley's evidene,
cornmencing- with question 369-

By Mr. Munsie: Have these plans
since been completed 7-No,

it thie Chairman: Arc they not com-
pleted yet 7-No.

Arc they- going to complete theml
-1' do not think so. We are making-
utir own drawings, and arc adding ourL
own improvements to these drawings.
,I shall he pleased to show you the dif-
ferece bet ween their drawings and
ours,. N evanais & Co. have been piaid
for the drawings of plans at the ratte
otf 3 per cent.

I shall ask you something about that
later on. These plans are, so far as we
are concerned prean mably complete.
Y.ou, however, have definitely stated
that these plans are not complete even
now?-They are not complete eveni
now'. When You say "complete" in re-
gard to plans you are speaking in gen-
eral terms 1. supposel These plans
may be considered to be "complete"
for the purpose for which they were
prepared, hut they are not complete by
any means for the purposes for which
T require them; that is to say for my
supervisor to take themn and see the
work carried out.
Mr. George: That is. bow they should

have been.
Mr. Heitmann: There would have been

supervision over Nevanas, would there
notI

The AMSTER. FOR WORKS:- That
was the intention. I 'wilt quote further
evidence given by '.%r. Beasley, question
152.5. when the Chairman asked]-

in answering Question 373 soil say
awar tik they would be able to get an

aadif they could prove that the
plans were equal to ordinary working
drawings and specifications; in answer
to quest ion 367 yon told Its the plans
and specifications were very loose and
indefinite. Do YOLL consider the plans
they produced were equal to Ordinary
working drawinrgs and specifications?
-They were equal to the average
drawings9 and specifications prepared
by priv-ate architects.

Mr. Wiillmott: Yes, but what does he
say then ? He says that plans drawn
by private architects are very loose and
indefinite. I do not know what private
architects have to say to that.

The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS: We
llknow that as regards Government

plans-tie member for Katanning (Mir.
Thomson) will bcar me out-a good deal
wnore care is; taken and far more details
are given than is the case in connection
with lplans prepared by private archi-
tects.

MTr. Thomnson: I would not suggest for
a moment that the plans of private archi-
tedsq are indefinitely and loosely drawn.

The AMSTER FOR WORKS: That
is from the Government officer's point
of view. I wish to show that the plans
prepared for the Wynidhamn Freezing
Works were equal to the average draw-
ings and specifications prepared by pri-
vate architects.

-Mr. George: Then I say you bad no
right to pay for them witbout getting the
proper plans required for the works.

The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
do not wrant to be drawn off the track.
The agreement entered into with Xe-
vnnas definitely and clearly provided
thint the plans had to be to the approval
of the Chief Architect.

Mr. Georg-e: Exactly: and they were
not.

The MIP\iSTER FOR WORKS: That
is., as reg-ards carry' ing out the works.
The Chief Architect came to the conclu-
sion that these plans were all that was
necessar ' for earning'2 out the works in
the ordinary manner, but that theyv were
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equal to tile average p~lans prepared by
private architects. That being so, I con-
sider the Chief Architect was quite justi-
fled in paying the commission for the pre-
paraition of the plans, namely, a commis-
sion of 3 per cent., because we were going
on with the works as proposed. I men-
tioned earlier that the member for Mur-
ray-Wellington brought some plans here
and said to the House, "Here is a bit of
brown paper, and here is a bit of a pencil
sketch, anti here is a blue print," thereby
trying to convey to hon. members, and]
also to the countiry-because a good deal
has been made of this in the Press-
that the plans lie produced were those for
which we paid Nevainas £4,000. He did
say, "Fifteen hundred pounds was paid
for these," hut he conveyed the idea that
this was the class of plan the Government
paid for throughout.

.Mr. George: No.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: As

I said earlier, the plans produced by the
member for Murray-Wellington repre-
sent only a part of the undertaking. I
have here with rne-and I intend to lay
them on the Table of the House-two sets
of plans prepared by Mr. Nevanias for
the works. The first set contains the ori-
ginal plans, and the second set thle
amended plans. Hon. members can look
over the plns, and if they do so I think
they can come, to only one conclusion,
and that is that the man who prepared
the plans must have been thoroughly
qualified for the work, must have had
knowledge and ability, and that they' are
plans equal to any prepared for the con-
struction of any works ever carried out.

Mr. Willmott: That was flunkerley.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: No.

These plans are the result of Mr. Ne-
vanas's knowledge and ability. It is true
that the whole of the details were not
comp~lete, but T might sy that there is
scarcely a building, or anl engineering
work, in regard to which the plans are at
the outset in a complete state. Holl.
members who know anything at all about
these matters will agree with me in that
respect. Even the details of the new
post office at the present time, the con-
tract for which has been let for nearly

two years, are not complete, and thle
chief architect is continually making al-
terations. 1 have here the plans of the
freezing- works, not merely pencil
sketches, but proper detailed plans, plans
which would enable the work to be car-
ried out to a completion. These plans
should have been taken in conjunction
wvith the other plans submitted by the hon.
member, and which were only for a
minor portion of the work.

Air. George: You paid £3,00,0 for
(hose and] £1,500 for the others.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
plans are altogether; wye cannot divide
them. Thle contract for carrying out this
work was £155,150 and that was the only
price which was submitted. It is true
that in connection with the work it might
have been found that this would cost so
much and that would cost so much, but
we cannot get awvay from the fact that
the contract price was £155,150 for the
whole of the work with the exception of
the jetty.

Mr. George: And you paid 3 per centi.
on that.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
hon. member is trying to lead the House
astray in regard to that.

Mr. George: It is in Mr. Scaddan's
telegram.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
Premier stated that the cost of the work
was not to exceed £106,000. According
to the evidence this matter was referred
to Mr. Dunkerley, wvho said it would be
impossible to keel) the price down to
that amount. The lion, member cannot
find a word of evidence, or any paper,
which sets out that the Government
should only Pay the percentage onl
E106,000.

Mr. George: I can find it in three
papers.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
lion, member cannot find it stated that
the cost of the works would not exceed
£106,000. Here are the plans for hon.
members to Peruse and they are not merely
a few sketches wrapped up in brown
paper, but proper and complete drawings.

Mr. George: You paid £3,000 for them
and while that might have teen justified.
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you were not justified in paying £1,500
for the others.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS:
Trhese plans are as complete as plans
wich couild be supplied by any archi-
tect.

Mr. George: "Who prepared the plans?

Thbe MPIiSTER FOR WORKS: They
were submitted by Mr. Nevanas; they
are the plans hie supplied. Here are the
detailed drawings and the original set of
planis and specifications. Hon. members
will see that these plans must be taken
in conjunction with the other plans,
which the member for "Murrayv-Welling-
ion lial the goodness of heart to show to
ii heRouse the other da 'y. Those plans
wiitih lie exhibited had Very little work in
themn. Hon. members who are familiar
with plans know that there is very little
to do in connection with plans for water
supplies. What was the hon. member's
idea in bringing those plants here, ex-
cept to show that there was Very little
wrork entailed in their lprep-aration9

Mr. G;eorgze: I hrought them here be-
cause 1 contend you had no right to pay
him anything on them.

The MINSTER FOP, WORKS: If
the hotn, member himself had prepared

!foeplans and tendered for the work
othem, plains which included the water

supply, and which did not involve much
labour, hie would have expected and would
have demanded 3 per centt.

Mr, George: I would deserve to he
kicked from here to Hades if I had.

The MPIiSTER FOR WVORK--S:
There is no architect who would not have
made a similar demand.

Mr. George: Look at the strap; do you
expect that that would hold pipes down?

The MINXISTER FOR WORKS: It
has been clearly and conclusively shown
that nothing wrong has been done in
connection with the payment for these
plans which I have just shown to hon.
members-. On similar plans to these the
Government used to pay no less than
65 per cent., and 1 maintain that the chief
architect was in no way to blame when
hie, on his own initiative, recommended
that the Government were entitled to pay

oiltthe full amiount of the plans and in
regard to the total cost of the work.

Mr. Willmort: Re had something at
' lie back of his head.

The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS: Arbi-
(ration.

M r. George: He said that something
evdnl hap)pen ed.

TeMINISTER FOR WORKS: In
dealing with the payment for the plans,
the tGo~eriuent were obliged to give the
full amiount onl the total estimated cost
of the work. No doubt the member for
M urrav-Wellingtoa came to the conclu-
Sion that we should only pay on El06,0l00
because when the first recommendation
was, put up1 by (hie chief architect, %NIr-
Nevanits only claimed on £106,000. That
recommendation was submitted to me as
well as a demand for £6,500 by way of
compensaition for breach of contract,.
shall ] sa y, or for the material.

Mr. George: Do you muean for the ship 9
The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS: W"'e

will deal with the ship directly.
Mr. George: Where does the breach of

contract come in, then?
The MINI\STER FOR WORKS: I

remarked, shall I call it "breach of con-
tract"? The position -was that when the
claim was submitted to me I refused
definitely to submit it to Cabinet. I
realise that we were justly bound-and
with all due respect to my friend opposite
-to pay 3 per cent, on the agreement on
thle basis of £106,000. 1 never disputed
that, because I believed, onl the wording
of the telegram, that we would be justi-
fied in paying it. I refused, however,
to recommend for payment the £6,500.
Mr. Nevanas then camne to see me about
it and I told him that I would not put
such a proposition before Cabinet, and
that it was entirely finished so far as we
were concerned. When we went out of
myv office, I had refused point blank to
make any recommendation in regard to
that amount, though I had pxeviously
promised that I would submit to Cabinet
any recommendation from Mr. Beasley
which was within reason. After that Mr.
Nevanas came to me with a long list-
it is published on page 65 of the select
committee's report-a list of wxhat he
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thought he was entitled to for the plans.
The total is £9,000. He asked that the
matter should be submitted to arbitration.
[ told him I did not feel inclined to deal
with the matter at all and that my opinion
was that he was entitled to 3 per cent,
but 1 did not say on £155,000. I did not
think his proposition of £6,500 was a fair
one and I would not agree to it. After-
wards he interviewed Mr. Beasley, who
went into the question with mee again,
and the demand was made by Mr. Nev-
anms that the matter should be referred
to arbitration. It was considered that if
the matter did go to arbitration, in all
probability he would get a big percentage
of what be claimed, and it was considered
better to pay 3 per cent, on the whole cost
of the work. That was what Mr. Beasley
said in his evidence. Mr. Beasley dis-
tinctly stated he was convinced that MAr.
Nevanas could claim on the full cost of
the works. He then recommended the
payment on £155,150 instead of the
£6,000 previously mentioned.

Hon. Frank Wilson: How could lie
claim, in any court more than he had
agreed to accept!9

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
settlement of the one claim was depen-
dent on that of the other. The one went
with the other. His claim was for £6,500,
if I paid him £C6,500 compensation, which
I declined to do. Instead of paying him
what he asked, I paid him somne £1,200
or £1,500 less, and thus I saved the couin-
try so much by my refusal. It has been
said that in taking over this material
from Mr. Nevanas, the State made a very
bad deal indeed. With the exception of
Mr. Dankerley's evidence, no questions
were asked in regard to the value of this
material.

ONTr. Willmott: Oh yes, there were.

The MINI STER FOR WORK S: I
know that the hon. member asked about
one particular item, but I believe that
has been worked out. There is a definite
minute to the effect that if, intending to
go on with the work, the Government
had taken over that material on the 1st
July, they would have to pay approxi-

mately £13,000 more than Nevanas had
paid 'for it.

Mr. George: Nevanas did not pay any-
thing.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: In
his; evidence, Mr. Dunkerley confirmed
that, except that he named £12,000 as the
amounat.

Hon. J. Mitchell: If you had bought it
earlier you would have saved more still.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
hon. member knows that the Government
would not have adopted tactics for re-
ducing prices. The position was that here
was a possibility of a claim being made
in regard to the "Prinz Sigismund."
The MAinister for Land;, when dealing
with this question in the House on a pre-
vious occasion, unfortunately named Mr.
Stevens instead of Mr. Sayer, as having
been present at a conference called to
consider the question of the "Prinz Sigis-
mund."

Mr. George: He said he had consulted
the State Steamship Service officials.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: He
made an error. It was Mr. Sayer, and
not Mr. Stevens, who was present at the
conference dealing with the question o)f
damaruges.

Mr. George: How could Mr. Sayer coin-
pute the damages I

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: He
could give ns legal advice. When we de-
cided to recover the "Prinz Sigismnund,"
we did it with our eyes open, and we
were justified in doing it. Realising
that the "Western Australia", was a los-
ing proposition, we were trying to sell
that vessel. Mr. Stevens heard of the
"Prinz Sigismund" as being at Brisbane,
and he thought she might be suitable for
the North-West trade in place of the
"Western Australia." Officers were
sent to report on the "Prinz Sigis-
mund."1 As a matter of fact I
went to see her myself when I was
there, end I formed the opinion that she
was rather large for our pnrpose, On
the report of his officers, Mr. Stevens
concluded that she -would not be suit-
able for the North-West trade, but eon-
cluded also that she might suit well enough
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to temporarily replace the "Western Aus-
tralia" in the event of our selling the
latter vessel, He would not purchase
the "Prinz Sigismund" for the North-
West trade, but he thought that if the
Government could get hold of her she
mighbt be utilised temporarily. The Gov-
ernment got control of the ship. Then
we had two vessels, where only one was
required. We wired to Mfr. Nevanas ex-
plaining that lie could use the "Prinz
Sigismund" for carrying his material to
Wyndham, but not to run her in inter-
State trade.

Mr. George: You handed tile boat en-
tirelv over to him.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: No;
nicrel , to carry his material to Wynd-
111m.

N .Ir. Willmott: Would hie have paid
£4,000 to renovate the boat simply for
thlat purpose?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: That
was all lie had her for.

_1r. George: He had her uncondition-
2113'.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Does
the hon. member think the Common-
wealth Government would hand over a
steamer to us that we might interfere
with inter-State trade?

Mr. Geore: He was to use her for
any purpose he liked, in addition to ear-
rvying his material to the North-West.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS:
Nothing of the sort. The steamer was
eventually placed at the disposal of Mr.
Nevanas to assist him ia getting his ma-
terial to Wyndham. In the terms of the
contract which Mir. Nevanas submitted,
but which was not approved of, he asked
the Rtate to supply' him with freight at
30s. a ton; h ut we would not take any
liability in regard to freight at all. Ev en-
tually a cable message came from Lon-
don advising us to send the "Western
Australia" to England, there being a pos-
sibility of getting a good price 'for her.

Mry. George: I thought yooi had a firm
offer.

The MIINISTER FOR WORKS: I
never said so. We saw that there was a
possibility of geCtting- rid. of the "West-

emn Australia," which was losin £17,000
or L18,400 a year. Then we got Mr.
Sayer up to discuss the proposition. We
wanted to know from Mir. Sayer whether
the wire to -Mr. Nevanas was a binding
contract. He told us that it was, and we
asked could Mir. Sayer give us any idea
of what damages it was likely we would
have to pay if we were to take the
steamer from Nevanas. Mr. Sayer, ad-
vised us that we would have to pay only
such damages as Mr. Nevanas could sus-
tain, in other words, if he could get the
material to the North-West at such a
time and in such a manner as did not
interfere with his work, there might be
no damages to pay at all; whereas, on
the other hand, the damages might run
up to £4,000 or £5,000.

Mr. Heitmaun: Mir. Nicholson, in his
evidence, says something very different
from that.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: lam
telling you what occurred. With our
eyes open we decided that it would be
profitable for us to pay the damages
named if only we could sell the "Western
Australia," and thus save £17,000 or
£18,000 a year. I still maintain that we
were justified in taking that course. The
hion. member said the other day-

I would like to state here that pro-
vided all other things were equal-

I am glad he thought of the qualification.
He continued-

and that Nevanas was financially cap-
able of carrying on the business, I am
of opintion-I do not know if it is
shared in by any other members of the
committee--that had the "Prinz Sigis-
mund" not been taken over by the
Government the contract would now be
on its fair way towards completion, at
any rate on a fair way to being car-
ried on.
Hon. Frank Wilson: The committee

reported that.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Im-

mediately it was decided to take the
"Prinz Sigismund" from 'Mr. Nevanas,
we went into the question of assisting
him in the shipping, and we ascertained
that there was a possibility of other ships
following on, which would thus save Mr.
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Nevanas from any great ditheulty in re-
gard to the forwarding of his material;
in other words, there was a good chance
of our escaping the payment of anything
like heavy damages to Mr. Navanas in
consequence of our having taken the boat
The hon. member went on to say-

It is not to be supposed that in the
p~resent scarcity of shipping which ex-
ists all round Australia, it would be
p~ossible for Mr. Nevanas, at a mo-
ment's notice, to revise his plans, and
attempt to get another ship, the impos-
sihility of doing which was wvell known.

M1r. Nevanas had got into communication
with the Adelaide Steaimship Company,
and brought over all the material he had
there. Only two weeks had elapsed, the
contract wvas not signed, no bonds were
put lip, plans were not prepared to the
satisfaction of the Chief Architect-

Mr. George: But you haed your con-
tract for the ship.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: And
the view I -held then, and which I hold
now, is that no material at all for the
works should have been purchased at
that time. Only about two weeks had
elapsed from the time he was given the
sip until she was taken away. The ship
waes never in his possession at all. She
was then in Brisbane.

Mr. George: What do you call pos-
session ?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS
Hie had not been shipping his material.

Mr. Willmott: Surely it was in his pos-
session immediately be received your
wire.

The MINISTER FOR WV1ORKS: No,
when he paid tile accounts for fitting her
out. He then tried to get a ship from
the Adelaide Steamship Co., and he
found that the "Allinga"P could be char-
tered for a trip to Wy)ndham. He inter-
viewved me about it and p~ointed out the
"Allinga" was available, hut he wanted
mae to make the charter. I stated that
I would not pay another shilling in re-
gard to the contract until the contract
wvas signed and fixed up.

Mr. George: You were all right; thert
is no doubt about that.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Ilam
pointing this out to show the hon. mem-
ber that the "Prinz Sigismund" affair
did not delay the work. This material
wvas brought here by the "Prinz Signs-
mund" and if Nevanas had felt disposed,
lie could have chartered the "Allinga" to
take it oil to Wyndham, together with
the material he had here.

Mr. George: At what cost?
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The

cost was reasonable. I cannot mention it,
but lie said he had got the offer of the
charter at a iecry reasonable price. The
trouble was he wanted me to make the
charter.

Hon. Frank Wilson: What constitui-
ted the breach of contract you were
afraid of-let us get dowvn to tile fact-
what the Premier wias afraid of?

]\r. George: He wvas perturbed.
Hon. Frank Wilson: He said hie wvas

nervous about it.
The MINISTER FOR 'WORKS: Ne-

vanas could have got his material on to
Wyndham if lie had so desired. The ma-
terial was landed at Fremantle.

Hon. Frank Wilson: If he had paid
sufficient, of course lie could have got it
oil.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: If
he could have shown that it cost him
more than under the previous arrange-
ment, that would have constituted the
breach of contract.

Hon. Frank Wilson: He could have
bought your Diesel engine ship.

The M1INISTER FOR WORKS: That
statement is incorrect, and if the rules of
the House would allowv me, I would say
something stronger. Nevanas has never
bought a Diesel engine ship.

Eton. Frank Wilson: I mean he could
have bought a Diesel ship if he had paid
sulficient for it.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: If
Nevanas had chartered the "Allinga" and
had had. to pay a heavier rate for the car-
riage of his material to Wyndham than
under the other arrangement, the Gov-
ernment wvould have been liable for dam-
ages. But we realised that we had an
olpportunity to sell a steamer which was
not suitable for our work, and which was
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making a large loss every year, and was
not it much better to risk having to pay a
smnall sum by way of damages than to
continue to make an annual loss as we
were doing?

Hon. Frank Wilson: And you have
not sold her.

Mr. Bolton: You are praying tha we
do not sell her.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: That
does not enter into the question now be-
fore the House. I am showing that Ne-
vanas was confronted by very little dif-
ficulty, so far as the shipping was con-
cerned, and I do not think we would have
had to pay a great amount of damages
if Nevanas had availed himself of the
"Allinga-."

Mfr. George: Then you had no cause
to compensate him for breach of con-
tract.

The MINIPSTER FOR WORKS: Yes,
we had. Things went on from one stage
to another. Not only did Nevanas call
on us to pay for the charter of the
"Allinga" but he wanted us to take up
the £147000 worth of goods lying at Fre-
mantle.

Mr. Heitmann: That is extraordinary
from a financial genius who came to you
to do business. He ntever paid a shilling
from the time be came into the State.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
have listened very patiently to the inter-
jections from the member for Geraldtoa,
and have not repli 'ed to any one of them,
hut I wish to say that, with due respect
to Mr. Nevanas, who is not here to pro-
tect himself--

Hon. Frank Wilson: He ought to be
here.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
lion. member has never met Mr. Nevanas;
he has never seen him.

Mr. Heitmann: He refused to pay the
Government £45 for faxes from the
North-West.

The MTNIMSTER FOR WORKS: The
hon. member knows nothing about him.

Mnr Allen: He evidently does know
something.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
have formed an opinion, rightly or

wrongly, as to why Nevanas was not
able to finance the business. To my
mind there is no doubt that, in the finan-
cial world, Nevanas is a man of repute.

Mr. Heitcnann : Hie was a man of
mud.

The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS: We
hare it that he has made contracts to the
value of £60,000 odd, which sliows that
the. persons who entered into contracts
with him had confidence with him,

Mr. Heitmanii: Why, you refused to
release the goods. He was an agent for
the Government.

The -MINISTER FOR WORKS: We
must bear in mind that Nevanas was en-
gaged ina the meat trade.

31r. Heitmann: In the orange-squeez-
ing trade.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: And
there is a possibility that when he under-
took this work, which was not in the
line of buisiness in which he had been
engaged, the banks would not assist him
as they would w-hen he engaged in his
legitimate business--the meat trade.

Mr. George: None of his bankers
would.

The 'MINISTER FOR WORKS: No.
This is the opinion I have formed.
Nevana-s then found himself against a
dead end, juist when he expected assist-
ance to carry ant the work.

Mr. Heitmann: What was the capital
of these eoznpanies9

The MINISTER FOR WORKS' I
have nothing to do with the companies.
I think the bon. member's interjections
about this man, who is outside this House
and cannot speak for himself, are un-
called for, and unfair. I believe that had
the amount of money involved ii, this
con tract been required for the meat trade,
NTevanss would have been able to over-
come the difficulty. To get back to the
point, we cancelled the contract for
the "Prinz Sigismund" with our eyes
open to save an annual loss with regard
to the "Western Australia." It was pos-
sible that we would have to pay some
damages to Nevanas for breach of con-
tract. At that time we had no intention
of cancelling- the contract for the works;
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this matter had not then come uip for
consideration at all. We realised that 'we
might have to pay some small amount of
compensation in regard to thle steamer,
but when we found that we could not
bring things to a definite head, and did
not get the plans or the bond, and had to
pay for the material as it arrived here,
and when an alteration of the conditions
for carrying out the contract was sought,
we thought it advisable that the contract
should be cancelled.

Mr. George: Why did you have to pa 'y
for the material! 7You did not buy it;
it was not your funeral.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Was
paid for this material because, on the ad-
vice of our officers, we were getting
£13,000 worth for £E3,194.

AMr, George: Prior to your having that,
you were paying for the material.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: For
only a small portion.

Mr, George: Several thousand pounds'
worth.

The MINISTER FOR WOMhS: No,
I paid for only £3,000 worth.

Mr. George:- You paid amounts of
£1,500. £500, £2,300 and,. I think, another
£C1,800.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
am being cross-examined here wore than
1, -was before the select committee. Up
to that time, we had paid only two ac-
counts, one for some iron which was on
the wharf at Melbourne, and another for
material here, £500, which was to come
off the price for the plans. There was
60 tons of iron on the wharf at Mel-
bourne which we took uip and which
otherwise would have been sent back to
the stores-iron in the meantime had
gone up in price--and we were holding
the invoices and had security. In view
of the definite report from the Chief
Architect,' seeing that 'we were likely to
escape the payment of any compensation
in regard to the "Primz Sigimund" and
as we were getting £13,000 worth of ma-
terial for £3,194, I maintain that we did
well to get out the contract at the price.
It is all very well to talk about the plans
and to say that we paid for them. It is

truie that Nevanas was paid £1,000 to re-
port on the site of the works. That wam
a separate and distinct undertaking. He
was paid 3 per cent. for drawing up the
plans, which is the usual rate paid to the
architects in this Stare. If he had super-
vised the erection of the works , he would
have been entitled to at least another 2
per cent. The Government get 3 per
cent. additional. Then he bought the ma-
terial at advantageons prices; he got it
before the prices advanced, and the same
aplplies to the machinery. On the advice
of our Chief Architect, who is carrying
out thousands of pounds worth of work
every week and who should be better able
than any member of this H-ouse to value
suich material, we bought this material
because he said at that time it would cost
£C13,000.

Hon. Frank Wilson: Yet lie said he
could not check the stuff.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: He
said nothing of the kind.

Rion. Prank Wilson : He said he had
not time.

Mr. George: That is in his own letter.

The MINISTER FOR WOUKS: He
said nothing of the kind.

Hon, J. -Mitchell:, Do not he ton posi-
tive.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I am
positive of that. The Chief Architect
was never tied down to time. He could
have taken as long as he liked; no time
was mentioned, and he came to the con-
clusion, after an examination of the in-
voices and after deducting all discounts,
that the material was worth £13.000. For
that £1I3,000 worth of material, I gave
£3,194 and that is all the compensation
Nevanas ever got. I maintain that the
cancellation of the contract meant a gain
to the State because we wanted the ma-
terial and we were placed in a position
of being able to immediately proceed
with the works which other-wise we could
not have done. The hon. member for
Murray-Wellington went into the ques-
tion of the management of the works,
and I notice that Hansaird records his re-
marks in not quite the same terms as he
expressed them. As far as my memory
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serves ae. the hoii, member said: "There
is ain agreement upon which, if an agree-
nment of terms could be arranged,
Nevanas would have the management."
I interjected at the time: "Could there be
an agreement if they had not been
agreed to?" The lion. member, to sup-
port his contention that an agreement
had been entered into with Nevanas for
the management of the works, quoted
Mrt. Dunkericy. We find from Mr.
Dunkerley that one of Mr, Nevanas's.
officers had made a statement to him
(Mr. Dhukerley), and not to Nevanas
himself.

Mr. George: That is right.

The M1INISTER FOR XVOR.KS: Then
he quoted myself in regard to the matter.
The hon. member was aware of the posi-
tion, when he questioned Mr. Nevanas's
solicitor on the subject on all point;,
that if there was, one point upon which
Arr. Nicholson should have been an au-
thority, and should have had knowledge,
it should have been on this one. Yet
in questions 2033 and 2034 the fol-
lowing transpired between the Chairman
of the Committee and Mr. John Nichol-
Son:

Have you any reason to suppose that
Nevanas considered hie was to have the
management of those works 7-I do not
think he dlid until an agreement had
been concluded.

In your opinion the whole matter is
off -I think so. I do not think Ncr-
anas considers he has any claim at all
in regard to the management.

[The Speaker resumed the Chair.]

Mr. George: That is right.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: It

ought to be quite sufficient for the hon.
member to get a statement of this sort
from 'Mr. Neranas's solicitor.

Mr. Mullany: You cannot satisfy a
man if he does not want to be satisfied.

The IIINISTER FOR WORKS: This
is; the solicitor who was instrumental in
drawing up the draft agreement on behalf
o f Nevanas. who w'as advising Nevanas
in regoard to every clause or section of that

agreement, and who tells the bon. member
that there is no agreement signed. There
is no agreement entered into, and yet the
hon. member comes here and tries to per-
suadle the House that an agreement is in
existence.

M1r. tGcorge: 1 say an agreement to give
him the management on terms to he agreed
upon.

The Minister for Mines: An agreement
to make an agreement.

Hon. Frank Wilson: The court can
make you make an agreement.

The -MINYISTER FOR WORKS: I
have at the present time in my office a
draft agreement with -Mr. Hedges for run-
ning- a feeder line, which is being eon sid-
ered by Mr. Hedges, Mr, Sayer, and Mrt.
Munt. There is not a single member of
the Ministry besides myself who has seen
this draft agreement, but according to the
hon. member that is an agreement which
we have entered into.

H-on. Frank Wilson:- No, no.
Afr. George: Nothing of the sort; that

is not fly argument.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I

took good care when writing a minute
to the Premier which was to go on to the
Commissioner of Railways for the opinion
of that gentleman-

Mr. Hudson: For once the member for
Murray-Wellington appeared to be right.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: To
put down in that minute that I wished to
emphasise the fact that this was a draft
agreement.

Mr. George: Quite right.
The M1INISTER FOR WORKS: So

that in the future no one could say, as
has been said in the past, that this could
be termed an agreement made without any
member of the Ministry seeing it. Noth-
ing can be termed an agreement until the
parties concerned have agreed to it.
What is the position so far as this agree-
ment is concerned3A Wyndham is situated
some considerable distance from the cen-
tre of population in the State. In my
opinion it will be necessary for the proper
management of the Wyndham Freezing
Works that they should he handed over
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to some person who thoroughly under-
stands the meat trade.

Mr. Heitmann: Look at the Agricul-
tural] Implement Works.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: They
are entirely different,

Mr. Heitmann: I hope the Government
will make a better agreement than they
made in that ease.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: We
have the Agricultural Implement Works
under our eye, though I admit we did
not make a very good job of them. The
Wyndhamn Freezing Works, however,
wvili be situated in a place where we can-
not see them. We have the overseas
trade to contend with and we must have
someone in control of them who possesses
a knowledge of the overseas meat trade.
That being so, Nevanas did approach us
as to whether he could not work them
under our control,' with safeguards for
the protection of Western Australia in
regard to meat supply, and submitted a
draft agreement. That draft agreement
was considered by the members of the
Ministry in conjunction with Mr. Sayer,
and certain alterations were suggested.
Mr. Sayer took it away with a view to
making another draft agreement for fur-
ther consideration. From that time up
to the present I have never set eyes on
that second draft agreement.

Mr. George: Mr. Sayer gives very dif-
ferent evidence.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: We
are not afraid of any person knowing
what we do in Cabinet, because
everything -we do there is fair and
above board. After we discussed
this draft agreement we decided
that as the Premier was. visiting
the Eastern States he could make
inquiries over there from the South Aus-
tralian Government,' or any other persons
who knew anything about the financial
position and the methods that should be
employed for turning out the works on
the most payable basis, and that nothing
further was to he done until the Premier's
return. But hon. members know that im-
mediately the Preniier reached Mfelbourne

hie was taken ill, and nothing was done
in regard to the matter.

Mx. George: Exactly.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: And
yet the hon. member comes here and says
that he has Mr. Dunkerley's evidence
that Mr. Nevanas's secretary told him so
and so ! He disputes my words, and
practically goes as far as to suggest that
what we say is a lie.

Mr, George: I have not done so.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: We

had Mr. Nicholson's statement that no
agreement was entered into, and that he
was of opinion that M1r. Nevanas had not
enteredl into anl agreement. Notwithstand-
ing this the hon. member tries to per-
suade the House that there is an agree-
ment.

The Minister for MNines: The motion
says there is an agee 'ment.

Mr. George: I could only go by what
is on thle file. There is an agreement on
thle file.

The Minister for Mines: The motion
says an agreement was made.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: There
has been no agreement entered into .

The Minister for Mines: I say there is
no agreement. There is nothing on the
file to justify the wording of the motion.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: There
has been no agreement entered into with
Nevanas or anyone else for the manage-
ment of the works, but there was a draft
agreement under consideration which, as
the hon. member says, was not cons un-
mated.

Mr. George: It was signed by Mr.
Scaddan and Nevanaa. Look at the file.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS:
There was no agreement in regard to
Nevanas. The bon. member was quite
right in saying that there was an agree-
ment upon which, if an agreement as to
terms could he arranged, Nevanas would
have the management, but an agreement
as to terms was never arranged, and con-
sequently Nevanas did not have the man-
agement.

Mr. George: That is not so.
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The N1INISTER FOR WORKS: I
took this remark down word for word
as the hon. member tittered it.

Mr. George: I said there was an agree-
ment to give him the management the
terms of which were to be agreed upon.

The Minister for -Mines: The motion
says there is an agreement.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
will admit that it is not in Hansard, but
we know that there is a possibility some-
times of reviewing ourselves. I am not
going to say that the bon. member's
slpeeeh has been altered.

Mr. George: On a point of order. If
Hfansard has the revised report of may
speech I ask- that it should be producedl.

Mr. SPEAKER: What is the point of
order?~

Mr. George: The Minister for Works
has made the assertion that we know
that speeches can be revised, and he is
suggesting that I have so revised my
speech as to make use of words different
to those which I delivered. I ask that
the original draft of my speech should
be produced.

Mfr. SPEAKER: The hon. member is
not stating any point of order, therefore
I am unable to determine what it is.
The -only point of order concerned on
this occasion is found under Standing
Order 136, which states that no hon.
member shall interrupt another hon.
member while speaking.

Mr. George: I did not rise to that
point of order. The Minister for Works
in speaking suggested that my speech as
reported by Hansard has been so altered
as to convey a meaning different from
that which I did convey. I am satisfied
that the hon. gentleman does not wish to
say anything unfair, hut he is asking the
Rouse to draw that inference. I desire
that Hansard should be requested to pro-
duce the revised speech.

Mr. SPEAKER: I cannot ask Hansard
to do that.

M,%r. Hudson: We have heard enough
from the hon. member without having
this done.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
took down the words at the time. Any-

way, I will say that I am wrong and that
Hansard is right.

Mr. George: I am not aware of having
made anyv alterations.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
hon. member has admitted at any rate
that it was a draft agreement, and was
not an agreement at all. I think that
clears the Government.

Mr. George; I have never said there
was a draft agreement.

The -MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
say there is no agreement in connection
with the management of the works. There
is one matter which I had thought of
leaving to the Minister for Lent but
have decided not to allow the occasion
to go by without making a reference to
it. I am speaking of the two letters
which the hon. member had so much to
say about when dealing with the motion,
namely, the letters of the 26th and 27th
March, which Nevanas says be handed
to the Minister for Lands (Hon. W. D.
Johnson) and which the 'Minister for
Lands states he never saw. On the first
occasion when Nevimas drew my atten-
tion to these letters I went thoroughly
into the matter. Not only did. the Minis-
ter for Lands look all over the office for
the purpose of ascertaining if possible
the whereabouts of these letters, but ques-
tioned very closely his clerks in regard to
the matter. The position was that no
such letters could be found. Later on
.1r. Nevanas again referred mue to these
letters. My impression was that they
did not exist, hut he said, "I will send
You a copy of them." This, he did. I
am not for one moment going to say that
Nevanas did not write these letters. We
have M.%r. Nicholson's evidence that he
saw one of them. These letters were
written on a Saturday. Is it not pos-
sible that Mfr. Nevanas neglected to
deliver them ?

Mr. George: One was written on a
Friday and the other on a Saturday.

The M1INISTER FOR WORKS: Even
if one of the letters was written on a
Friday is it not possible that he ne-
glected. to deliver it? There is no evi-
dence anywhere ev-en from Mfr. 'Nevanas
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himself, so far as I am concerned, at
any rate, when I discussed the matter
with him that this contract was ever ac-
cepted until such time as Cabinet had
dealt with it. Hon. members know that
I was out of the State. I questioned
Mr. Nevanas and said, "I cannot under-
stand you ordering the stuff until a con-
tract was properly fixed up." He replied,
"Mr. Johnson told me verbally." I am
not accusing Mr. Nevanna of fraud, as
the hon. member states it would be if
these letters were not sent in, because I
maintain that it is possible that Mr. Ne-
vanas was uinder the impression after
consultation with the officers that he was
likely to get the job on account of the
price, and that as hie was leaving the
State he had written the letters but ne-
glected to hand them in.

Mr. George: He does not say so in his
telegram from New Zealand.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
questioned Mr. Munt about this. It ap-
pears that at one time Mr. Nevanas says
he handed one letter in and sent the
other. Now he says he handed both let-
ters in. I maintain that there was a mis-
understanding so far as these letters are
concerned.- There is a possibility that
Nevanas intended either to send in or
hand over the letters, but that he failed
to take either course. flow often has
almost everyone of us had letters to post
or deliver and forgotten to do so? M1r.
'Nevanas must have heard from the offi-
cers of the acceptance of the tender, and
being about to leave the State he must
have written the first letter. There was
to be a Cabinet meeting on the Satur-
day, and probably Mr. Nevanas thought
that the matter would be fixed up in
Cabinet. It was not.

Mr. George: Did he leave the Statel
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: No,

I do not think he did. 'He stayed here,
having missed the boat. This shows there
was a p~ossibility of his having written
those letters with the intention of sending
them in.

11r. Hcitmann: Why did he address
the letters to ".%r. Johnson?

The AfTNISTER FOR WORKS: Be-
cause Mr. Johnson, at this time, was

acting on my behalf, I being out of the
State. I am certainly of opinion that the
construction to be placed on those let-
ters is that Air. Nevanas has made an
error. No doubt his intention was to
deliver the first letter immediately he
was notified of the acceptance of his ten-
der by Cabinet. Similarly, his intention
no doubt was to deliver the second letter
when he found that Cabinet had not
dealt with the matter. He wrote those
letters, having placed himself in the posi-
tion of ordering material when he was
tinder the impression, derived from the
departmental officers,' that. he had got the
job. I cannot for the life of me think
that any letter would be delivered at
the office of a Government department
wvithout the under secretary, or some-
one, knowing of it.

Mr. George: flow do you explain the
contract for the pipes?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: That
is easily explained, I do not wish to
discuss the management of the State Im-
plement Works just now, but if the hon.
member knew the system then obtaining
at the works he would not require fur-
ther explanations. I do believe, however,
that the late manager of the implement
works merely intended to give Mr' Ne-
vanas a quotation. Mr. Nevanas, how-
ever, being a very clever business man,
accepted the quotation immediately it
was given. The letter regarding the
pipes, of a few days later, showed clearly
that Mr. Davies intended merely to give
a quotation.

Mr. George: He did not say that.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The

hon. member should read the letter. Only
a few dlays later M-r, Davies wrote that
if the Water Supply Department were
to test the pipes, he would want .10s. a
ton more. He also stated that hie had
made an error, and that if the price of
material went up he would want a cor-
responding increase. All this shows that
the late manager of the implement works
intended merely to give a quote.

Mr. George: But he ordered 1,000 tons
of pig iron to make the pipes.

The MIN\ISTER FORt WORKS: That
did not come until afterwards.
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.Mr. Willmott: Two days afterwards.

The 1UINISTER FOR WORKS: He
wired to Sydney about it. I have not
seen the papers dealing with the ordering
of the pig iron since they went to the
select committee. Mr. Munt, when his
attention was drawn to the matter, drew
his Minister's attention to it; and the
Minister then said, "Take no action until
Mr. Davies has seen me."l

Mr. George: Oh, no!

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Let
the hon. member read the papers and
see. I can only admit that the Govern-
ment have departed from the usual sys-
tem in letting the work. The Government
let the work by private contract instead
of calling for tenders publicly. Possibly
there might be some reason, or some
justification, for condemning the Govern-
ment on the score of such an action. I
do not say for one moment that I believe
in entering into private contracts as a
general principle. I do not think there
is any member on this side of the House
who agrees with the system of private
contracts. But when the Government had
their reseponsible officers-and several of
them at that-saying clearly and dis-
tinctly, "t is impossible for us to carry
out the work at the price submitted by
this person, and we recommend you to
accept his offer," when the Government
saw a possibility of ,saving the State
£50,000, were not the Government justi-
fled in entering into this private arrange-
mentq

Mr. Heitmaun: That saving of P.50,000
is an absolute bogey, and you know it.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I
do not know anything of the kind. It is
all very well for hon. members now-
when we bare found that things did not
turn out as anticipated, that the work
c-ould not he proceeded -with, that the
position was not -what we expected so
far as the contractor is, concerned-with
all these things before our eyes, to say,
"You might have acted differently." I
for one am sorry that the work is not
being carried out for a price of £155,000.
The saving to the country would he not

only £50,000, but nearer £80,000, as
against what the work is going to cost.

Mr. Heitmann: But you did not test
whether you were going to save money
by this arrangement or not. The fact
that another man was prepared to do
the work for £18,000 less than the Gov-
ernment were to pay Nevanas shows that
you did not test the position.

The MINISTER FOR WVORKS: By
toay address I have been endeavouring to
answer the very question the hon. mem-
ber is now asking, and repetition is not
allowed. I have already explained that
Nevanas's contract with Dunkerley was
tinder certain conditions. Freight was
not to exceed £7.000 in Dunkerley's case.
Again, Dunkerlev was to receive a bonus
of X7,000 if the work was completed
within a certain time. All these things
have to be taken into consideration. No
doubt, anyone can be wise after the event.
The position clearly is that if the Gov-
erment have done wrong in letting a
private contract, they have done wrong
because they endeavoured to save the
country a sum of at least £C50,000. It is
true that the letting of this private con-
tract is against the principles of the La-
bour party. Undoubtedly, all systems of
contract are against the lprinciples of the
party; not only private contracts, but
public contracts also. I do contend, how-
ever, that seeing the remoteness of WVynd-
ham, seeing the difficulties to be contended
with, seeing that there could not be the
same supervision as if the work were
being done near at hand], seeing that the
Glovernment have to rely almost entirely
on the subordinate officers sent to Wynd-
ham to car-v out the work, it wonld be
far better, in the interests of the State,
that this particular work should be car-
ried out by contract. That is my honest
opinion.

Mfr. Heitmann: I believe that, too.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: That
being so, I maintain that the Government.
relying on the advice of their officers,
were at the time fully justified in making
this endeavour to save the country a large
sum of money. I can only come hack to
the words I used at the opening of my re-
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marks, In moving his motion the muem-
her for Murray-Wellington said'-

Following through the files, it would he
found that Ministers, in their anxiety
to carry out what they considered
would be a good thing for the State,
tried to push the negotiations through
as quickly as possible.

And then the hion. member went on to
say he was not going to find fault with
Ministers for having done so. The whole
position is one of party instead of one
of principle. To my mind there is no
doubt that, had bon. members opposite
been in power, they would have jumped
at the offer which the present Govern-
ment accepted; and there are very few
persona in the State who would have
blamed those lion. members for doing
so. To my mind there is no doubt
that the attack which has been made on
Ministers over this transaction has been
a purely personal one. I am not refer-
ring, in this connection, to the member
for Murray-Wellington. The attack which
has been made on my colleagues is the
result of personal animosity, and it did
not originate with this Wyndhamn
business.

Mr. George: Whom are you charging
with this?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: 1
have said that I do not refer to the memn-
her for M.urray-Wellington. But certain
members of the select committee were
looking- for something behind the scenes.
They thought that some Minister, or
Ministers, had reaped pecuniary benefit
from the letting of this contract. Why,
it must have heen almost a pleasure-I
should have enjoyed it almost as much
as going- to the theatre-do see their eyes
glozing, when Mr. J. C. Davies sent M11.
Courthope before the committee. How
their blood would tingle when they
thought they at last bad something that
they could lay against the Government!
It has been alleged broadcast through
Perth that Ministers are dishonest, that
Ministers are robbing the State day after
day.

Air. George: Are you charging that
against the select committee!

The MINXISTER FOR WORKS: No.
But I cannot get it out of my thoughts
Ithat those statements which have been
made in the tramecars. and in the public
streets-statements which Mr. John Nich-
olson termed slanderous and disgraceful
-- Lu ttst have impressed it, on some mnem-
bers of the select committee that there
might be something at the back of those
statements. Those members wvent on
delving down and down, time after time,
deeper and deeper and deeper, trying to
find something which did not exist, and
which therefore they were unable to find,

Mr. Gjeorge: Then you ought to be
thankful.

Thle MINISTER FOR WORKS: We
were not afraid of the inquiry.

.Ar. Bolton: But the member for Mur-
ray-Wellington is disappointed.

The MINIS TER FOR WORKS:
Those members found, on going through
the evidence, tlhnt there was nothing to
condemn the Government for. The nmem-
hers of the select committee say, "We
cannot finad anything from all the evi-
dence which has been given, for which
to condemn the Government; we cannot
find one iota." But any stick is good
enough to beat a dog with. The member
for Murray-Wellington Started his con-
demnnation of the Government by saying
"I am not going to find fault with thema;
what they have done is what they con-
sidered in thle best interests of the coun-
try." That is the 'way in which the mo-
tion has been brought forward for the
purpose of trying to condemn Ministers,
not only as public men but also as to
their personal honesty. It is sought to
show that those Mlinisters are unfit to sit
as representatives of the people in this
Hone I say it was the hounden duly of
every member of the select committee at
the time Gourthope's evidence was put
before them to have the accusers them-
selves brought forward to give evidence.
Courthope never said one word as to any
dishonest practices on the part of tlire
Governmenti.

Mr. George: What hie stated was cor-
rept.

Tile MU1ITER FOR WORKS:- .
C. Davies goes to a lawyer. He shelter,-
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himself behind a lawyer, a lawyer who
bad been written to previously by the
Premier and asked to repeat a certain
statement p)ublicly, so as to afford the
Premier an opportunity of showing to the
people of this State, through the law
courts of this State, that he had not
stooped to any dishonesty, that all bis
transactions were thoroughly fair and
above board and open to the eyes of all
men in the State. That being so, there was
thrown out ill the speech the other dlay
the business about the pianola. What
hais b, dn the effect of thatI The lion.
meinber said there had been some ques-
tion of a lpianola, as to which the select
eniomrttec were pleased to say that. the
matter wvas fair and square and above
hoard.

r. George: Did I refer to the pianvoiS
Thew MINISTER FOR WORKS: XYer.
.dr. George: Not in my specob.
The MIISTER FOR WORKS:- In

making such statements, one cannot con-
vince the general public that such things
did not take place. With all due respect
to my friends opposite, whether this 21in-
istrv leave the Treasury bench or not,
whether we cross to the opposite side or
not, I say that no body of men in the
Parliamentary history of Western Aus-
tralia would go out freer or purer than
the present occupants of the Treasury
bench-

Mr. George: Hear, hear!
The MINISTER FOR WORKS:

There is not one charge of any descrip-
tion that bon. members can make against
the personal character of the members of
the Ministry. I challenge anyone, out-
side as 'well as inside the Honse, to do so.
We hare endleavoured on more than one
occasion to try and get at those slander-
ers who are not fit to live in Western
Australia; we have tried to induce them
to make their accusations openly, so that
we might he able to show clearly and
conclusively to the people of the State
who is right and who is wrong. I regret
that those statements should have been
made, and I regret exceedingly that no-
lice should have been taken of a legal
gentleman in the manner which the select
committee did. I want to compliment

1Mr. Nicholson on the evidence he gave in
this connection. There is no doubt in my
mind that if Mr. NXicholson bad not been
in possession of the information he had,
the word of the Premier would not have
been believed, and the whole thing would
have resolved itself into an accusation of
dishonesy scattered broadcast. Fortun-
ately, however,' we were able to get evi-
dence outside of the Ministry, and whether
the members of the eommittee wanted to
believe it or not, they had to believe it.
In conclusion, I wish to state that the
motion moved by the hon. member is not
correct, that portion of it about the
agreement entered into with Mfr. Nevanas
is not true, and consequently bon. mem-
bers cannot condemn the Government far
entering into an arrangement which is not
in existence. I hope that in the future
hon. members, when dealing with ques-
tions of this kind, will do everything in
their power to protect as far as possible
the personal character of those who fill
Mrnistensal seats.

Mr. WILLAMOTT (Nelson) [6.50]: I
regret that the Minister, who this after-
noon has pleaded so well for the Govern-
ment with which he is connected, should
have concluded an otherwise fine address
by making an attack upon the select com-
mittee. Mr. Courthope accused me of
having knowledge of bribery and corrup-
tion on the part of certain Ministers of
the Crown, and he wrote me and stated
that I was wilfully withholding it from
the select committee. Was I to sit down
under an accusation of that kindl Would
I have done right 9 I think not. I
handed that letter over to the chairman
of the select committee and requested
that Mr- Courthope should be called to
give evidence, and either prove the
charges contained in his letter or show
that he was a man unworthy of credence.
Now we are accused of having endea-
voured to find some dirt to be able to
throw at Ministers. Nothing of the sort.

The Minister for Works: I did not say
that.

Mr. WJILMVOTT: I am pleased in-
deed to think that we did not find one
atom of dirt, and not one sign of bribery
or corruption. There was nothing what-
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ever that we could hang such an idea onl.
I am proud indeed that that was so, not
only for the sake of Ministers, but for
the sake of Parliament and Western
Australia.

Mr. MeDowafl: Then why this motion?

Mr. WILLMOTV: I feel very sore in-
deed at such anl aspersion being cast.
With regard to the motion before the
House, I knew nothing about it coming
forward. I had no idea that it was to be
moved.

Mr. Bolton: They soon coerced you to
support it.

Mr. WILLMOT'f: I cannot help the
fact that the Premier chose to regard it
as a motion of want of confidence. I do
not intend to dilate upon the Nevanas
matter. We have had it thoroughly well
thraslhed out. For weeks I sat upon it,
and I shall be glad when the matter is
definitely settled. I must, however, refer
to one or two matters. If the Minister
for Works is right in regard to the water
supply, then certain evidence was with-
held from the select committee. Why
was -that evidence withheld? 'That is the
point. We were there to get all the evi-
dence we could, and we were told that
every file, every plan, and everything in
connec~tion with the matter was placed
before us. Now we learn that certain
evidence the Minister had, and knew of
all the time, was not there. Take the
letters of the 26th and 27th March, which
Mr. Nevanas, in a telegram, stated he de-
livered personally. If Air. Nicholson is
a man of probity and honour, and I be-
lieve he is, and the Minister for Works
says he believes him to be, then how can
people say that these letters were never
delivered or were never written, when
Mr. Nicholson says -that he saw them?

Mr. B. J. Stubbs: Delivered9'
The Minister for Lands: No one said

they were not written.

'Mr. WILLMOTT: Mfr. Nicholson told
the committee that he was absolutely
positive about one. but not positive about
the other.

The Minister for Lands: I have asked
Mr. Nicholson since then whether they
were typewritten or handwritten, and he

told me he did not know. The committee
might have asked that question.

Mr. Bolton: They did not want to ask
such questions.

Mr. WILLMOTT: There is a matter
1. would like to touch upon in Mr. Nsich-
olson's evidence. He states in one place
after being asked whether Mr. Nevanas
was anticipating events by ordering ma-
terial-

I remember reading of it in the
paper at the time particulars of the
file were published. If the contract
was not actually accepted until the 9th
April, Mr. Nevanas would have been
anticipating things, but he may have
felt that he was justified in doing so.
i\ly recollection is that at that time he
ha~d the contract.

I am not going to dwell upon that. Hon.
members Canl read the evidence and form
their own conclusions. With regard to
the payment of 3 per cent., if Mr. Nev-
alias had no trouble in obtaining beats
from the Adelaide Steamship Co. to carry
his freight to Wyndhaim, why was evi-
dence tendered to the committee to this
effect,' that when dealing with Nevanas's
claim for £9,000- the fact that the boat,
the "N 2,"1 had been taken away from
him. weighed with the department all the
time?

Hon. Frank Wilson: Whose evidence
was that?

Mr. WILLMNOPIY: Mr. Beasley's.
That was at the hack of his mind all the
time. We find that Mr. Beasley stated
that in his opinion the taking away of
the "N 2" from MT. Nevanas weighed
with him so much that it had a great
effect on the amount that should be paid
to Mr. Nevanas. But what does the
Minister for Works say? He stated that
Mr. Nevanas could have obtained the boat
from the Adelaide Steamship Co., the
"Allinga," to take his freight to Wynd-
ham. If that is the case, then there has
been no justification whatever for this
extra money being paid. It knocks them
clean out of court. Just a few words in
regard to the pipe contract made by 'Mr.
Davies with Mr. Nevainas. Wbat an ex-
traordinary contract that was! Shall I
say it was a heads I win tails you lose
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sort of contraci ? Who was Mr. Davies
reuiresenliug? agn he representing the
State or Mr. Nevanas?

)tfr. Mullany: Hle was looking for
cometlhin.

.d r. Foley: I think lie was paid a bit
to nothing-.

MNr. W\IllalMOT.T: I hope ltoii. mem-
bers will not say such a thing about aiiy-
onte. It is riot possible to throw pitch
aIbouit wit hout somec of it sticking. I
would not think of accusing- 21 inislers
withoutt evidence, and the peoipie who
said they had the greatest amount of
evidence failed to produce it when called
uiponi to (1o so. Thei fanious eonl raci, to
which I was referring provided that if
the freight went upl the Government
would get no benefit, but if it wvent down
Air. Noelalas would get the benefit.

Tuhe AMinister for Works: Who did
that ?

Mr. WJLLMOTT: 'Mr. Davies dlid it.
Who was IMr. Davies representing? 11r.
Davies in his evidence wias most emphatic,
andi if lion, members wvill study that
evidence they will see thatilhe was very
clear.

Mr. B. J. .Stubbs: I never read any-
t hi ng more involved.

Mr. WILIMOTT: Ini my opinion his
evidence wvas very clear. Ile received r',-
struct ions from Mlr. Johnson to call on
Nevanas in regard to pipes.

Tine Minister for Lands: And was not
mny evidence clear on that point?

Air. WTILLMTOTT: What Mri. Davies
stated was absolutely denied by the Min-
ister.

The Minister for Lands: Was my evi-
dence clear?

Air. WILLMTOTT: Tue Mfinister's de-
nial "'as that lie had no recollection of so
doing.

The Y'iriister for Lands: I denied it
absolutely. Is that not definite?

Mr. WLLLMOTT: It remains for fihe
House to say whom theyI are going to
believe, whether they wvill believe Air.
Davies or the Minister, or whether they
will believe Afr. Nevanas or the Minis-
ter.

(81)

MrIt. Foley: You were not too clear

y ourself w.hen you started to criticise the
M~inister first.

11r. WiLLALOTI: I heard the Minis-
ter's speech.

Mir. Foley: Y"ou are right out onl party
linies. You will have to fight now.

.%ir. WIILMOTT: I am troubled very
little by party lines.

Air. Foley: Yes, you have had the
white filg up all the session.

Air. WILLMOTT : If the Premier
hiooses to accept this motion as one of

want off confidence, that is his look wit.
Mir. 31elowall: What else could hie

do?,
The Alinister for Lands: You were

consul ted abouit it.
Air. WILLfMOTT: Ron. members will

have to judge whether he was right or
whether lie was wvrong.

Mr. Billtoui: You were consulted.
Mr. WlLLAIOTT: That is absolutely

uintrue. I was not consulted.
AMr. Foley: Some of your party were.
Mr. SPEAKER: Order !The hon.

mendier cannot tise the word "untrue."
Mr. WI"LLAIO'PT: Have I no protec-

lion at all?
Mr. SPEAKER: The holi. member

must not question my' directions, other-
wise hie will have no protection at all.
Th'le lion. member's voenbtitlryv will en-
able him to find some other word.

M~r. WiLLA)TT: Well, I wiill with-
d]raw, arid say the interjection is abso-
lutely incorrect, and that I am sorry I
am not allowed to use a stronger ex-
pression, more fitting to the occasion.

Mr. Fole 'y: Some of your party were
in conference wit I thenm.

Mr. WTLLIi'T: None of the party
knewv anything about it. To me it came
as a bolt from tlhe blue.

Mr. Bolton: Knew nothing about the
notion ?

MrIt. WI LLAIOTT: Absolutely no, not
a single miemnber of the party. I was ris-
ing- to speak whlen the Premier asked,
across tire House, "Are you going to see-
ond it?" I knew nothing about it.

Mir. Foley: Some of your party did.
Mr. WILL,%IOTT: The lion, member

has suffered from bad health lately and
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perhaps lie is not altogether accountable
for his interjections. When Mr. Angwin
took over the reins a change came o'er
the scene. He was not content to send
telephone nmsages or give verbal justrue-
lions; lie wanted definite information at
every step lie took, and he would not
budge until hie got it. WVe find also that
when the name of the Minister for Mines
appears on the file lie, too, wvanted to
know many things; lie said hie was not
contented with, thne information he lhad
before him, and lie wanted to know more
about this or that. Such a change came
over the whole business as to forcibly
strike ainy unbiassed mind. When T. wvent
on the select committee I was absolutely
unbiassed. When speaking on the ques-
lion of the appointment of the commit-
tee, I said the one thing wve required to
find out was as to whether there had been
anything unclean. I am ple~med to say
that nothing of the sort was found, It
is all very well for the Minister for
Works to say that the purchase
of the pianola by the Premier
should not have been, brought up; but
it had to be brought up on the evidene,.
tendered to us. Nobody was more-pleased
than I when the Premier brought con-
elusive evidence to show that he had paid
for the pianola. Whether it was wise for
himt to buy a pianola through Nevanas is
a question for himself, but I ant pleasd
to say that nothing in the nature of brih-
err was disclosed to the committee.

The Premier: The Man who brought
the matter tip has been fair enough to
do the amende honorable, and ins tvrit-
ten to me expressing regret.

Mr. WTLLMOTT: I am pleased to
hear it. M,%enl should be "en' carefu bi e-
tore making accusations of that nature,
unless, indeed, they have Something to
Substantiate their charges. in concLusion
I desire to say that I intend to support
the motion.

Hon. FRANK WILSON (Sussex)
[6.4] : Most of us have listened very
patiently to the three hours' oration by
hie Minister for Works. I am not quite

suire whether we got very much satisfac-
tion from the long dissertation he in-

dulged in. He took about an hour and
it half in describing plans and arguing
with the member for Murray-Wellington
'Mr. Gecorge) as to whether 3 per cent.
or a lesser SLIM or nothing at all should
have been paid for those plans. At the
finish of his remarks thle lion, gentleman
waxed angry when referringr to Ihe
pian:ola incident which tine member for
Nelson (Air. Willmott) has just men-
t ionecl. TI'he XMinister wound upI by de-
claring that the motion moved by the
member for Murray-Wellington was in-
torrect, and lie further protested againist
the characters of Ministers being attacked

it a;y shape or form. I do not know that
it as ve ben tlehabit of members

of thne Opposition to indulge in attack-
ing the personal characters of Mini-
isters. I do not know tiat the integrity
of Ministers has ever been chaillenged,
,and I think wet can debate this no-conifi-
deuce motion, as it has hccome, without
descending to tactics of that nature. I
bave a painful recollection of very dif-
ferent treatment being meted out to mie
onl a similar occasion; but that would not
excuse one in formulating charges of eor-
rinpiion or bribery, even if an injudicious
act has been perp etrated by the Premier
in having a private transaction with a
gentleman who was about to be connected
with him in his public capaitiy. 1I think
evnci now, thle way things have gone, it
was rather injudicious, and( that I he Pre-
Mnier would prefr tai. lie had not ha'!
that transaction.

Mr. Foley: Why discuss the personal
matter if y %ou do not believe in person-
alit ies?

Hon. FRANK WILSON: It is gratify-
ing to hear from thie Premier that lie has
received an apology froni the gentleman
who made the charge.. I hope that
apology xvill he published; it is the leash
hat can be done. If a charge has been

made or even referred to, and subse-
quently, -withdrawn and apologised for,
tie withdrawal and apology should be

givenl the same publicity as attended the
making of the charge. The hon. niem-
her who interjected asked, "Why discuss
it?"' Because it is in the evidence, and
it is of no use trying to hide up a matter
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of the sort. it is in (lhe interests of the
Premier and of every one concerned thant
it should be ventilated fully, once it has
been mentioned. 1 desire to touch upon
two or three item mentioned by the M1in-
ister for Works. The M1inister took strong
exception to an interjection to the effect
that the Chief Architect has been un-
able to cheek the accounts for materials.
In order that it may not be forgotten,
I desire to draw attention to a quotation
embodied in paragraph 11 of the coi-
mittee's report. That quotation is from a
letter written by Mr. Beasley, and runs
as follows:-

I1 wish to make it quite clear to tie
comititee that I could only use my
best juidgment With the Material and
information before me. To have seru-
tinised and checked every item of all
those accounts would have mecant that
I conic1 not have made a recommenda-
tion within three or four months.

The Minister for Lands: W~hy did he
not report that to his Minister?

lion. FRANK WILSON: I (10 not
know; it is a question between the Minis-
ter and Mr. Beasley.

The 2mister for Lands: If the Minis-
ter calls for a report and gets it, it is
aill hie knows about it.

Holl. FRANK WILSON: The Minister
should know that the officer could not do
it. The Minister cannot shelter himself
lbehind the neglect. if any there has been,
of his officr.

The Minister for Lands: There has
been no neglect.

Hon. FRANK WILSON : I am not
suggesting it; [ am merel 'y taking excep-
lion to the indignant denial by the Minis-
ter for Works, when it wvas said by inter-
jection that the accounts had not been
checked. When asked if the accounts for
(lhe materials were correct, the reply by
the 'Minister was that they had been
chiecked. Bitt it is conclusively seen that
they were not checked, and could not
have been within reasonable time. The
Chief Architect admitted that.

Mr. 'Meflowail: He does not east any
doubt, on the accuracy of the vouchers;
he simply says he could not take stock.

Bion. FRANK WILSON: Of necessity
it shows that a stalemear had been ar-
rivelI at without proof of the accuracy
of the vouchers. Then there was another
point the M1inister enlarged upon: He
saii the I tans for the water supply, pro-
duced by the member for Murray-Wel-
lington, wvere only a portion of the gen-
eral plans, and th~at thle hon. member was
not actingl- quite fairly in referring to
ihen, as he did. I defy any hon. member,
with any- knowledge of plans, to look at
thlose ]or the proposed wvater supply and
tell the House that they are worthy of
any acce: tance whatever. I would not
give a £5 note for them, let alone the
£1,500 paid, according to the report of
thle commnittee. The A3inister wvent on to
admit that he t houg-lit no material should
have been purchased by Nevanas on ac-
count of thijs contract. Yet we bad the
admission, in his next breath, that be him-
self p)aid for some of the material. If
the M3inister thought it was wvrong to have
the material ordered, why did he pay for
it? ]t is not a question of amount, but
of pirincipic. Then for a considerable
time the Minister enlarged on the evidence
of 'Yr. Nicholson, the solicitor for Air.

Neaa.At a rough estimate, it took
him half an hour to establish Nevanas's
character and to eulogise the firma of
which 'Nevainas is the bead. With all due
restict (o Mr. Nicholson, or any other
gentleman occupying, his high position, 1
wolld suggest that when he becomes
solicitor for lir. Nevanas it stands to
reason lie is not going to (leery his
client's reputation and character; and
while we would] give all credence to thme
honesty of his evidence-Il do not believe
it is in Mr. Nicholson to tell a lie-yet
w~e must also give heed to the glamour of
the surroundings, to the fact that Mr.
Nevanas was Mr. Nicholson's client, and
that Mr. Nicholson was there as solicitor
to that gentleman.

The Premier: That is not very chari-
table to 3Mx. Nicholson.

Sitting suspended from 6.15 to 7.30 pm.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: Before tea
I had referred to several remarks made by
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the Minister for Works during- hi.,
lengthy speech, and had shown t hat he
was in] error in thle at titude he took up
and the conclusions he drew. I want now
to get away hrorn that aspect of the ques-
lion and devote myself to the motion
itself, to wvhich exception has been taken
by the Minister for Works. Tile motion
is very explicit in its condemnation. It
states that the House views with grave
concern thle action of the Government in
entering into a private or, if I may so
term it, a secret agreement and it goes
oil to say wve are of opinion that the
evidence discloses throughout the negotia-
tions, thle contract, and thle subsequent
cancellation, a state of affairs which is
subiveisive of the principles of sound
government. 1, cannot conceive that any)
exception call fairly be taken to the
wording of the motion. TChat we have
grave concerrn over the action of any Gov'-
erment who adopt as -their policy the
entering into priv ate arrangements of any
description for works of this magnitude
must be obvious to all, and certainly it
was so to certain hon. members wvho were
not afraid to, voice their opinions in this
House a short time since, notwithistand-
iug that they are slipporters of the Gov-
ernment who are charged wvith this
breach of faith. The member for Gerald-
ton (Mr. Heitinano) on onc occasion
said that if we are going to adopt a
policy of accep)ting tenders without call-
tig- publicly for them it will lead to a
pretty bad state of affairs in Western
Australia. Surely that must appeal to
all members and, it cannot be gainsaid
for one moment. The member for Mdt.
MNargaret (Mr. Taylor) said onl the same
occasion-'This party is pledged against
contracts and this was a secret contract.
No manl living can support a secret con-
tract; it cannot be supported under any
circumstances." Now the Minister for
Works would have us believe there were
such exceptional circumstances surround-
ing- [he action of the Government on this
occasion that justified them in departing
from their fixed policy as enunciated by,
hose lion. members on that occasion. I

wvant to rewind the House that the re-

port of the select commuittee, who repre-
sented both sides of this Chamber, was
a unanimnous report.

Hon. R. H-. Underwood (Honorary
Minlister) : You could not have any other.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: And there-
fore it must of necessity carry with it a
greater amount of conviction than if tile
committee had been divided.

Hon. R. H. Underwood (Honorary
Minister) :The committee wvere divided.

Holf. FRANK WILSON: I do not
wvant thie Honorary Minister's interjec-
tions.

Holf. R. H. Underwood (Honorary
ilinister) : I do not want you to make
Inis-statemients.

I-Ion. FRANK WILSON: The Honor-
ary Minister must learn to contain him-
self; hie will have all opportunity to
speak later on. For tlie reason that the
report was unanimous, it must carry a
greater amount of conviction to the
mninds of hon. members.

Hon. 11. H. Underwood (Honorary
Minister) : It would if it were correct.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: Then the
H-onorary Minister charges I he members
from is sidc of the H-ouse who sat upon
thle committee wvith giving a false re-
port?

Hion. R. H. Underwood (Honorary
Minister) : You cannot get any other.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: The report
is couched in temperate language. Those
%%'ho have taken the trouble to read it and,
av, I have clone since the House adjourned
last week, have read the evidence froni
beginning- to end, must admit that the
report it self could have been dIrawn tip
in much strong-er language had tile coin-
iitee so (desire(]. They had thle j'istifi-

cation for it.
Mr. Mullany: If it had been, there

would have been serious objection by
other members of the committee.

Hon. FRAME WILSON: The bon.
member can make his statement in due
course.

Honl. it H. Underwood (Honorary
Minister) : There is no necessity for you
to make the statement.
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Hon. FRANKI WILSON: Who has the
floor, Sir? Have I the right to speak or
must I allow. thle ionorary M3iiiister to
make a speech?' The report is couched
in temperate language, anid perhaps the
Honoraryv Minister will hear that in mindi
before he rushes into the breach. It is
1unclonhie I (liat We MuLst have grave con-
cern when a sound imrin-wple of po%,erii-
meat has been departed from. We might
be able, after (1u1 exp'lanation is, given
and evidence brought forward, to coit-
done a dleIparture if the evidence is suffi-
cient, but in this case apparently, the
evidence was not sufficient So far as the
select committee were concerned, and
there were three memb)ers fromt thle Gay-
erninent side of the House sifing on the
C011lu1ittee. Private individuals or tirms
are at liberty always to act as they like.
They can make bargains as they deemi
fit in their owni interests because 1hey
alone suffer if those bargains or contracts
l)rove to be detrimental to their interests.
'But the Government in charge of thie
affairs of the State are practically the
trustees of public funds, and they cannot
conduct the State's business on thle same
lines as a private individual might be
justifiedl iii conducting his own transac-
Ilions. Publicity is absolutely necessary,
and tile calling of pnblie tenders is essen-
hial if we are to have that clean adminis-
tration which lion, members all claim we
in Western Australia have and which we
should have.

iMr. Heitmanan: Your Government did
not give too muchl publicity to the pur-
chase of thie Avondale Estate until it was
fixed uip.

H~on. T11ANIK WILSON: The pur-
chase of thle Avondale Estate. &q tile
lion. niettuber knows, was- autlhorised
by the Agricultural Lands Purchase
Aft, and] the purchase was made
uinder dhe terms; and conditions of
an Act of this Parliamneut. rhis conl-
tract for freezing works at Wyndlham
was not entered into uinder any% such cir-
cuimstances. If we depart from a prin-
ciple of this description which the hon.
member himself has denounced,' the hon-
our of the Government, nay of Parlia-
ment itselfis. liable to become besmirched,

and thle Minister for Lands cannot comn-
plaiii if wron-g conatritetions are put
upon. the Go3vernment's actions by (lhe
unthinking publtic outside of this Chiani-
ber. There are only two ways of hand-
ling wvorks of this magnitude so far as
tite Government are concerned, that is
either by calling Public. tenders or by
eafl'yi Li out the work dejiartmen tally
nuder their own officers.

Mr. Mellowall: They are doing it de-
art mlentally now,
lion. FRANK WILSON- If we are

going to do away with all calling of ten-
ders and make private arrangements,
then we might as well dissolve the Ten-
der Boardl and to a very large extent
we call do away with Parliament, because
Parliament will have no control over thle
actions of the Government or tile ex-
pendituire of pubtic moneys uinder such
circumstances. It is undoubted that the
establishment of freezing works in thle
northiern portion of this State, more es-
peially at Wyndham, is essential. No
on)e has Mo qu (tarrel with the Govern-
ntient onl that point. We might in passing
cast some doubt as to whether works of
thle size which are projected are required
azt Wyvndhamn, hut still the principle it-
self is sound. It has been part of the
policy of all Governments of this State~
at. least it -was of thle late Liberal
Goi errnment-and within time last 12
months it has beroine part of the
policy of thle present Government.
Of rollise the Miniisters' present
en IIi msia-'nt1 for freezing- works-
tnic especially' the 'Minister for Lands-
is in strong contrast to tile attitude he
took upl some four years ago when he op-
posed sucth works and when his wholesale
condeinnation conveyed in a replort to
Cabinet was accepted b *y Cabinet as part
of their policy, a condemnation which I
nn sorry to think was on that occasion
baseri more on political grounds and for
political party purposes than on any con-
sideration for the welt-being of the peo-
ple of this State.

The Vinister for Lands: Very ungen-
erous, and you know it to be absolutely
incorrect.
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lion. FRANK WILSON: It is not
ungenerous and I know it to be correct.
Ont many occasions 1 have drawn atten-
tion in no measured terms to the wording

of that report, to the absurdity of the re-
commendations cont amnedl in it and to the

obvious insincerity of thie report. Now
it is pleaded that urgency is tile cause of
thle mess into which the Government have

fallen; urgency is pleaded in extenuation
of the action of thie Government, the ac-
tion they took firstly in negotiating with
Nevanas for the erection of works, sec-
onidly, in appointing him as their eou-
sitling engineer, thirdly, in allowing him
to develop into a contractor aind ulti-
mately iii fixing up a contract with himi,
and eventually I suippose urgrency is also

leaded as a justification. for the cancel-
lation of the contract. The negotiations
were or-ened with the present Minister
for Lands nearly IS months ago-in Mlay
19.14. That gentlemani's influence is
strongly in evidence through thle transac-
tions recorded in thie files and thie inquiry
reported on by the select committee; it
i strongly in evidence right throughout
the transactions in connection with this
unfortunate episode. How can urgency
lie pleaded when the whole question has
been a mailer of negotiation -with thle
Government and especially with the
Minister for Lands diniing thle past- 12 or
14 months at least. Thle business acumen
of Ali- Nevanus is apparent throughout
the transactions, and his business neu-
men mnust go as being absolutely uin-
doubted. Hie seems to do what hie likes.
Ministers were like clay in the potter's
hands. Mr. Nevanas could fashion them
whichever wayv lie wished in the negotia-
tions, as evidenced throughout the in-
(juiry. ilhe report of which would be eX-
rehleat reading if it 'N'ere not that thle
riitter wvag so serious from tlie point of
view of the progress of tlie State. I corn-
mend the report of that evidence to any-
one who has njot Yet taken the trouble
to read it carefully. Let us look at the
(pi'estion as to how tthis matter of ex-
treme urgency was dealt with by Mini-
jifers. The committee report and their

report shows that in 'May, 1914, Mr. Ne-
vanas proposed to erect freezing works

on his own account. rhe iAtinister for
WVorks lies admitted that in his spe.ech
this afternoon. Mr. Nevanas was to form
a1 compl-any with a capiltal of X160,000, so
thle tiles show. Tie claimled a bonlus ont all
cafile treated for 10 years. He was mod-
est in his demands, because hie only asked
for Cse. recr head upl to 2-5,000 hlead of
cattle for ilhe first five years, and s. per
head on 25,0t00 head of cattle for the
second live years, and Is. per head re-
duction for all cattle over 25,000. The
offer, it is true, was refused. One cannot
take any exception to thie refusal of an
offer of that description. Later on it
will be seen how Air, Nevanas hood-
winked the Government to some extent
into accepting his proposal that they
should erect works on thieir own account,
when hie reported and declared that it
wvas a mnost profitable commercial ven-
ture, whichi was in strong contrast to his
demand for a boins for all cattle hie him-
self proposed to treat if the works had
heen erected on his own account. Short-
lv after, an agreement was entered into
for Nevailas to report. His sug-gestion
was accepted. that lie should be paid
£41,000 for the reporL. He visited Wynd-
hain and lie did report. The report was
discussed by the Mlinis;ter with some de-
partmiental officers in October of last
year. 'In passing, I might remind the
House that Mr. Cairns, who undoubtedly
has had sonice Iengthy experience in con-
nection ivitli freezing -works, and who
has been inl the employment of tile State
G-overnnent for quite a long time it,
Wes~tern Australiii-hoiigh MIinisters
have attempted to belittle that gentle-
nan-s experience-com plainted that tile
report of Mr. Nevanas consisted miainly
oif what had already appeared on tile
departmental files. f think this is to a
very' great extent borne out by the evi-
dencee which Ihe select committee took
in connection with the matter. Thle war
broke out, and there was niore urgency.
onie would iniagine, than ever for the
3'inister and thle Government to move
and comie to some decision, more especi-
ally as the Minister himself has pointed
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out that on account of the wvar there is
likely to he a shortage of meat. We were
told that meat was becoming short in
America, a country which has exported
perhaps more meat than any other courn-
try on tlie face of thle globe. Mieat was be-
coming scarce, and the Minister for Lands
told uts that America was importing. This
was known to him in October of last
yea r. TPle matter was therefore more
urg-ent than ever, and yet Ministers
allowed this momentous question, which
at this time they had become enthusiastic
over, to lie dormant, and nothing wvas
(lone until the 4th January following.
tfl1 ee monthus wvent by and no action was
taken. At that time (lie Miinister for
Lands reopened thie matter. He had n
conference with the two public officers,
Mfessrs. Tiadale and lBabbinglton. The
reitilt of that conference was, after the
2llinister awoke to the fact that nothing
was being clone, and that he had either
overlooked or neglected the matter, which
was one of extreme urgency, and
realised that some steps must he
taken, that the Government agreed
to Nevanas getting out plans and
specifications and tenders. Thus, Mr.
Nrevanas, from firsqt being a tenderer or
contractor, or offering to be one, becomes
an architect for the Government. * The
condilions of the appoitment are fixed
up, as has been explained by the mover
of the motion, and the Minister for
Works this afternoon, and after tenders
are called and the works are erected hie
is to be paid 3 per cent. commission for
his work, the ordinary architect's com-
mission, and gets a sp~ecial redu~ct ion to
2 per cent, if Ihe works are not proceeded
with]. He came over in February, a
month later, to get details. He returned
to Melbourne and got out plans and esti-
mates. He came back in March and sub-
nitted some sort of estimate to the Gov-
ernment amounting to £180,000. The
buildings on that estimate were to cost
£120,000, the jetty' was to cost £30,000,
and the water supply £30,000, making a
total of £1S0,000. This, then, I gather,
was referred to a special board about the
17th March last. This board declared

that thne work could not be done for the
amonunt specified in Nevanas's estimates;
they inie' discredit upon the estimates
and strongly recommended the Govern-
meat to call p~ublic tenders. The Gov-
erment, however, took no notice of that
recommendation. Thley there departed
from the principle winichi is the essence
of sound Government and sound adminis-
tration. After further negotiat ions, as
lie Minister for Lands f think pointed

out when speaking on the motion for the
appointment of a select committee,
Nevinnas put in a tender on the 25th
Mlarch for the buildlingl, plant and water
supiply. This tender of £155,150 was re-
terred on the same day to the board
wvhich had been appointed by the Miin-
ister, referred to them at about 5 o'clock
in the afternoon, aud] I le next morning
was returned with a recommendation of
acceptance. ].t "'as submitted to Cabinet
but no act ion was taken owing to the
Premier's absence, for the time being,
fromn the State. On the 9th April it was
ap prove([ by' Cabinet and] the transact ion,
at any rate from that dote, was complete,
although Nevanas has stated, from letters
put in to the ?IIiniister and acknowledg-ed
by, him, that time contract had already
been placed in his hand.,. I an, not vcry
nmuch concerned ahout hat. The posi-
tion is this. t hat 21r. Nevatns, who is so
versatile in his experience, who appeal's
to have a knowledge raniginig from the
vely foundation of nieat sales in London
markets to (lie practical ereelion of meat
works cuti in Ausiralia, anti the control
of same, wits first of all appointed by'
this Government ais an expert to report
generally. le did report! as has been
poin ted out, and his report consisted, first
of all, of his opinion as to the site, that
it "'as suitable for works of that descrip-
tion, the prohable siippiy of stock.
namel),, some 30O,00tl head annually, and
as I have mnentioned just previously, thle
statement that the works would prove a
profitable commercial proposition for the
Government to take on. No figures
whatever were given in support of his
report. There was no information, such
as one might have expected or antici-
pated, from a man of his vast experience,
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Cor thle guidance of the Government, no
report as to thle approximate cost of the
works to guide the Government in decid-
fig, whether or not they were justified in
asking thle country to embark on this huge
expenditure, there "-as no estimate as to
the probable business to be transacted, or
ais to the turnover, no particulars as to the
exIpenditure, -and there was no estimate
contained in the report, or approximate
estimate, of the profit that might aecrue
to the -Government from the erection and
working of an undertaking of this de-
scrilplion. All these matters were vital
in inifluencing the Government in mnaking
up their mind as to thle jus-tificationi for
the action that was proposed. Nothing
of tile kind was contained in 1lfr.
Nevanas's report. It was merely a
skeleton report which carried ver 'y
little weight, I venture to say, and
still less with the Government themselves.
The very fact of Mr. Nevanas declaring
to the Government that the works -would
prove a splendid commrercial proposition,
hut, just a few mnonths previously, de-
nmanding a bonus of no less thlan 6s. per
head on the cattle to he treated, if hie
erected the works, ought to have put them
on their guard as to tlte value of the r-
port of that gentleman, into whose hiands
they had placed their business. He takes
up the position of an expecrt. 1-e is they,
appointed or eniplo 'ved as an architect,
and engineer to produce plans and sperv-
fications onl an agency commission. IRe
is appointed as an expert to produce
these plans and specifications, wichel
the Minister for Works declares are not
being acted upon departmen tally. Later
on hie takes tip the attitude of a con-
tractor, and pnts in a tender to do the
work himuself, -which tender is accepted.
After lie becomes contractor he claims his
architect's commission on the £106,000.
which the Premlier had auithoriseri him to
go to in drawing up plans and specifico-
Lion. Subsequently, when the contract
was cancelled, hie is paid in full on the
amount of his tender. I want to emipha-
sise this point, that no man can be con-
sulting engineer, architect, and contrac-
tor to the Government at one and the
same time, and that even if Nevanas was

entitled to a commission at all, whieh I
(li-sl)Ll, hie was only enlirled to the 2 per
(cnt., which the Premier had agreed 1o
1fay himi if thle works were not carried
oil 1y ' imn, ont thle £1 0O,iOO, thle limit
fixed by the Premuier.

The M1iister for Works :If you read
the wire, you will nob find that in it.

Beon. FRANK WILSON :Here are
the terms. This is the translation of
a telegramn forwarded by the Premier
to S.' Newtons, South Australian Hotel,
Adelaide-

Forwarding by next mail draft
agreement for a report and if report
is adopted and works undertaken the
sum of £1,500 and £500 for expenses
covering cost of inspection and advice
and supervision over erection of works.
If report onlly is miade the sumn of £ 1,000
to cover report and expenses. If
report adopted and wo-rks erected
Government agree to pr1oposal for
Nevanas and Co. to act as agents
and managers on conditions to be
provided by subsequent agreement.

That telegramn was received by Mr.
Nevanas fromn the Premier on thle 20th
June, and lie replies to the Premier
as follows :

Many thanks for your telegram.
Agree to terms. Post schedule of
fite(ners.

The last does aot affect the terms. That
is the set of telegrams in connection
with thle managemient, which I shall
deal with later. The other set of
telegrams is contained in tie report
itself of the select cormmittee, and I
think those telegramns are perfectly
clear. 'Mr. Nevanats wires to the Pre-
3mier-

Will prepare plans and estimnates.
following rates : first, architect's
scale charges to include our fees
also plans and estimnates ; second,
if no agreement arrived at architect's
reduced fees will he charged. If you
are instructing kindly forward ex-
hibits first mail.

Mr. Scaddan th eni wires to 'Mr. 'Nevanas-
Please forward architect's scale

charges and conditions under con.-
ditions one and two in my telegr~in
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10th. Forwarding exhibits this mail.
Expqect to wire you instructions to
proceed on reply to above.

The Premier wanted to know 'what the
scale charges were. Mr. Nevanas re-
plies-

Scale charges furnishing plans,
specifications also separate tenders
for construction three coutun WVestern
Australia architect's printed "-nditiori:i.
WVill arrange special rate two centuin
if w~ork not proceeded with.

TCo this Mr. Scaddanl replies-
Government authorise you proceed

preparation of plans, esitimnates et-
cetera for work in terms of your
report and estimate, naniely not
to exceed 130)6,000.

The Premier practically says to Nevanas,
" You can prepare the plans on those
conditions, but the cost mnust not exceed
£106,000." -Now we find that Mr. XNe-
;'anas, although lie is only entitled,
I maintain, to the two per cent. onl his
£106,000, that is, £2,120, if he is en-
titled to anything at all, was paid £E4,664.
That is to say, Mr. Nevanas was overpaid
to the tune of £2,534. 'rhob works wvere
not gono on with.

The Minister for Works :The works
have been gone onl with.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: The works
were not gone on -with, and tend 'erd were
not called ns stipulated, which is part
and parcel of the conditions of the
Institute of Arciftects. Therefore, -Mr.
Nevanas, if he was entitled to anty com*n
mission at all, was overpaid this hugo
stum. And the strange part of tho
business is that all the time lie was
putting in this tender which, to use my
friend's expressive words, was the sub-
ject of so much hurry-sourry on the
part of the (Aovernment. and miore
especially the M1inister for Lands, all.
the time Mr. Kevanas was first of all
negotiating as agent and then putting
in a tender on. his own behalf as con-
tractor, he had in his pocket a tender
from Mr. Dunkerley of Melbourne to
do the work for £137,000. True, there
wras a condition that Mr. Dunkerley was
to receive £7,000 extra if the work was
completed to time. But Mr. -Nevanas,
as agent and as engineer for the Western

Australian Government, w-as carefully
keeping in his own pocket a tender which
ought to have been the property of the
Governmient under all honourable eon-
dit ions observed by architects and en-
gineers engaged in those capacities.
1 maintain there is no question that
Mr. Nevanas was too slick for the
Government, and that he was certainly
much too clever for the departmental
officers who were brought into direct
contact with him. Nevanas should have
produced Dtinkerley's tender to the
Government at once. As he did not do
so, but Put inl a tender on his own account,
hie forfeited his agency. There isno doubt
about that. Immediately onl obtaining
Dunkerley's tender, Nevanas took up
the position of contractor. Hie thought,
- T]his is good enough for me to get my
profit on ;I will put in my own tender
Dunkerley's tender is all right ; I will
close with him as a sub-contractor, and
make my profit that way." But that
was not the act of anl honest man,
appointed a consulting engineer to a
firmi or aL Government, in wihose interests
he is supposed to be working, whose
interests he is supposed to watch in
every direction. Of course, the Govern-
ment 'might suggest that- they did not
know about this sub-letting. I venture
to Say, however, that it is disclosed in
the evidence that they knew NKevanas
w-as sub-letting, that they knew as a
matter of fact that while he was tender-
ing or negotiating on his own behialf
hie had this tender of Dunker Icy, or
had a tender, because lie stated to the
Chief Architect, and Mr. Beasley in
turn, according to the evidence, reported
to the Minister, Mr. Johnson, that
Ne;-anas had complained that the price
he had pu in allowed nothing for profit,
and that -Nevanas argued that since he
was getting no profit the Government
should finance the undertaking and the
penalty should be merely nominal. The
pienalty that appealed to Nevanas was
something in the shape of £5 per week--
indeed a nominal penalty.

Mr. E. B. Johnston : It is a6 wonder
Nevanas did not ask for a bonus.

lion. FRANK WILSON: -Nevanas
is going to collect His bonus. With
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fltmkerley'!i tender in his pocket, he
was sure of a bonus.

Mr. E. B. Johnston : He was on a
good wicket either way.

Hon. FRAN\K WILSON:- He was
on a good wicket whichever way it
wvent. Again, to show that the Govern-
ment and their officials raust have had
somne knowledge of the position, while
perhaps not realising its seriousness,
there is the fact that Nevanas referred
to one Rodgers as his agent or contractor
in connection with the jetty . work.
Up to this time, at any rate, Nevas
was either an agent for the Government
or he was contractor for the Government.
If he was agent, then I maintain he
could not claim a profit except by way
of commission, which was. fixed. if ho
was a contractor, then decidedly he
could not claim a comm-is~sion. He
cannot ha-,e it both ways. As hion.
members have put it, this gentleman
was going to see that he rocked t-he
Government on both counts. He wan
going to win, whatever happened. And,
as the sequel shows, hie did win. Next,
why was the contract cancelled ? We
have heard a good deal as to why the
contract wvas entered into, ms to the
urgency of the matter, which to me of
course is; particularly pleasing in viewv
of the attitude of the Government some
time previously, when they were opposed
to the ontablishmnent of the freezing
works. But why was the contract
cancelled ? It is not usual, if a con-
tractor makes default, to pay him
compensation for so doing. It is usual
to finish the contract at his expense.
This is admitted by Mr. Beasley in his
evidence. But here we have the Govern-
ment rushing in to effect a cancellation
of this contract which the Minister for
Works claimed represented a saving of
£50,000 to the State. The M~inister for
Works says, " You condemn the Govern-
ment. because they took action which was
going to save this country £50,000."
If that be so, then why was the sub-
sequent action of cancellation taken,
which means the throwing away of the
£50,000 that the State was to save ?
The M%,inister for Lands, in his speech,
'old us that N~evanas found himself

unable to finance owing to the altered
conditions of the money market. Later
on, in the same speech, the Minister for
Lands swid that at this stage 'Nevanas
admitted that he could not finish the
contract, and so it was necessary for
the Government to settle up with
Nevanas and wind up the miatter so
far as he ww; concerned, so that they
might lproceed with it in another form.
That is the explanation the inister for
Lands gives usn, and' I think the Premier's
explanation, mnade when speaking on
the Address-in-reply, was that NL\evanas
& Co. failed to carry out their contract,
and that upon such failure to carry
out the contract the material that they
had purchased was offered to the Govern-
ment. Now, the contract was con-
firmed by Cabinet-this is adm-itted-
at ]atest on the 9th April. It was
cancelled on or about the 26th June.
It is hardly conceivable, nor I think
will anyone assert, that between the
0th April and the 26th June there was
such an alteration in the money market
of the world as to prevent Mr. Nevanas,
who presumably was in touch with
financial institutions in London, the
hub of the universe, from raising the
necessary money to carry out this
contract. With the knowledge that war
had not broken out then, I cannot
conceive that the question of the money
market, as9 put forward by the Minister
for Lands, had anything whatever to do
with the withdrawal of Nevanas or with
the cancellation of his contract.

Mr. George;: War had broken out
then.

Hon. FRANK\T; WILSON:- Yes, that
was a slip. The war was going on.- The
contract was confirmned on the 9th
April and cancelled on the 26th June.
All the ill-effects of the war had already
taken place so far as the money market
was concerned, and I cannot conceive
that the financial position was any worse
on the 26th June than it u-as on the 9th
April preceding. At any rate, I do not
think private individuals, trading in
this State and elsewhere found it any
worse.

Mr. George : There wvas no difference
in the Bank rate.
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Hon. FRANK WILSO'N: Between
those two dates there was no alteration
of the Bank rate at all. The price of
money was exactly the same over those
eleven weeks. In fact, financial matters
were steady, and remarkably steady
considering the war ini which we are
engaged. There was nothing whatever
to warrant the coneclusion of the Minister
for Lands that it was finance which
affected 31r, Nevanas in withdrawing
from his contract or getting the Govern-
muent to cancel his contratA.

The Premier : It only appears so to
you because of the fact that we have
been able to finance so successfully.

Hon. FRANK WVILSON: I am glad
the Premnier thinks lie is3 financing
successfully, I doubt if there is one
man in a thousand in this country
who would agree with him for one
moment. If there has been disastrous
finance in any country in the world
during the last four years, it has been
the Premier's finance.

The Premier : You could not get
money at all.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: We have
to look for other causes than that which
the Minister for Works so plausibly put
forward for this cancellation. From
the evidence of the witnesses who were
called, it suenis to me we are forced
to the conclusion that the " Prinz
Sigismund " episode was the actual

-ground for cancellation, and was the
real trouble, as set forth in paragraph
9 of the select comrnitteels report.

The -Minister for Lands :We all
admnit that now.

Hon.- FR ANK WILSON : The Mfinister
for Works did not, and I do not think
he admnits it now. 'Here is its con-
elusion-

The comm-ittee desires to express
the opinion that, had the arrange.
mnns as to the "N 2 " been un-
disturbed, Nevanas and Co. could
reasonably have been expected to
carry out the contract entered into
for the Wyndhamn Works and water
supply, and if they had failed to carry
out any part of their undertaking
the advantage would have been with

the Government and there would not
have arisen this question of damages
in respect to the deliberate violation
of an agreenlent entered into as
regard this ship.

Then, take Mr. Angwin's own evidence
before the select conmnittee. He was
asked these questions and he gave the
Answers set down-

Would you consider that the Gov-
ernment were liable to compensate
Nevanas when he had not complied
with the conditions which were laid
down in his interim agreement ?-
If that had been all that was at stake
at the time, I can assure you I would
not-have agreed to any coinpeiwation.

Do you consider then. that the
"Prinz Sigismnund " transaction was

a contract which would make the
Government liable for damages 7-As
regards the " Prinz Sigismund " we
were advised there would be a claim
for damages. What the amount of
the damages would be, of course, would
depend on the court.

Then Air. Taylor asked a question-
Wa~s there a suggestion that it

might run into £5,000 or £C6,000 ?-
It would all depend on what the court
thought Nevanas had lost on account
of it. What influenced mre i paying
the;£5,600 wras the " Print Sigisniund"
matter equally With the large amount
of profit the Government would make.
The Mlinister for Works -: That £5,600

should be £3,19)4.
Hon. FRANK WILSON: The next

question was-
Proft over the meterial purchased

-Yes. In the first place, however if
the '"Prinz Sigismund " incident had
not been in it at all I would not have
negotiated with Ne\Tvanas.

Yet the. Minister for Works4 this after-
noon repudiated that attitude, and
pointed out that 'Nevana.; could have
chartered the " Aliga " from the
Adelaide Steamship Co. at little addi-
tional cost. The taking away of the
"Prinz Sigismund " steamer was not

the original cause why the contract
was cancelled. If that be so, what
was the cause 7 I think it is evident
that finance was not altogether the
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cause. If so, the Government have
shown little discrimination in dealing
with a man of straw, notwithstanding
that they made sonmc inquiries about
him. I would like to know what
evidence they have when they say lie
is a reputable man financially.

The Minister for Works: None of
us has ever said hie was not sound
financially.

Hfon. FRANK WILSON: Yes, the
Minister for Works said so in his evidence.

The Minister for Works,: I said hie
wanted us to pay for everything,

Mr. George : Did you tell M~r. Nevanas
he had not the finances to do the work?
You told hint that in a letter to himi-.

Tho Minister for Works -. 'ie wanted
uas to finance himu right through.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: That all
shows that Mr. Nevanas was unfinancial
so far as this work was concerned, and
the comnmittee have shown that, in
their opintion, and it is; now admnitted by
the Minister for Works, the steamier

"Prinz Sigisnund " episode wee the
cause of the work not being carried out
ini accordance with the contract Nevaunai
had entered into. If that be so, let me
point. out that for fear of a claimx or
breaich of contract with regard to that
steamer, the Minister willingly and
calmnly foregoes a £50,000 profit which
hie claimed to have made for the State.:

The Minister for Works . T'hat is
wrong.

The Preier : Did you know the
bottom of the dock was going to fall in !

Hon. FRANK WVILSON: I know the
Premier is going to fall in, and that lion.
members are going to be buried in the
ruins of these freezing works. 'Why
was this arbitrary action taken with
regard to the "rrinz Sigismund " which
has caused all this terrible loss, to say
nothing of the delay in the erection of
the works ? Because the Goverrnent,
after many years, decided to get rid
of that dreadfully bad proposition, the
siteamner "XWestern Australia." So that
we can trace all our troubles in con-
nection with these freezing works to the
fact of the Government having emnbarked
upon a venture which has proved dis-
astrous and which they own up to.

They decided to out their loss, and senit
the steamer Borne. If whfbt the AMii-
isor say; is correct, the country is to

loso enormously, and the £650,000 is the
difference between what theo works are
to cost now and what they would have
cost.

The MAinister for Works : The " Prinz
Sigismund " was not the sole cause of
the cancellation of the contract.

Hon. FRIANK WILSON: According
to the evidence it was the principal
cause. Therefore, we trace the trouble
back to the first secret purchase miade
by the Government, the purchase of a
decrepit and ebsolete-to use the words
of the manager of the State steamers-
ship), the "'W~esterni Auistralia."

Hon. it. H. Underwood (Honorary
Miniister): Recommuended by Newton
Mroore.

Ron. FRANK WILSON : I cannot
conitect the other secret transaction with
this transaction. I cannot connect the
piowellising contract and thle subsequent
sleeper contract, nor the Monteath pipe
contract with it, but 1 can connect the
reprehensible secret purchase of the
S.S. " Kangaroo " as being undoubtedly
the outcomec of this unfortunate tran-
saction, because she is to take the place
of the " N 2 " w]hen she comes out.

Hon. it. H. Underwood (Honorary
Minister) : She is not.

Hon. FBAIKK WVILSON: What
further concerns ine is the management
agr-eemnent. TJhle Minister for Works
indignantly denied that there was any
suich thing asq a mnanagemtent agreement,
and whlen the member for Murray-
Wellington, pointed out there was an
agreement, and a hard and fast one,
he was greeted with guffaws all round
from, the intelligent occupants of the
benches opposite. The agreemeont is
contained in the telegrams, s ebsequently
confin-ned by letter, which passed be-
tween the Premier and 'Mr. Nevanas.
']hle Premier wired to Mr. 'Nevanas on
tile 19th Junie, l9l--

Forwarding by next mnail draft
agreement for report, and if report
is adopted and works undertaken,
a sumn of £ 1 500 and £500 for ex penses,
covering cost of inspection and advice
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and supervision over erection of works.
(2) I report only i6 ±iau, siiii ut
£1,000 to cover report and expenses ;
if report adopted and works erected,
Government to agree to proposal for
Nevanas and Co. to act as agents and
managers on conditions to be provtided
by subsequent agreement.

Trhe telegram sent in reply to that
read-

Many thanks telegram, agree terms
Post schedule of steamers.

There is the contract for the management
of the works, and any court in the
world would insist upon that contract
being carried into effect. It is idle for
the Government to say that if they do
not agree upon terms of management
the thing falls to the ground, because a
court would insist upon them agreeing
to reasonable terms. So the member
for Murray-Wellington was perfectly
right in his contention, that, not only
had this gentleman an agreement as to
commission as agent and architect, but
hie had an agreement for the management
on termzs subsequently to bhe arranged.
Following that, a draft agreement was
drawn up by Mr. Sayer, the Solicitor
General. Presumably instructions were
given by someone, because Mr. Sayer
did not move in that matter on his
own account. Mr. Sayer must have
been instructed to prepare the agree-
ment for completion. Mfr. Sayer said
he drew it up after discussing it with
the Premier himself. Mr. Sayer also
saw M1r. Nicholson, Mr. Nevanas's
solicitor, and the agreement was drafted
and sent to Ministers ready for com-
pletion, and in his evidence, Mr. Sayer
said there was no need for the agreement
to go back to himn because it only required
to be signed.

Hon. R. H. Underwood (Honorary
Minister) : That was just what wee the
matter with it.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: It is no
use the Honorary -Minister contending
there was no agreement in existence.
The two telegramls, which I have just
read, form anl agreement whether sub-
sequently the arrangement was con-
finned by a formal agreement or not.

What are the findings of' the select
Uunitim 7

Hon. R. H. Underwood (Honorary
MKinister): They never found what
they were looking for ; their report
was belaboured enough.

Hon. FRANK WILSON:. I wyould
like to belahour the Honorary MAinister.

Hon. R. H. Underwood (Honorary
Minister):- Well, what are the findings
of the select committee ?

Honl. FRAN-\K WILSON: If the
Honorary Minis ter has any common sce
hie can grasp the position. The select
conmnittee found, and in no uncertain
terms, that Nevanas had been overpaid
as an architect. The report is endorsed
by three lion. memrbers who occupy seats
on the Ministerial side of the House and
two members who are on this side. They
found that Nevanas had been paid 3
per cent. instead of 2 per cent. It is
true that they said that the manage-
mnent agreement was somewhat in doubt,
because they could not get hold of all
the papers in connection with it. Sinco
then the document has been discovered

-by the Premier's secretary. The comn-
mittee found that the present Minister
f or Lands ('Mr. Johnson), -whose hand
is seen right throughout these tran-
sactions, knew all about the pipe con-
tract with -Mr. Davies, and had author-
ised the deal.

Mr. Mlullany : The report says no-
thing of the sort, and you know it.

Ron. R. H. Underwood (Honorary
Minister) : The report says nothing at
all, so ]iow canl it say that?

Hon. FRANK WILSON : They ex-
press grave doubts as to the disputed
letters which are stated to have been
handed to the Minister and which hie
denies having received. But there is
evidence to show that Mir. Johnson,
the M1inister f or Lands, had instructed
Mr. Beasley to advise Nevanas of tile
tenor of their report when they recomn-
mended the accep~tance of this contract.
Then the con-unittee find that had the
arrangement in regard to the steamner

"N2 " been carried out -Nevanas could
have completed his contract, and the
country would have been saved the loss,
or would have earned the profit which
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the Minister f or Works claimed was the
ground of their action in departing from
the principles of sound administration
and not calling tenders fobr the work.
Then the committee find that the 5 per
cent. commission on material, which had
been purchased by Nevanas. and taken
over from him by the Government was
paid to Nevanas on Nevanas's own
data., that no sufficient check had been
made of the accounts or the material
when this payment was made. And
the committee also find that commission
was paid on a certain cork contract which
is was very improbable would be carried
out.

The Minister for 'Works :I do not
think it will be carried out now, for
the place has been burned down.

The Premier :We are responsible
f or that, too.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: You should
have had a proper contract, and then
you could have recovered. Let ine,
in passing, comment onl the fact that
a settlement has been made and this
large sum paid for commission, without
check on the material or invoices ; that*
there is no guarantee that fullI values have
been received for the money paid. One
thing we know: Large quantities of
oregon have been brought from Mel-
bourne to be sent to Wyndham, and
large quantities of joinery work in
soft wood have been landed in Fremantle
to be sent up for these works. Every-
one is aware that this material is quite
worthless and will have been eaten out
by white ants before tile buildings are
completed,

Air. Ileitmann: Who is responsible
for the soft wvood ?

Hon. FRANK WILSON : Who but
the gentlemen who have sanctioned the
purchase of the material ? Mr. Nevanas
purchased the stuff, but the Goverrnent
have taken it over.

The Mlinister for 'Works : On the
advice of the Chief Architect.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: -I do not
care about that; I am now dealing
with the Government. The colmmittee
also find that there is no guarantee that
the plant purchased can do the work.
Mr. Cairns con-ments on that rather

severely, but in his usual Scotch style
says at the conclusion of his remarks,
"' \eT must make the best of it, as it
has been ordered." This, after pointing
out that the boilers are not of sufficient
capacity and that there is no guarantee
as to the capacity of the remainder of
the plant. Then the committee have
something to say on the subject of
reinforced concrete, which was enlarged
upon so much by the Minister for Lands
on the motion for the appointment of
the select committee, when he said
that we had no experts in Western
Australia who could handle the question,
and that therefore it must be submitted
for reference to experts in the Eastern
States. The conmmittee find that it

was never submitted to experts in thle
Eastern States at all. In. fact the
findings of the committee are over-
whebiningly against the Government,
and go to prove right through that
Nevanas was everything, could do any-
thing, that lie was a6 marvellous man
in the estimation of the Government,
who placed themselves and the State's
affairs and interests entirely in his
hands. That he had a marvellous in-
fluence is evidenced right through the
inquiry. Mr. Beasley, the Chief Archi-
toot, states in his evidence that he
thought Nevanas was a partner with
the Government in these works.

The MVinister for 'Works . Where does
he say that?

Hon. FRANK WILSON: In answer
to question 304. Turn it up for your-
self. Mr. Stevens, the manager of the
State Steamship Service, at the request
of this gentleman sends along all par-
ticulars of the new boat hie wants the
Government to purchase-simply on
Nevanas's word that he has discussed
the mnatter with the Premier. Mr.
Davies, the manager at that time of the
State Implement 'Works, puts £20,000
worth of pipes in hand and waits upon
N~evanas even down to his steamer
when he is leaving for the Eastern
States. Not only has Nevanas got the
departmental officers under his control,
under his thumb, but the very Ministers
are at his beck and call. The Premier
confers with him in regard to steamers.
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The Minister for Lands gets a move on
in the fixing up of the contract, and
allows his officers 24 hours in which to
consider a proposal involving an ex-
penditure of £155,150 ; and he has no
sooner got into the contract with Nevanas
than he exhibits equal hurry in getting
out of it, in cancelling it and paying
compensation, paying compensation to
a defaulting contractor !The depart-
mental officers were mesmerised. The
only man who showed any resistance
was Mr. Angwin, the Minister for Works.
His characteristic pugnacity, of course,
got his back up, and he wouild have none
of Nevanas ;yet hie also has recently
come under the spell and he recommends
the payment of compensation. The
funk was established all round. Some-
thing was at the back of the Chief
Architect's mind, something put the
fear of God into the Premier and the
Minister for Lands, and they all rushed
in. Ten weeks after they had entered
into this contract which wvas to be of
such advantage to the State, they
tumbled over each other to see howv they
could cancel it and pay compensation
to this man ;and everyone said, "We
must make the best terms possible."

Mr. Heitmana He was a nice man.
Hon. FRANK WILSON: He must

have been. The Premier goes further
and says in his evidence that he may
yet enter into a management agreement
with Nevanas & Co.

The Premier: I did not.
Hon. FRANK WILSON: I think I

have pointed out that Nevanas acted
dishonestly. There is no question about
it in my mind that whilst in a con-
fidential position as agent for the Gov-
ernment, and while he had in his pocket
a tender, the property of the Govern-
ment, he put in his own tender and kept
the other tender back. This is shown
clearly, because he persuades Mr.
Beasley that he did not want any profit.
He knew his position. He said the
price he was putting in carried no profit
to him, that he did not want any profit.
Does it not show that the gentleman
was not to be trusted ? And yet the
arrangement he was making was cal-
culated to produce a profit of £18,000.

The Engineer-in-Chief and the Under
Secretary of Public WVorks, who are
intimately connected with transactions
of this description, were absolutely
ignored. Their subordinate officers were
taken from their control and appointed
by the Minister for Lands hurriedly,
without reference to the heads of the
departments, in order that they might
advise the Government as to their
action.

The Minister for Works : It was your
action which removed the Chief Architect
f roni the control of the Engineer-in-Chief.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: What has
that to do with it ? And this gentleman
who has had the Government for 12
months by the hair of the head signs
his letters, or did on one occasion,
"For and on behalf of the Government
of Western Australia." Can audacity
go further ? "' For and on behalf of the
Government of Western Australia " is
the style in which he signs his corres-
pondence to people from whom he is
purchasing material. Yet this is the
man who, according to Ministers could
not pay for what he was purchasing.
The man who provided all the plans.
Mr. Dunkerley-

Mr. Thomson: And all the brains.
Hon. FRANK WILSON: Not all

the brains. I will modify that, and
say he provided the practical brains.

Mr. E. B. Johnston: And the Govern.
ment found all the money.

Ron. FRANK WILSON: Un-
doubtedly they did. What is Nevanas's
attitude towards Mr. Dunkerley, the
practical man who has erected works of
this description in other parts of Aus-
tralia, who is doing freezing work for
Nevanas's London company ? Drinker-
Icy got out the plans and specifications,
travelled round here and visited Wynd-
ham with Nevanas, and drafted his
report, or at least furnished him with
the necessary information for the draft-
ing. Then in the end Mr. Nevanas
cornes down to 'Mr. flunkerley, and in
that dramatic way of which be is
apparently a past master, he says the
Government have skinned him com-
pletely out; " Let me down as lightly
as you can-" And all the time he had
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nearly f9,000 in his pocket wvhile he
pleaded with Mr. Dunkerley to let him
off with a payment of some £1,200.
I cannot conceive of a greater travesty
on the alleged business capacity of
Ministers. I cannot conceive of anything
that goes to prove more fully their
ineptitude and lack of business capacity,
I cannot conceive of Anything which will
prove more conclusively than this re-
Iport and the evidence on which it is
based, the absolute weakness and in-
ability of my hion. friends opposite to
deal with a smart adventurer who
comes to Western Australia on the
make. I am sorry to use an expression
of that sort against any man, but whlen
we have the evidence that Nevanas
has had the Government and that he
has had his own contractor, we cannot
come to any other conclusion. And
now the gentleman is safe away in
New Zealand and was not hero to put
his own side of the case before the
select committee.

Mr. Heitmann: And I doubt whether
he has paid his board and lodging.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: Let me
draw attention to the arguments of the
M\inister for Works in connection with
these plans. He contends that the
plans are complete. He struggled into
the House this afternoon with that
great bundle of plans and flopped it on
the Table in order that lion. members
should see that we have received full
value for the £4,650 paid. Yet the
lion. member said on one occasion that
we had no one in the State capable of
carrying out these works. The state-
menit is on &,par with that of the Minis ter
for Lands, who said wre had no officers
in the State who knew anything about
reinforced concrete work. We have the
evidence of the Engineer-in-Chief and
we have the evidence of Mr. Cairns, the
refrigerating engineer, that they can
carry out this work.
- The Minister forNWorks: The Engineer-
in-Chief is pressing to-day to have a
man appointed for these works

Hon. FRANK WILSON Probably
to supervise them.

The Minister for Works : No, to
construct them.

Mr. O'Loghilen :Do not. take Cairns
as an authority.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: And we have
the statement of the Minister for Works
in this Chamber only an hour or two since
that they are redesigning the works,
altering the plans, and improving them
themselves.

The Minister for Works ;Very slightly.
Hon. FRANK WILSON: And that

they arc now busy erecting the works.
The Minister for Works; I did not

say that.
Ron. FRANK WI [SON: We have this

conclusion by Ministers on one hand
that our officers are no good, when the
evidence is against them-

The Minister for Works : Most of the
evidence is in our favour.

lion. FRANK WILSON: And as
soon ~as the evidence is in their favour,
our officers, according to Ministers, are
all that can be desired. I think I have
said sufficient to show that the motion
moved by the member for Murray.
Wellington is justified. I hope that the
division will he decided on the merits
of the case and that special pleading
such as that indulged in by the Minister
for Works this afternoon will receive no
consideration and have no weight with
members when recording their decision.

The Premier: Hear, hear !You are
after office.

Hon0:. FRANK WILSON: After office?
'The Premier: That is aI
ion. 1FRAN K WILSON: Who would

like the olflee that [lie hion, member is
Loin- to vacate?

'lie Premiier: You dlid not want it 12
months ago.

E-on. FIIANIK WILSON: Asa matter
oC fact I do not want it now. When the

Stale is g-oing- to the bad at the rate of
£80,000 to £100,000 a mion-th, no one
wvould envv I he P'remier his position. The
deficit will be £1,500,000 in a few months
and probably wBi soon reach £2,000,000,
and heaven knows when it wvill stop. No
one will envy the Premier his post, but if
the needs of the State demand it, and I
thkink Ih cv (10 demand it, and it is within
iny po~vcr lo turn the lion, gentleman and
his colleagues out of office owing to the
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disastrous failures. they have proved
themselves to be, 1 will take that action
no matter what the consequences might be
to my' self personally.

The premier: Do not make yourself a
martyr.

Hon. FRANK WILSON: I have
pointed out that the act ion of the Govern-
lncni in regard to this private contract is
sullicienit to cause grave concern to ll]
right-thinking people in this State. 1
have shown that there was, in fact, a mail-
ageinent agreement which was also a jpri -
vate arrangement, and I ami sat isfied that
the evidence throughout discloses and thle
report of thie committee confirms a state
of affairs which is absolutely subversive of
the principles of sound Government.

Tme PREMIER (Hon. J. Scaddan-
Brown Hill-Ivanhoe) [8.48]: 1 am not
going to detain the H-ouse aLtiany great;
length onl this particular motion beca use
the subject has been discussed ad nauseam
both during this debate and through the
Press. The only difficulty I have experi-
enced in connection with the matter, havv-
ing followed it fairly closely from the
moment we commenced negotiations in
connmection with the establishment of
freezing works atl Wyndham, is to re-
concile somec of the statements made in
his Clamber wvithI what actually took

place (luring the negotiations. I have
heard so many conflicting- statements duir-
lag this dehate in particular and also dur-
in,- the Address-in-reply, hait I am he-
gining to wonder whether we actually
negotiated in connection with freezing-
works at all, as the statements (10 not
seem to lbe on a par with what aetunall'
transpired. Thle present position is such
that I think I ari warranted in maiang a
statement with rcgard to thle atfiitde of
the Government. I readily accepted the
intimat ion of the leader of the Opposition
that this motion "'as intended to he one
of want of confidence in the Government,
in order to give this Chamber an oppor-
timity' to express an opinion whether we
continued to retain the confidence of the
House or not. I am readyv to admit that
the Opposition are always within their
-i'zhls in adlopting- an attitude of that
kind. I know I am not justified in sug-

cesting there are limes in thie history of
I he St ate laid ( lie Empire wvhen perha ps
that might give place to higher considera-
tions. The Opposition, after all, exist as a
party and as a party their considerations
must hie given first prominence, and the
considerations of the State and (lie Ema-
lire last. We have heard it stated] not
nmnyv monthis since that the present was
a lime w hen we should forget party and
should endeavour to combine to do whoit ii
best in the interests of the Slate. We
have heard it said, too, t mat there are
times in the history of a country when te
Execulive must take thle responsibility for
heiir action and do things which they

would not itmagine for a moment could,
he Justifled in normal times. I agree enl-
tirely withI that. If the piresent Executive
are not prepared to take action uinder ex-
isting conditions that might on the face
of it. be contrary to what is considered
by the paty in pow-er opposed to their

pi il-eu, action which they earnestly be-
lieve would lie in thne best interests of the
State and the Empire, they would not be
%vorth y of thle confidence of the House.
I repeat that the action in connection with
ltme establishment of the freezing works at
IVy adhani was taken by the Executive
with no oter object or purpose t han the
furthering of tilie jiatecrests of the Stale,
and through this State those of thle
)]other country itself. If members of
the Opposition wvill only carry back their
memtories a little, t 1mev will recognise that
before the presen party came into power
there had beet, negotiations by' our pre-
dlecessors ill connection with the estab-
lishiment of such works at Wyndham.
May' I for a moment drawv the attention
off members, opposite to (lhe fact that ne-
golt itiot's hadl been concluded and an
ag-reement signed which was never made
public, ain agreement of a private nature
between thle stock owyners onl the one part
and thne Governmient on the oilier.

Hon. J. 'Mitchell: The House wvas told
it time and again.

The PREMFIER: The House wvas not
told it, and while the negotiations formning
the subiject of the present motion were
taking p~lace between the present One-
erment and Mr. Nevanas, I endeavoured
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to obtain from the responsible department
'lie papers leading uip to thant agreement
entered into between the previous Gov-
erninent and AMr. Durack, acting on be-
half of the stock owners in the North,
and after many inquiries 1 was told that
unfortunately tile lile had been inadvert-
catty lost.

I-on. J. Ilitchell: It is here.
The PREIER:F I t is not here.
H-on. S. Mitchell: Of course it is.
The PREMIER: Nso, thle agreement is

here.
Hon. J. Mitchell: The file, too.
The PRZEIER - And] the agreemnent

was on]' produced when the select coin-
mittee demanded it. I, as hiead of lihe
Government, had req uested it and had
been unable to obtain it.

Ron. J1. Mtitchell : You produced it to
thle select commrittee.

'rie PRiEMIUER: I did nut; 'l did niot
see it unill the agreemient was submitted
to flit select committee and becamre pub-
lie property.

Mr. Allen: Wh'ere was it? Who had
itI?

The PREMAIER: I do not know.
MVr. George: You could find out.
The PREMIER: I. can say that the se-

lect committee did not get the file, nor-
have I. seen the file containing thie negoti-
ations. leading uip to thle agreemlent, nor
have thie selec-t cormmittee thle file dealing-
with thle cancellation of that agreement.

Mlr. George: There are at lot of things
we have not got, and mnany of thlem out
of your office.

The PRPEfiER: When members op-
posite are talking about private contracts
in connection with the establishment of
freezing workis in the North they should
remember that they themselves had
negotiated in connection with this mat-
ter as well.

Air. Thomson: Did it cost them any-
thing-?

Thle PREMIER: It was not the fault
of the then Government that it did not
cost them anything. Had the samne posi-
lion arisen then as has arisen now, tile
result might have been the same. The
oilier people could not raise the wind
and perhaps it was because the parties

to the contract discovered that Parliament
was niot in a temuper to permit the thenr
Governmrent to make a contract banding
over thie meat supplies of the North-West
to thenm without anmy proper safeguIards.
Whatever moight be said about tihe private
letting of a contract to build works,
which in this case I. again ass:ert was dlone
to endeavour to save this State £50,000
to £00,000 at least, andi 'I believe on pre-
sent, figures approaching £100,000, was
dlone with thie orle desire to assist thle
Alother coutry in her present difficulties,
whieh at this mioment are being applre-
ciated in Western Australia, when the
imj~eriail Government asked us to exert
every effort to supply frozen meat to
feed thre army. The urrgency of the mat-
ter wa-.s to endeavour to establish works
to prov'ide frozen mouent from the only
quarter 'whence meat in any abundance
could be supplied after the end of thec
present year.

Mr. Gecorge: We arc not quarrelling
with that, we aire quarrelling with your
business mnethiods.

AMr. Foley: Sandbaig him.
The PR3EMIER: Tfhe member for Mar-

ray-Wellingtion should take a seat on thle
sandbags committee; hie is the best sand-
bagger I know. Will the lion. member
admit that scores of actions were taken.
by past Governments in this State with-
out any immejdiate urgency or desire to
help thle State, but merely for political
purposes, and which, when inality bad
been reached, those who had entered into
the engagements reg-retted! Will not he
admit that even the party to which hie is
attached was in that position in regard
to thle Fremantle dlock, and that they
would never have started negotiations for
that work if they, could have foreseen that
the bottom would fall out of it? Butl
would there be any reason to condemn
their desire to establish a dock, simply
because they failed in carrying out tile
project?7

Ron. J. Mitchell: Of course it would
be.

Thle PREMIER: The hon. member does
not mind. Thle same position arises here.
If members wilt view the position from
the point of view I have put forward,
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which Can be found expressed in the
ailes and which was putt before the select
committee, a desire to establish these
works; in order to catch the next season,
they cannot condemn thle Government for
having (lone something unwise or against
the interests of the State. I admit that
if I could have seen the position as I
see it now, these neggotiations would never
have proceeded to the extent they did. I
admit that readily, but as I have said
previously, I say again that we did it
with one desire and one only. A great
deal can be said at this stage with re-

gi to the methods of procedure. Hon.
members on both sides of thle House, and
thle public too, obtained a wrong impres-
sion largely due to a biassed party Press,
that only publishes so much as will suit
its party purposes, the local Press that
Follow6s the lead of the Northeliffe Press
in England. The Nsorthcliffe Press would
sacrifice the Empire to get even with Mr.
Asquitb and the present Cabinet, and
the Western Australian Press, adopting
exactly the same attitude, would sacrifice
Western Australia and the best interests
of the Empire by throwing duast in the
public's eyes for the purpose of wrecking
the present Government.

Mir. George: I do not think so.

The PREMIER: ft cannot be denied.
I can prove in scores of instances where
such has happened. There has never been
a time when the Press got down to the
low, dirty, party tactics they have in re-
Cent months, with one object and that
to wreck the Government. And wvhy?
'Because they have discovered that, not-
withstanding all they had been saying
12 months after our election about
the financial position and about the
chaos we were bringing to -the
State, we have carried the State
throug-h a trying time such as any
State in the Commonwealth, or any part
of thle British Empire has not previously
experienced. And they can see in the
near future brighter times ahead and they
want their party to gett into office to reap
thle advantage of those brighter times and
make a comparison of their so-called suc-
cess against the so-called failure of La-

hour administration. It will stand little
to thle credit of our friend, the leader of
the Country party, to say he is going to
support the motion, and that he is not
responsible for thle action in mauking it
a no-confidence motion when his patty,
through their leader in this House not 12
months ago, told us they were going to
support the Government, irrespective of
thle party of which they were composed,
who would do the best to Carry the set-
tiers over the difficulties they were expet'-
iencing. I challenge that hon. member,
if he is honest in his political opinionls,
to now say whether any Government
could have done any better then we have
done, or as well as we have done, in giv-
ing expression to our desires to help the
settlers over their difficulties. I have only
this day obtained the consent of the Gov-
ernor to a proclamation postponing the
payment of the debt of every man who
received any assistance from the Indus-
iiirs Assistance Board in order to
get 'him out of the clutches of
somne of the patriotic Liberals who
have attached themselves to the
Farmers' and Settlers' Association in
St. George's terrace. Some of those cred-
itors who are supposed to be representing
the settlers have determined that unless
the settlers paid up their debts, instead
of giving themn preferential treatment a,
was intended by Parliament, they would
go so far as to actually take their horses
away from them. These are some of thle
1 'cople who are following- soinc(if our
friends on the cross Opposition benches,
who, before ever they bear the defence
of the Government, have received wri-
ten instructions authonising Ilmem to vo0te
for the motion.

Mr. A. A. Wilson: Let; them vote.

The PREMIER: Yes, let them vote.
Yet we hear our friends opposite who
are playing the game of catching our
other friends with little bait,' complain-
ing of the dominance of those on
this s ideu of thec I-louse by thle
*fradles Hail. The Trades5 1all of
Ihis State hans never vet issued in-
struct 'ions to any member of this party
as to how they are to vote in Par-
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liament. We decide each one for our-
selves how we shall vote. Our friends
who particularly cominRf so much about
it are thle allies of the cross Opposition
benches, the occupants of which not only
lhavs a platform and a piledge but are
instructed to vote in Parliament before
ever they hear tine defence of the Gov-
erment. I anticipate that our friend,
tine leader Of thle Country party, in ac-
cordance with his actions during the last
mouth or two, went along tq the meeting-
of his executive and urged that this mo-
tion should be supported. He has fallen
aver the Liberals. 1 venture to say that
I think they saw an opportunity of coin-
ing in on thle Treasury bench.

Mr. Willmott : That shows howinuch
thle Premier knows about it.

The PREIER: He is so much at-
tached lo the Fartners' and Settlers' As-
sociation that lie will get here quickly
enough if hie gets a chance.

1\1r. \Villmott:- That is unworthy of the
Premier.

The PREMIER: What bas hie done in
con nection with Lte motion? He hias-
stood] in his place and said: "I do regret
that certain innuendoes have been cast
abroad, and that certain reflections have
heen made upon Ministers. I had for
my own protection to get tile matter un-
ravelled before the select committee, be-
cause Mr. Courthope wrote to me." M1r,
Courtnope, hefore lie wrote to our friend,
had declared that hie was going to leave
the Farners' and Settlers' Association, or
the Country party,' because they would not
take some action lie desired them to take.
From the moment that our friend ob-
tained that letter, although lie has urgeri
the Government to do something for the
settlers, hie has never yet made any gen-
uine suggestion as to what should be
dlone.

Mr. Willmott: The Premier does not
understand.

Thle PREMIER: I cannot understand
thle lion. miember. He is supposed] to re-
present the settlers of Western Australia.
He has never yet made any suggestion
that could be adopted. If we had waited
for any sugg-estion that tile hion. member

night have made for the assistance of
the settlers, the settlers would have been
starving by this timle. Our friend now
makes this protestation. As the leader of
the great Country party in this State,
he should at least have taken mie into his
confidence, but instead of doing that, he
goes along to the select committee be-
cause, forsootli, the gentleman who-wrote
the letter would be privileged to make
his statement before that committee,
and be protected.

Mr. Willmott: If it had been true the
Premier would have got all he deserved.

Thle PREMIER: The hion. member did
not, however, come to mne and make men-
tion of the fact, but gave an opportunity
to these gentlemen who had been mualignl-
in- me behind my back to make their
statements in such a way that I could not
afterwards make theni prove or retract
them. I was at the rime negotiating,
through my.) solicitors, with Mr. Court-
htope, to get a deflinite statement on which
1. could take action. 11 did not want a
select committee to clear my character,
or even a Rloyal Commission. While we
have courts in the land, I am prepared to
stand or fall by their decision, and to
take tie full responsibility and the ex-
pense upon miy own shoulders of any
action iii those courts.

Mr. George: It did you no harmn any-
uway

The PREIER: I know that. I am
speaking of the leader of the Country
party. H-e protests against the position
hie was placed in because hie got a letter
from somneone. He says, "I had perforce
to go to the select committee and demand
that lie should be heard."

Mr. Wilfimoti: Because he stated that
I knew of my own knowledge that cer-
tain things had happened.

Thle PREMTIER: He knew just what
was dlone in the letter.

Mr. Willniott: I did not know any-
thing at all about it.

The PREMIIER: Why did not the
hun. member come to me, the person
chaiged? All I wanted was an oppor-
tunity to take the necessary action, but
I had no opportunity of doing so or of
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clearing my character, seeing that the mat-
ter was introduced in the way that it
was.

M r. George:- The committee cleared
you.

The PREMIER: I admit that. That
is not the only accusation that has been
madec against me since I have been sit-
ting on the Treasury hench, in regard to
my honesty and integrity.

Mr. George: It is the only one I have
heard of.

The PREMIER:- It is not the only one.
Accusations have been made freely, es-
pecially during the last general election,
by Liberal officers. I have been accused
of taking £30,000 commission from t he
tramway company over the purchase of
thie trains. I have been accused of ac-
cepting f1O,000 commission from the con-
tractors for the erection of tile pow~er
house in East Perth. I have even heard
the hon. member in his place, while the
lender of the Opposition was mentioning
some matters, by innuendo saying, "I
wonder what they did with the money."

Mir. George: Is the Premier referring
to ma?

The PREMIER: Yes, the member for
Murray-Wellington.

Air. George: I do not remember any-
thing of the sort.

The PREMIER: These are not the
only accusations. Accusations have been
made against me for party purposes,
and with a party object in view. It
is playing the game pretty low down
when we cannot stand upon our princi-
ples without introducing personal mat-
ters of this sort.

.Mr. George: Do you say that our leader
charged you with having accepted bribes?

The PREMIER: I say that he said so
by innuendo. He said it in a way that I
do not think did him very much credit.
If the lion. member cannot recollect this,
hie should brush up his memory a bit.

Mr. George: Is it in Mansard?
The PREMIER: Yes, it is in. Hansard.
Mr. George: I will find it then.
The PREMIER: On the particular

night that I am referring to, I immedi-
ately followed the leader of the Opposi-

tion, instead of waiting for the adjourn-
mnent of the House in order to reply to
his criticisms of the Government. I took
exception to his statement on that very
occasion. The hion. member was attack-
ing iue by wanting to know what had
been done with the money. I think
I said that if hion. members would
sling- mud about, some of it would
slick. I say it was the attitude
adopted by the leader of the Op-
position then that has caused a great
deal of these remarks to be circulated so
freely throughout Western Australia.
Thes statements have so often been
made that the people have begun to im-
akine that there must be something
wrong, and that the leader of the Oppo-
sition could not go on suggesting these
things unless there was something in
them, that where there was smoke there
must hie fire. They arc being circulated
freely throughout the State, in conse-
qilence of the fact that the leader of the
Opposition, backed uip by the member for
Milurray-Wellington, and by innuendo,
has given force to these statements.

Hlon. Prank Wilson: I would like you
to prove that.

The PREMIER: The hon. mem-
ber has Only to read his speech again.
I suppose, however, he is too much
aishamed to do so.

Mr. George: The Premier will he
ashamed when he reads his speech in
the mornin.

The PREM-NIER: I am not ashamed Of
my speech. I am on my defence to a
certain extent, and am certainly not
ashamed of what I am saying. The
leader of the Opposition' has shown no
reason why this motion should be carried.

Hon. Frank Wilson: Have I not?
The PREMIER: Unless it be that the

committee made a unanimous report, in
wvhich we find nothing of any value ex-
cept that in some directions, as they as-
sert, officers of the department had mis-
judged the position and wrongly advised
tIhe Government. That is all they can say.
Outside the fact as to whether we were
wrong, in their opinion, in entering into
a contract without calling for public ten-
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ders, there is nothing to which excepti on
canl be taken, or which would warrant
such a drastic motion. In his conl-
cluding remarks, the leader of the
Opposition applauded my colleague,
the Minister for Works, for his
method in handling the matter. Half
the speech of thle leader of the Op-
position wvas condemnatory of the Gov-
erumeni for the manner in which we can-
celled thie contract. Half of his speech
was directed against thle Government for
flie manner in which we closed the deal
and brought about thie cancellation of
thle contract. The cancellation was
brought about by the Minister for Works
onl the advice of his officers. Every slbip
lie took was taken after consulting the
Crown Law authorities and other officers
for the purpose of getting out of what
was admittedly a difficult position.' And
yet the leader of the Opposition now
applauds the Minister for Works.

Bon. Frank Wilson: Did 11
rube PREMIER: Why! Because the

lion, member endeavoured, as many
others, have endeavoured to do, to cast
the whole of the blame upon my col-
league the Minister for Lands, a nd to
set off one Minister against another.

Hon. Frank Wilson: It is in evidence.
You are just as bad.

The PREMIER: From the hall. mem-
ber's point of view I know I am very
much worse.

Honl. Frank Wilson: You are both bad.
Thle PREMIER: I do not accept the

opinion of thle hon. member, either as re-
gards mnyself or any of my colleagues.
His opinions are biassed, and that being
so no jury oas a right to accept them.
I certainly do not prop~ose to accept
them. As head of the Government I
accept the full respionsibility, for any
action taken either by the Minister for
Lands or the UMister for Works. If
either of these Ministers falls as a conse-
q1uence of his action in this direction I

am going to fall with him.
lion. Frank Wilson: You will do that.
The PREIER: I do not know so

much about that. When the hon. gentle-
man fell from the Treasury benches the

fall was not brought about in this man-
ner. We appealed to the people, and the
people turned him out quickly.

Hion. Frank Wilson: Do not launch
into heroics. The people will turn you
out.

The PREMIER: The people may do
so, but they w-ill take any early uppor-
tunity of putting uts backc again on the
Treasury benches when they recognise
the dinerence betwveen the principles
enunciated by its and the principles enuin-
ciated by' our friends opposite.

Mr. George: Give the country a chance.
lion. Frank Wilson: Give uts the freez-

ing wvorks.
P re PREMIER: I do not propose to

go throughi the whole of the negotiations
which led tip to entering into the con-
tract, and to its final cancellation. We
have had all this ad nauseam. Thle mem-
ber for Murray-Wellington, dealt with it
by practically reading the report of $ le
select committee. The lender of the Op-
position has done nothing else but read
newspaper reports and the report of the
select committee.

Hon. Frank Wilson: I never once read
from a newspaper.

The PREMIER: The Minister for
Works has given the position from the
Government point of view.

Hon. Frank Wilson: I did not read a
word from a newspaper.

The PREMIER: Possibly the hon.
member did not do so to-night but his
mind has been so used in reading the
newspapers on the question that he did
not require to bring along his newvspaper.
The West Australian is the wrapp~er for
the lion. member's brain.

Mr. Thomas: It must he a sausage
wrapper.

The PREMIER: I should hardly say
that. *A sausage is a mystery, and the
lion, member is one. I only ask the
House to consider the position as pre-
sented to them under this resolution. We
had a select committee representative of
every party in this House. The select
committee submitted a report which is
unanimous. I ask, in all seriousness, is
there a single finding in the select corn-
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miltee's report wvhich would warrant the
condemnat ion of the Government in con-
nection with this particular mattedl

Hon. Frant- Wilson: Yes, plenty.
'Pit PREAiER: If any hon. member

desires (lie report, merely for tile pur-
r-ose of turning- the Government out, the
report is not needed at all. The lion.
member interjecting was prepared to do
(hat before the select committee inquired
into the subject at all. His mind was
made Lap), when this Parliament met atte,
the general election, that the earliest op-
portunity wvas the right time to turn out
tie Government. I contend there is noth-
ing in the report of the select committee
that warrants the dr-astic motion submit-
ted by the member for Nfurray-Welling-
Ion. I am prejpared to admit, however,
that there are members on both sides of
this Hotise holding strenuously the view
that practically under no circumstances
would a Government be warranted in en-
tering into What Might be termed private
negotiations for the Construction of a
public work. I anm prepared] to admit
that there are lion, members who hiow
that view. But I also claim (hat I am as
strong an adherent of that principle as
is any member of this Chamber. On the
other hand, if circumstances warrant it,
if tMere are urgent reasons for taking
suchl a course, then a Government Would
not he worth their salt if they were not
prepared to accept the responsibility of
doing quickly an act that was supposed
to be in the best interests 'of the State.
W~hien the works are finally completed
and operating, in some years from now,
members of this House will look back
and say that it is a pity these negotia-
tions fell through at the last moment.
They will recognise then that the com-
pletion of the negotiations would have
saved the country anything from r50,000
to £100.000 in the cost of erection. andI
that even as regards the management
there would have been some saving to the
State.

Mr. Green: It will be just the same m~
the purchase of the Mlidland Railway.

The PREMlIER: Exactly. There are
members who object to this motion whi.
also objected to the Purchase of the Mfid-

land Railway Oil nuch the same rounds.
Now we hear complaints from all see-
lions of the commiunity that the oppol-
I unity of purchasing the AMidland Rail-
way was lost to the State. The position
has arisen in this Slate, owing to the
continual rum ours. whichI, however, ob-
tain currency only through the uitter-
ances of our friends opposite, the Gov-
ei, tent are not regarded as entitled to
make a dealt of any description because
there will lie all sorts of suspicions sur-
roundingl their actions andi their motives.
I ''ave said, andi I repeat now, that the
moment we entered into these negotia-
tions T said to my colleagues that our
action would he misconstrued. I said,
"We will be accused of ulterior motives,
but in the interests of I he State it is
worth wh~ile even to put tip with acchlsa-
lions of timat kind, rather t han lose the
opportunity of doing something of ex-
Ireme value under the circumstances.''
I know it is an easy matter, when the
event it past, to see where one might
have moved in a different direction and
obtained different results. I have already
admitted that, knowing as much as I (d0
lo-day, I would not have allowed the lie-
gotiations to proceed to the extent they
did. Bitt I declare in all earnestness that
the Government. in acting as they did,
had only one desire, only one anxiet *y,
and[ that was to conserve the best inter'-
eMIs of the State. andi, through them, the
interests of the Empire. I stand here as
free and as justified in my own conl-
science as before the select committee
ever sat or before this motion w'as tabled.
I admit that we did not obtain what we
dcsirc'l lo obtain. That was our misfor-
tune. We are now supply' ing 1,000 quar-
ters of beef per week front this Slate to
the Imperial Government, but we are
not supplying from that portion of the
State which could, V'ith, advantalge, Sup-
'lv. We arc draining that portion which
will he called on for supplies in lihe near
future for our own purposes. I admit
that, alhough I may be told the admis-
sion is foolish becaunse it wvihl mean a
slight increase in tile c,,sf of food here.
But even if it meant l1oubling lte price
of nieat to our people here, [ say we are
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justified in supplying, food 'o the soldiers
who are fiting the _Empire's battles.
Owving to thle rcurrelkCC of drought it
"'as evident that thle stocks of Australia
were going to fall enormously. They fell
even more than was anticipated, soimuch
so that even during the last three or four
months Western Australia h~as hiad to
send some of its mcut supplies to thle
Eastern States. But, we were face to face
with a request which,, I hike it, was in
the nature of a demand fromt the imuperial
,authorities, to provide every' pound of
frozen meat that could possibly be tiro-
vided. That request made the matter one
of urgency. Let me tell lion. n:enibers
that the speeial urgency of the rialtet
was this: if we mi ssed what is knjown,
not as thle cattle season, but as file work-
ing season in the North-West, the season
when wvorks can be carried out in that
portion of the State, it would have mneant
12 months delay in the operation of the
wvorks, A delay of at most two ntonths
in commencing construction opevatiou
would have meant a loss of 12 monthls in
the operation of the works. I want ho
ask any lion, member whether the Gov-
ernment were iiot justified in taking some
risk in the niatter, even if it meant con-
deinnation of the Government, turning,
them out of office, to do our duty as arn
Executive in this part of the Empire; to
assist not only the State itself, but also tim
Mother country in its dire necessity. I
care not, even if I have to sit in Opposi-
tion or go out of public life; I hold to
my view that we acted correctly, though,
unfortunately for ourselves and for the
country too, we failed.

Mr. George: Your methods were bad.
The PREMIER: How easy it would

be for ius to say that the methods of our
friends opposite were bad when they de-
cided, against the advice of their own
officers, to put a graving dock in the
place they did at Fremantle. I will not,
however, assert that the previous Govern-
ment were dishonest.

Hon. Frank Wilson: The site was
selected on the advice of experts from
Home.

The PREMIER: The work was under-
taken against the advice of expert offi-

cers in the department. Now that the
bottom has fallen out of the dock, it is
no use turning round and saying, "Your
methods were bad."

Hon. Frank Wilson: Why did you
sp~end £80,000 on the dock?

The PREMIER: For the same reason
that we spent money on other works com-
menced by the lion. member. A certain
amount of money had been expended,
.and we had] to prove whether the work
was suitable or not. Before this par-
ticular work of the dock was proved un-.
suitable, something like £270,000 of the
people's money was stink in it. I am not
blaming the previous Government for
their failure, because they honestly be-
lieved they were taking the best possible
course.

Mr. George: You spent £8S0,000 there.
The PRIEMIER : The fact that the

work proved a failure is not evidence
that the methods adopted in connection
with it were not the correct methods at
the time. I only' regret that there should
be anl effort on the part of some members
of this Chamber to lay the whole of the
blame for the failure of the Wyndham
freezing works contract on the shoulders
of my colleague, the Minister for Lands.
I dto not want him to take the blame. I
am prepared to take the blame wholly
and solely on mn'yself. T am as much re-
sponsible as any member of the Ministry
is for urging that the matter should be
forced ahead. I urged it ahead in order
to do what I considered to be my duty
as blend of tile Government, as I said be-
fore, carrying on the government of a
part of the British Empire.

Mr. George: Was not the meat of
more importance than thle sale of the
"Western Australia"?

The inmister for Works: The cancella-
tion of the contract did not come into it
in any way at that time.

The PREMIER: The member for
Murray-Wellington interjects that the
sale of the steamship was not as import-
ant as the production of meat. I am
quite prepared to admit that. At the
same time, the hion. member must admit
that then there was no sign or suggestion
that the contract was not going to be
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carried out. Besides, the '.Western Arus-
tralia" was not the only ship onl the
ocean, and there wvas no suggestion that
another ship could not be obtained. As
a mnatter of fact, at a subhsequent dlale it
wa discovered that the Adelaide Steam-
ship (C0. were prepared to charter the
"Atliiiga" for the lpurpose of carrying
[lie material to Wyndhamn. But all that
does not alter tlie fact that the neg-otia-
tions tip to the time when we had to can-
cel [ie contract would have undoubtedly
resultedi to the advantage of the State,
irrespeedve of whether Mr. Nevanas
acted fairly and sq~uarely' to the Govern-
ment or whiether he misled as. That has
no bearing on the action of the. (kvan-
mient, from their point of view, in en-
tering into a contract which they be-
tiered, and still believe. had it proceeded
would have been to the advantage of this
State and to the advantage of the Mlother
country as well. Now, unfortunately, it
is improbable that we shall catch the 1917
season; and by that time the advantage
which would have accrued to us will be
lost, because the Eastern Stales,. if t hey
have the good seasons which we hope they
will have, will recover their position, and
the great nueat trade already established
in those Stales will be hard to overtake.
fliese are the facts, after removing all

the padding and dispensing with all the
rather elaborate mnethod which hon. mem-
hers opposite have suggested might have
been employed for the purpose of doing
this business ia a different maniner. Of
course, anyone desirous of criticising can
find a different method. That is why
there are so many different kypes of
motor-cars. Everyone has his own ideas
concerning motor-cars. Thle fact re-
mains, however, that the Government's
desire was an honest desire--a desire on
their part even to incur criticism in order
that they might do their duty as an Ex-
ectitive; and I say even now, if there is
a failure in that direction, whether it
means the condemnation of the Govern-
ment or not b 'y this Chamber, my con-
science is perfectly clear, and I acted
fairly and honestly with the desire
to help both this State and the Mother
country-

Xi'. ROBINSON (Canning) [9.251:
'[Ito uctio before this House is not. re-

lating to the establishment of freezing
work., or to the sLupply of meat. -Neither
or those is the izsue.

The Premier: The issue is to put the
Government out. We know that.

31r. ROBINSON: The issue is as to
whet her lie met hods adopted by the Gov-
ernnmcnt are good or are bad; whether
they are business-like methods, whether
(1.v; are inethods that reflect credit on the
Governont and dio justice to the coun-
t ry. I1 anm going to ask this question:,
w -s thecre an agreemuent between the Gov-
ernment and Nevanas relating to the
management of the works and the agency
for the disposal of the product?
[The Depaty Speaker (11r. McDoicall)

took the Chair.]
'[le Minister for Lands: No.

M RO HBINSON: The Minister for
Lands answvers me, "no." The Premier
says "n. Thle Minister for Works says
"Iino! I will ask the House to decide.
Two telegi'uns have been read by the
leader of the Opposition. In order to
make mt) point the clearer, I crave leave
to read themi again, because they set out
in their own termns that which J say is an
agrxement. The Minister for Works;
phrases it, "an agreement for an agree-
merit."

The Minister for Works: Those are not
my words.

Mr. ROBINSON: None the less, that
makes it an ag-icementi. Let as see what
the n-reenient was. The first telegramn
was from 'Mr. Scaddan to Nevanas in
Adelaide-

Forwarding by next mad draft
agreement for a report and if report is
adopted and works undertaken a sum
of £1,500 and £.500 for expenses cover-
ing cost of inspection and edvice and
supervision over erection of works. If
rep-ort only is made the sum of £1,000
to cover report and expenses.

Now comne these vecry pregnant words-
If report adopted and] works erected
Government agree to proposal for Ne-
ranas & Co. to act as agents and manm-
agers on conditions to be provided by
subsequent agreement.
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IMr. B. J. Stubbs : You are not for-
getting that part.

Mr. ROBL\TSON: I am not for-
getting anything.

Mr. B. J. Stubbs: That is very
good.

Mr. ROBINSON: Mr. Nevanas a
reply to that telegram shows that he
had no misgivings as to the meaning of
the Premier's message. He replied in
the most definite language-

Many thanks for telegram. Agree
terms. Poet schedule steamiers.

Now, what does that mean ? We ,know
that a contract was entered into, or anl
agreement entered into, for the erection
of the works. Therefore the condition
laid down in the Premier's telegrami
was fulfilled.

Air. 13. J. Stubbs : What about the
latter part of the telegram ?

Mr. ROBINSON:- If the report is
adopted and the works are erected,
the Government agree to the proposal for
Nevanas to act as agent and manager.

Mr. B. J, Stubb&,: Read the conclusion
of the telegram.

IMr. ROBINSON: It has all been
read several times. If the hon. memnber
wishes to address the House, hie will
have plenty of opportunity later for
doing so. and I have no doubt the
House will listen to him with a great
deal more pleasure. I have read the
two telegrams.

Mr. B. J. Stubbs : You have cut
out the essential part of them.

Mir. ROBINSON: -it is shown that
these telegrams were not merely an
off-hand production. Onl the 23rd June,
1914, the Premier formally sets out in a
letter to Nevanas & Co., Melbourne,
the telegram which I have read and the
reply fromn Mr. Nevanas, and he goes on
to Say-

" I now beg to hland you agree-
moent in duplicate for completion
by you. Onl their return 1 will wire
you when they are signed here and
forward you one of the copies. With
regard to your request for schedule
of steamers, the only vessels which
go to Wyndham are those belonging
to the State Steamship service. The
'Western Australia' leaves Fremantle

en the 29th July, and again about
a month later. Possibly the former
date would suit you."

I will make my own statement in regard
to that and afterwards I will tell the
House what other people say. My
statement is that it was in effect an
agreement by the Government of Western
Australia to engage the services of Air.
Nevantas, leaving the details and the
conditions for future consideration.
There is still nevertheless a definite
agreement to employ.

Mr. E. B3. Johnston: Is that a legal
opinion ?

MVr. ROBINSON:- I have stated my
opinion. I will now give Mr. Nevanas's
opinion. First of all, he recognises by
his reply that hie was being employed
because he states " I agree to the terms."
Let us see what he does after that. Onl
the 20th March, 1915, he enters into an
agreement with the manager of the State
hIplement Works of Western Australia

and in that agreement he signs his name
in this fashion, " For S. V. Net'anas &
Go. Propty., Ltd., under arrangement
with the Government of Western Ati.
tralia, S. V. Nevanas. Governing
Director."

Mr. Foley - What was to stop him
writing anything ?

Mr. ROBINSON: What does that
mean if it does not mean that he was
agent for the Government of Western
Australia. I say that the Government
are mn a dilemnma in respect to that
letter. Either Mr. Nevanas signs as
agent for the Government of Western
Australia, or else a contract had been
entered into which has not been dis-
closed.

The Minister for Lands - The Govern-
ment never saw that letter until the
select commnittee got it.

Mr. ROBINSON: That was the evi-
dence of the Mlinister for Lands.

The Minister for Lands : Not only
my evidence, hut other evidence as well.

Mr. ROBINSON : I will deal with
all that evidence. When that man
signed the letter in that fahion he either
signed it as agent for the Government or
as a contractor for the Government.
Now we know there was no contract in
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existence because the contract did not
come into existence until the 9th April
when the tender was f orrnafly accepted.
If hon. members will turn to page 7 of
the select committee's report they will
see this very peculiar letter in the
middle of the page with the signature
I have read at the foot of it, and the
comunittee say this about it-

The committee are of opinion that
some weeks prior to Cabinet approving,
on 9th April, on the ac-ceptance of
Nevanas's tender, the order for pipes
was placed with Mr. Davies and Mr.
Johnson was aware that the pipes
were being made.

Just let me interpose here, either as
agent for the Government or as con-
tractor.

The peculiarity of the acceptance
on 20th March of Mr. Davies's quo-
tation for pipes by Mr. Nevanas is
shown in the method of signature
thus :-S. V. Nevanas & Co. Propty.,
Ltd., under arrangement with the
Government of Western Australia,
S. V. Nevanas, Governing Director,

-nd it is much regretted by your
committee that it has not been possible
to examine MIVr. Nevanas personally
on this and matters generally.

Then they go on to make this peculiar
sentence-

There is no evidencoe to show that
Mr. Nevanas had any authority from
the Government for this peculiar form
of signature.

I say there was evidence and the evidence
was in the two telegrams which I have
read. I do not know, because I was
not a member of the select committee,
whether that evidence was actually
brought before the members of the
committee. It wao before them just
as the files were before them, but even
the member for Subiaco will not venture
to say what is on page 12 of the file.

Mr. B. J. Stubbs : I can tell you that
I know what was at the end of the
telegramn and which you did not read.

Mr. ROBINSON : That is an in-
ference that I did not read the whole
of the telegram and I must ask that the
hon. member be requested to withdraw
the reflection..

The DEPUTY SPEAKER : The
meinber for Subiaco mlist accept the
assurance of the member for Canning
that he did read the whole of the tele-
gram.

Mr. B. J. Stubbsa: I asked the hon.
member to read the concluding sentence
and lie failed to do so.

The DEPUTY SPEAKER:. The lion.
member said hie did read it and the
member for Subiaco miust accept the
statement.

Mr. B. J. Stubbs., I ask that the
whole of the telegram be read.

The DEPUTY SPEAKER: I cannot
direct that that be done.

Mr. B. J. Stubbs : Very well, I will
withdraw.

The DEPUTY SPEAKtER: If the
positions had been reversed I would have
taken the same course.

Mr. ROBINSON: I read the two
telegrams through and subsequently
read only a portion of them. 'More-
over they were read by the leader
of the Opposition and if it were not for
wearying this House I would read them
again. If the member for Suhiaco wants
to see them in detail he can look at them
on files 68 and 69. That deals with the
attitude of the commiittee, and as I was
saying, the committee had before them
those tlegrams. Althouigh I do not know
whether they were actually read to the
committee they could' not have said that
there was no evidence to show that
Mr. Nevanas had no authority to sign
as he did. What the committee had
in their mninds was embodied in the
evidence of one or two witnesses. Let
me take what -Mr. Sayer the Solicitor
General said. Hon. members will find
that on page 75 of the evidence questions
1835 and 1840 are as follow:

By the Chairman: Just look at
that contract with 'Nevanas to pur-
chase pipes from the State Implement
Works, dated 20th M-%arch. Can you
tell us the meaning of the peculiar
signature "For Nevanas in arrange-
ment with the Government of Western
Australia " ?-I suppose it implies the
Government hav-e authorised it in
some way.
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You. noticed the signature " For and
on behalf of the Government of
Western Australia." Do you know
of any arrangement that would au thor-
ise Nevanss to sign in that way 7
Certainly not.

What is the meaning of those two
answers by the Solicitor General ? Just
what I have stated, that Mr. Nevanas
had a right to sign in that way. Mr.
Sayer was asked if he knew of such a
contract and he said " No." Mr. Sayer
did not know of the telegrams. Let us
now come to what the Minister for
Lands said on the su~bject. On page
96 of the questions andans were 2277
and 2278 are as follows-

Look at this document dated 20th
March. It is signed " Nevanas &
Co. under arrangement with the Goy-
erment of Western Australia." What
do you think of that ?-It is the first
time I have seen it. It is a most
extraordinary document, most extra-
ordinary from his point of view, but
even more extraordinary from Air.
Davies's point of view.

I do not think I have made any more
damaging statement about that agree-
ment than that which was made by
the Minister for Lands himself. The
next question and answer are as follows-

'Have you before seen this letter
of the 29th April. addressed by Ne-
vanes & Co. to Messrs. Werner &
Co., on the bottom of which you will
see " On behalf of the Government
of WNestern Australia " practically
rub-bed out ?-It is the first time I
have seen it.

In effect those answers show that No-
vanes when it suited him, both with
the manager of the State Implement
Works and with Werner & Co. held
himself out as the representative of the
Government of Western Australia. Of
that there is no doubt whatever. In
the ev idence given by Mr. Nicholson
he said in effect that there was no
agreement. What I take it that that
trained lawyer meant was that there
was no agreement of tile character in-
dicated by the Minister for Works, the
formal agreement prepared by Mr. Sayer.
What I do say is that there was and is

an agreement for employment and that
it was acted upon. Now I want to
refer the House to another page dealing
with the same matter. If Mr. Nevanas
was not the agent of the Government and
he was not a contractor for the Govern-
ment at that time, what was he? Let us
hear what the Chief Architect of the
Government, Mr. easley, has to say,
and a more astounding statement it has
never been my lot to read. Let me
read it to the House. It appears on
page 13 and is contained in questions
304 and 305-

Have you any idea. how M1r. Ne-
vanas was going to be remunerated if
hie put in a tender of that sort without
profit. Was he doing it out of phil-
anthropy or not ?-My impression
at that time was that Nevanas & Co.
were a wealthy firm of meat dealers
and that the erection of these build-
ings was only a part of a large scheme
in which they were practically partners
with the Government,

What had occurred in Government
circles to permit the Chief Architect
to give evidence before the committee
that ho thought Nevanas was a partnler
with the Government ? The next ques-
tion, in utter surprise by the chairman,
,VAs-

Partners with the Government ?-
And the answer by Mr. Beasley was-

That was my impression. They
told me themselves that they were not
seeking to make a profit out of the
buildings at all, that they were simply
doing this because they were in a
better position to do it than the
Government were. Until that inter-
view I thought there would be no
difficulty on anybody's part in regard
to finance. It is a, little difficult
at this time of day to say when my
views changed, but in the first place
I thought we were dealing with
wealthy capitalists.

Wealthy capitalists who were partners
with the Government! If that were
the only question and answer dealing
with it, we might be still in a quandary ;
but I will refer members to question
1501, and one or two following, when
Mr. Besley was further examined after
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a number of other gentlemen had
given evidence. This question by the
chairman elicited a very enlightening
answer-

In question 304 you state that your
impression was that they wereprc
tically partners with the Government.
Did this impression influence your
action in any way ?

And this was M1r. Beasley's answer-
It influenced my action right

through.
Is there any greater condemnation than
that ? I condemn the Government out
of the mouth of the Chief Architect,
who said he was influenced in his action
in advising them right through by the
fact that he thought Nevanas & Co.
were partners with the Government.

Mr. 13. 3. Stubbs: Are you going
to condemn the Government for what the
Chief Architect thought?

Mr. ROBINSON: As I drive my
points home they strike hard into the
member for Subiaco. The hon. member
is feeling that if the Government go
down, his seat will never be held by
him again. I fancy I can see the
member for Subiaco quaking in his
shoes as these nails go in.

Mr. B. J. Stubbs:± Your wonderful
eloquence.

Mr. ROBINSON: There is no elo-
quence in this, merely hard solid facts;
and it is only facts that drive nails into
the coffins ofimembers like themnemlber for
Subiaco. Now, will you be quiet?
I propose to read that question and
answer over again in order to give an
intelligent rendering to the next question.
The chairman asked-

In question .304 you state that your
impression was that they were prac.
tically partners with the Government.
Did this impression influence your
action in any way ? (Answer) It
influenced my action right through.

The next question and answer were-
In what way ? (Answer) In my

endeavours to facilitate the scheme
generally.

Then the chairman asked-
If you had not had that impression.

would you have given the same
facilities to Nevanas ?

And the answer was-
I should have treated him as an

ordinary contractor. He did not come
to me in the first place as an ordinary
contractor.

The next question was this-
In question 316 you say that on the

25th March Air. Johnson wrote you a
long minute in which it is stated that
under ordinary circumstances public
tenders would be called, but as time
was the essence of the contract, and
the calling of tenders would necessitate
advertising throughout the Common-
wealth, that would cause a serious
delay. What is your opinion on that?

Mr. Beaslev's answer was-
Perfectly true ;I agree with it.

Meaning presumnably, that the calling
for tenders wvould cause serious delay.
Then Mr. Taylor asked-

What delay do you think adver-
tising would have necessitated ?

The answer was-
Net a day less than three months.

Then the chairman asked-
What is the position to-day

This is wvhat Mfr. Beasley answered-
We are in a dreadful position, I

admit, as regards the calling of ten-
ders ;but you see the thing has
developed in a wvay that was hardly
foreseen.

Then the chairman remiarked-" You
have been educated ?2' and Mr. Beasley,
apparently not clearly understanding,
rejoined " In what wvay ? " " In com-
mercial usuages ' explained the chairman,
to which M1r. Beasley replied-

It is a little unusual for an architect
to do what I have been doing recently.

May I add that it is a little unusual for
the Government to do what they were
doing, namely, dealing with business
matters that they had no more con-
ception of dealing with on a sound basis
than the Chiief Architect admitted lie
had. On the evidence I have read,
I say that that agreement practically
comitted the country to the handing
over of the whole of the management
of this concern to Nevanas, and that
there would have been a deal of trouble
in store for Western Australia had not
the Minister for Works come in and put
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ant end to it. We ha-ve had Nevanas
before us almost in theatrical guise. He
has occupied in the firmament of Western
Australia many roles ; first as adviser
to the Government ; secondly as manager
of the works and -agent for dealing
with the products ; thirdly, as architect
and engineer to produce plans and
specifications ; fourthly as contractor
for the building of the works, anid
fifthly as an injured person claiming
compensation.

Mr. Thomson: Oh no ; he was
skinned, was he not ?

(iThe Speaker resumed the Chair.1
Mr. ROBINSON: As adviser, or as

architect, as the case may be, he pro-
cured from one, fluakerley, plans and
specifications, and a tender addressed to
himself for the erection of the works
and the water supply at a cost of £1 37,000.
This apparently he did not disclose ;
hut whilst hie had that tender in his
capacity as adviser to the Goverrnent
lie estimnated. the cost of the building
at £1 20,000, the cost of the water at
£30,000 and of the jetty at £30,000,
or in all £180,000. The departmnental
officers said it could not be done ;
presumably it could not be done even
at that price. His reply to that sugges-
tion of the officers was to offer to con-
struct the works himself for the sum of
£155,150. Well might he do so* when
he had in his pocket a reputable man's
tender to do the same thing for £137,000,
for hie would miake a pool of £E18,000-
We are told in the course of the evidence
that in some of the negotiations between
the two parties there was to be a bonus
given to Thmkerley ; so instead of
making £18,000, our friend would make
£11,000. But what was his position.
then ? If he secured this contract
at that price, hie would scoop £11,000
and would become the manager and
agent of this concern for the disposal
of the whole of the products, getting
commission on this, that and the other.

The Minister for Lands: You know
that to be absolutely incorrect.

Mr. ROBINSON:- I do not think so.
Nevanas would have made out of this
enough money to keep him for the
rest of his days.

The Minister for Works: That is
supposition.

Mr. ROBINSON: It is not supposition
at all. I hear an interjection, "£E10,000.
a year." Even so that would have
been too much. Let us see what should
have been done in place of what was
done.

The Minister for Works : We can all
see after the event.

Mr. ROBINSON: You could have
seen it before if you had had business
sense. I do not begrudge the payment
for the plans if they are good and suffi-
cient for the purpose ; but having got
the plans public tenders should have
been called. What would have been
the effect?7 The man in the back-
ground would have sent in his tender for
£137,000.

The Minister for Works:. He wants
£152,000 now for the buildings alone.

Mr. ROBINSON : Bat at the time
hie had given aL tender to Nevanas so
construct it for £137,000, and if to
Nevanas, why not to the Government ?

The Minister for W~orks , He said he
would not have done it for the money.

Mr. ROBINSON: BHc tells you
that afterwards, but at the time you
would have had Dunkerley's tender f or
£187,000, and perhaps the tender of
someb ody else for £120,000. Now, in
respect to all these roles I have been
talking about, when Nevanas became
contractor undoubtedly the roles of
adviser, and architect, and engineer,
must have fallen. My leader has said
" merged," but 1 do not see how the
role of adviser could merge into that
of contractor. He must come out of
that piosition entirely and becomeo con-
tractor ; because to me as a lawyer it
is incomprehensible that any man can
be adviser and contractor at the same
time to a trustee. As the Minister for
Wlorks rightly said, it frequently happens
in private life that a man, knowing
a building contractor, goes to him and
says " Prepare mue plans and specifi-
cations." It is done, and that same
man then makes a tender in competition
with others, and frequently he is accepted
as the successful tenderer. The Mfinister
for Works or any other private person
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nan do what he likes with his own, and
there is nobody to question it but himself.
But in this instance the Governmnt
are the directors of Western Australia,
are trustees for the people of the State,
and they must not do such a thling
as this that would be open to suspicion.
If any trustee in the land did it, it
could be upset in the courts. That is
why I say the Government are guilty
of bad methods. They are guilty of
doing things which ordinary individuals
would not do, and they have done those
things which lead one to believe
that their principles arc subversive
of good government. Curiously enough
a peculiar corollary arises :after the
capacities of adviser, engineer and
architect were gone, and Nevanne be.
came contractor, when he wee negotiating
with the Minister for Works, why was it
possible to conduct those negotiations
on a basis of payment of. commnission?
Payment of commission to a eontractor !
Have you, Sir, ever beard of such a
thing ? Is there a contractor on that
side of the House ?Iis there a business
man on that side ? If so, has he ever
heard of such a thing am a commission
being paid to a contractor on the plans
and specifications ? As a matter of
fact the Mlinister for Works let the cat
out of thle bag when, in answer to the
cormmittee of inquiry, lie said " It is
the 'Prinz Sigismund.' We got into
a difficulty over the 'Prinz Sigismuid'
and in point of fact the sumn paid was
a general sum in settlement of all
claims and denmns.' He was mainly
influenced by the "Prinz Sigismund.."
But what I object to is, not that they
paid a sum to get out of the contract, but
that they gave a IlTong reason for it.
I do not know wvho devised that reason;
it certainly was not the Minister for
Works, because he will not own up to
it, but if we inquired further we might
find out who it was. But it will not
hold wvater, and even the Mtinister for
Works, when hie came to his defence,
would not rely on it. I object to that,
and, moreover, it was such a silly thing
to raise, because, although it was said
Nevanas was getting 3 per cent. on
£106,000 for the plans, he was entitled

to only a smaller sum, and in fact they
paid him on £155,000. A more ridicu-
lous comedy than the Nevanas case I
have never come across outside at Gilbert
and Sullivan opera, and I regret those
gentlemen are not in possession of the
facts to make it a travesty for the
illumination of people in other countries.
I charge the Government of Western
Australia in this connection with un-
businesslike methods. I might go on
and enlarge upon the " Prinz Sigis.
mand " blunder itself. That, to my
mind, was equally as unbusincesslike as
the point I have already attacked. It
has been said that the damages the
Government ran the risk of when they
refused the "Prinz Sigismund' to
Noeanas, were £5,000 or £6,000. if
thle case went before a jury of South
Australians or Victorians, as it might
very well have done, seeing this was
an inter-State matter and the pro.
ceedings could have been taken in the
High Court, the damages for that act
might very well have been assessed
at £25,000.

The Minister for Works :Make it
£100,000 while you are at it.

Air. ROBINSON ; At that time,
when steamers could not be had, the
Government agreed as part of the
contract to give Noelanas thle use of the
"1Prinz Sigismiund'" to convey his goods
to X~estern Australia. To use afavourite
expression of thle Minister for Lands,
time was the essence of the contract
with Noeanas. Noelanas was bound to
time to complete these freezing works.
If thle Government took away his
steamer so that hie could not complete
the works to time, the damages would
be great.

The Minister for Lands: You know
perfectly well there was no connection
between the two.

Mir. RO]3INSO.N :When the Govern-
ment cancelled the agreement, they
knew they were committing a grave
offence. They knew they would be cast
in damages. The Minister for Works
told i's the story ;he said he settled
one thing against another, and the
Government paid this round sum. Be
that as it may, those acts on the part
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of the Goverrnment showed a wonderful
lack of busies knowledge, of ineptitude
and incapacity. They are not fit to bo
further trusted with the government
of this country.

On miotion by Mr. Mullany debate
adjourned.

House adjourned at 10-5 p.m.

Thlursday, 11th November, 1915,

PGEz
Papers presented...................2324
Questiongs: Grain, foodstuffs anti fodder .. ?324

Flour and bran, variation in prices.......23M
Notion: Wodham Freezing Works contract,

Want of conflde.ce ............. 2324

The SPEAKER took the Chair at 3
p.m., and read prayers.

PAPERS PRESENTED.
By the Minister for Works.: Gosnuells

Road Board by-lawvs, public pound, and
preparation of roll for loan vote.

By the Honorary Minister: Report of
the Chief Harbour Master to the 30th
June, 1915.

QUEFSTION-GRAIN, FOOI)STUF'FS
ANI) FODDER.

I-an. J. 12ITCHELL asked the Minis-
tr for Agriculture: What is the total

loss onl grain, foodstuffs, and fodder pur--
chased by the Government to date?

Tf le MINISTER FOR AGRICUL-
TL'RE' replied: Until all stocks are dis-
lposed of it will not be possible to state
what the loss will be.

QUESTION-FLOUR AND BRAN,
VARIATION IN GOVERNMENT
PRICES.

Mr. THO'MSON asked the Minister for
Agriculture: 1, Seeing that the whole of
the flour in the State is under the control
of the Government, -why are consumers
at Kattanning, Natrrogin, and York com-
pelled to pay £18 10s. for Grain and
Foodstuffs Board flour, while consumers
iii thle metropolitan area obtain Royal
Commission flour at £16 10s.1 2, Will
lie also explain why the Government are
chargingr £5 5s. for Grain and Food-
stuffs Board 'bran and only £C3 10s. for
Royal Commission bran?

The MINISTER FOR AGRICUJL-
TURE replied: 1, The price at Katait-
ning, *Narrogin, and York, for flour milled
fromt old Western Australian wvheat, is
the same as that prevailing in the metro-
Ipolilan area, amtiely, £18 10S. per ton.
Flour milled from wheat imported by the
Government can be obtained at £16 10s.
per ton free on rails, Perth. 2, The bran
controlled by the Grain and Foodstuffs
Board is milled from pure Western Ans-
tralian wheat, and has a market value esti-
mated to be at least 15s. per ton higher
titan for bran milled from imported
wvheat. The five guineas (E5 5s.) charged
for t his bran is subject to 2 per cent, for
the millers' selling commission. The £3M
10s. per ton for bran milled from imi-
ported wheat is thie net Jprice for parcels
of at least 200 tons.

MOTION-WYNDHAMI FREEZING
WORKS CONTRACT.

Want of Confidence.

Debate resumed from the previous day
onl the motion by Mr. George-"That this
House views wvitlh grave concern the action
of the Government in entering into a pri-
vate arrang-ement with Norans & Co. for
the erection of freezing works at Wynd-
hamn and a private arrangement to hand
over to Nevanas & Co. the management
thereof for a term of years, and is of
opinion that the evidence discloses
throughout the negotiations, contract, and
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